
 

North Devon Council 
Civic Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 1EA 
 

M. Mansell, BSc (Hons), 
C.P.F.A.  
Chief Executive 

 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held in the Torridge Room, Civic Centre, 
Barnstaple on TUESDAY 15th JULY 2014 AT 6.00 P.M.  
 

NOTE: An informal meeting of the Audit Committee will be held for Members to 
meet with the External Auditors at 5.45pm in the Torridge Room prior to the 
meeting of the Audit Committee. 

 
 
Members of the Committee: Councillor Bradford (Chairman) 
     Councillor Croft (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors Chesters, Harrison, Haywood, Hockin and Ley. 
 
 

AGENDA 
  

1. Apologies for absence.   
 

2. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20th May 2014 
(attached). 

 

3. Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered 
by the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4. Declarations of Interests.  (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or 
telephone Member Services to prepare a form for your signature before the 
meeting.  Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors 
must leave the room if necessary.) 

 

5. To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information). 

 
PART 'A' 
 

6. Audit Committee Update for North Devon District Council. Report by Grant 
Thornton (attached). (Pages 1 – 15). 

7. Protecting the Public Purse Fraud Briefing. Presentation by Grant Thornton. 



 2 

8. Audit of the Financial Statements - Compliance with International Auditing 
Standards. Draft response by Head of Financial Services and Chairman of the 
Committee (attached). (Pages 16 – 18). 

9. Annual Governance Statement 2013/14. Report by the Head of Legal Services 
(attached). (Pages 19 – 39). 

10. Statement of Accounts 2013/14. Report by Head of Financial Services 
(attached). (Pages 40 – 126). 

11. Technology Forge and Land Registration Project. Report by Head of Legal 
Services (attached). (Pages 127 – 132). 

12. Internal Audit Report – Theatres and Museums 2013/14. Report by MAZARS 
Public Sector Internal Audit Limited (attached). (Pages 133 – 146). 

13. Internal Audit Report – Private Sector Renewal Renewals (Disabled Facilities 
Grant) 2013/14. Report by MAZARS Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 
(attached). (Pages 147 – 159). 

14. Internal Audit Report – Crematorium Return 2013/14. Report by MAZARS 
Public Sector Internal Audit Limited (attached). (Pages 160 – 172). 

15. Internal Audit Report – VAT 2013/14. Report by MAZARS Public Sector Internal 
Audit Limited (attached). (Pages 173 – 184). 

16. Internal Audit Report – Contracts and Capital Expenditure 2013/14. Report by 
MAZARS Public Sector Internal Audit Limited (attached). (Pages 185 – 199). 

17. Audit Recommendation Tracker.  Report by the Head of Financial Services 
(attached). (Pages 200 – 208). 

18. Work Programme 2013/14. To consider the work programme (attached). Page 
209. 

19.  Internal Audit Progress Report. Report by MAZARS Public Sector Internal Audit 
Limited (attached). (Pages 210 – 220). 

 

Reminder - Members please return your agenda to the Member Services Officer at 
the end of the meeting.  

 
 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Member Services, 
telephone numbers 01271 388253/388254 
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North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Member Services team or our Communications team in 
advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make all the necessary 
arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Member Services team on 01271 388254 or email 
memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team on 01271 388278, 
email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 
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Audit Committee Update for North 


Devon District Council 


 


Year ended 31 March 2014 


15 July 2014 


Elizabeth Cave 


Director 


T 0117 305 7885 


E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 


Mark Bartlett 


Manager 


T 0117 305 7896 


E  mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com 


Stephen Clarke 


Executive 


T 0117 305 7884 


E  stephen.t.clarke@uk.gt.com 







The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 


which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 


comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 


particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 


your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared 


solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 


consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 


or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 


prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 


. 
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Introduction 


 


This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.  The paper also 


includes: 


• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you; and 


• a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to consider. 


  


Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated 


to our work in the public sector (http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/en/Services/Public-Sector/). Here you can download copies of our publications 


including:   


• Working in tandem, local government governance review 2014, our third annual review, assessing local authority governance, highlighting 


areas for improvement and posing questions to help assess the strength of current arrangements 


• 2016 tipping point? Challenging the current, summary findings from our third year of financial health checks of English local authorities 


• Local Government Pension Schemes Governance Review, a review of current practice, best case examples and useful questions to assess 


governance strengths 


 


If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates 


on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Audit Manager. 


 


Elizabeth Cave  Engagement Lead      T 0117 305 7885    M 07880 456128      liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 


Mark Bartlett      Audit Manager            T 0117 305 7896    M 07880 456123      mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com 
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Progress at 15 July 2014 


Work Planned date Complete? Comments 


2013-14 Accounts Audit Plan 


We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit 


plan to the Council setting out our proposed approach 


in order to give an opinion on the Council's 2013-14 


financial statements. 


 


May 2014 Yes Reported to the May meeting. 


Interim accounts audit 


Our interim fieldwork visit includes: 


• updating our review of the Council's control 


environment 


• updating our understanding of financial systems 


• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 


systems 


• early work on emerging accounting issues 


• early substantive testing 


• proposed Value for Money conclusion. 


 


January – March 


2014 


 


Yes 


 


Findings were reported in the Audit Plan at the last 


Audit Committee meeting.  


 


2013-14 final accounts audit 


Including: 


• audit of the 2013-14 financial statements 


• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 


• proposed Value for Money conclusion. 


July – September 


2014 


 


Not yet due Our final accounts audit is due to commence in 


August 2014. 
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Progress at 15 July 2014 


Work Planned date Complete? Comments 


Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 


The scope of our work to inform the 2013/14 VfM 


conclusion is focussed on the arrangements for: 


• Securing financial resilience 
• Prioritising resources within tighter budgets 


 


January to 


September 2014 


 


Not yet due 


 


Our initial risk assessment identified the financial 


resilience of the Council as the only risk. The Audit 


Plan reported to the May meeting set out the key 


areas we will be covering as part of our VfM work. 


 


Grant claims and certification 


We anticipate that the only claim requiring certification 


will be: 


 


• Housing benefit subsidy for 2013/14 


 


June – November 


2014 


 


Not yet due 


 


The Certification work plan was reported to the May 


meeting. 
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Accounting and audit issues 


Guide to local authority accounts 


 


 Local authority audit committee members are not expected to be financial experts, but they are responsible for approving and issuing the authority’s 


financial statements. However, local authority financial statements are complex and can be difficult to understand. We have prepared a guide for 


members to use as part of their review of the financial statements. It explains the key features of the primary statements and notes that make up a set 


of financial statements. It also includes key challenge questions to help members assess whether the financial statements show a true and fair view of 


their authority’s financial performance and financial position. 


 


 The guide considers the : 


 


•  explanatory foreword – which should include an explanation of key events and their effect on the financial statements 


•  annual governance statement – providing  a clear sense of the risks facing the authority and the controls in place to  manage them 


•  movement in reserves statement – showing the authority's net worth and spending power 


•  comprehensive income and expenditure statement – reporting on the year's financial performance and whether operations resulted in surplus or 


deficit 


•  balance sheet – a 'snapshot' of the authority's financial position at 31st March; and 


•  other statements and additional disclosures  


  


Supporting this guide we have produced two further documents to support members in discharging their responsibilities 


 


• helping local authorities prepare clear and concise financial statements 


• approving the minimum revenue provision 


 


Copies of these are available from your engagement lead and audit manager 


 


Challenge question 


 


Have members referred to this guidance? 


 


Emerging issues and developments 
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Accounting and audit issues 


Top 6 issues for the 2013/14 closedown 


 


Based on the queries we have received from practitioners and auditors, here is a list of the top 6 issues to consider for the 2013/14 closedown. 


1. Do your accounts tell the overall story of your authority’s financial performance and financial position? Are they clear, concise and easy to follow? 


Is detailed information on the most important information easy to find? Have duplicated text, non-material notes and zero entries been removed? 


2. Are your accounts internally consistent? In particular, does the movement in reserves statement agree to the detailed notes? 


3. Is your programme of revaluations is sufficiently up to date to ensure that the carrying value of property, plant and equipment does not differ 


materially from the fair value at 31 March 2014? 


4. Have you accounted for provisions in accordance with IAS 37? 


• Have you considered provisions for business rates, equal pay and restoration and aftercare of landfill sites? 


• Are your provisions the best estimate of the liability (rather than a prudent estimate or an amount that is convenient for budget purposes)? 


• Is there a robust evidence based methodology to support the estimate? 


• Are there any instances in which a provision has not been made because a reliable estimate cannot be made? If so, Is their robust 


evidence to support the judgement that a reliable estimate is not possible? Has a contingent liability been disclosed? 


5. Have you addressed the new accounting requirements in 2013/14 for the presentation of IAS 19 pension costs and a new service line for Public 


Health been addressed? Have comparatives been restated? 


6. Have you agreed a detailed closedown plan with your auditors? Does this include: 


• how to deal with known major issues? 


• a protocol for dealing with new issues as they arise? 


• a date for a post-implementation review? 


 


Challenge question 


 


Has your Head of Finance addressed the closedown issues and assessed the potential impact for your financial statements? 


Emerging issues and developments 
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Accounting and audit issues 


LAAP Bulletin 98: Closure of the 2013/14 accounts and related matters 


  


In March, CIPFA's Local Authority Accounting Panel issued LAAP Bulletin 98. The bulletin provides further guidance and clarification to complement 


CIPFA's 2013/14 Guidance Notes for Practitioners and focuses on those areas that are expected to be significant for most authorities. Topics include: 


 


• public health reform 


• non-domestic rates – provision for appeals against the rateable value of business properties 


• component accounting 


• accounting for pension interest costs in relation to current service cost and pension administration costs  


 


With regard to future accounting periods, the Bulletin also provides an update on issues affecting 2014/15 and on the measurement of transport 


infrastructure assets in 2016/17.  


 
Challenge question 


 


Has your Head of Finance reviewed the guidance and assessed the potential impact for your financial statements? 


Emerging issues and developments 
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Emerging issues and developments 


Local government guidance 


Audit Commission VFM Profiles 


 


Using data from the VFM Profile, the Audit Commission  issued  a briefing on 27 March 2014, concluding that up to £464 million could be 


saved overall, if councils spending the most brought down their spending to the average for their authority type and waste responsibilities. 


 


The Audit Commission Chairman, Jeremy Newman said: "It’s good news that local authorities have reduced their spending on household 


waste by £46 million over the past four years and have reduced levels of waste sent to landfill. Councils have achieved these important 


improvements by working with local people and exercising choice about what works best in their own circumstances."  


 


In the context of considering the hierarchy of waste management options - preventing the creation of waste, preparing waste for re-use, 


recycling, recovery and disposal to landfill - the Audit Commission Chairman also said   


 


"in 2012/13 local authorities spent a fifth of their total expenditure on the most desirable option for household waste management: 


minimisation and recycling. They spent the other four-fifths on the collection and disposal of waste – the least desirable options. Councils 


have the power to influence and encourage residents to do the right thing and they control the levels of spending on the range of waste 


management options available to them. Their choices ultimately affect how well the environment is protected and the quality of waste 


services residents receive" 


  


Challenge questions 


 


Has the Council used the Audit Commission briefing paper to consider how  their: 


 


• overall spending on household waste management has changed over time? 


• spending is divided between waste minimisation, recycling or disposal of waste, and how this has changed over time?; 


• spending on different components of waste management compares with authorities that have similar or better performance? 
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Emerging issues and developments 


Local government guidance 


Fraud prevention 


 


The Local Government Association has reported that Blue Badge fraud prosecutions have doubled in three years as councils crackdown 


on dishonest motorists robbing disabled people of their independence and their right to easier parking 


 


Stoke-on-Trent City Council, Plymouth Council and Hull City Council recently secured their first prosecutions against fraudsters while 


Manchester City Council has a 100 per cent conviction rate with more than 500 prosecutions in the past five years. Councils are also 


using new powers to seize and confiscate badges suspected of being used illegally and some have set up specific enforcement teams to 


tackle Blue Badge fraud.  


 


Cllr Peter Box, Chair of the LGA's Economy and Transport Board, said: 


  


"Councils are determined to do everything in their power to protect the quality of life for our disabled and vulnerable residents and will not 


hesitate to take legal action against anyone caught abusing the scheme. With more of these fraudsters being brought to justice than ever 


before by councils, this is sending a strong message that we will come down hard on drivers illegally using Blue Badges." 


 


Challenge questions 


 


Is the Council actively pursuing measures to prevent Blue Badge abuse, including prosecuting fraudsters? 
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Emerging issues and developments 
 


Local government guidance 


 


The government published its cost benefit analysis guidance for local partnerships on 2 April 2014.  


 


Developed as part of the Greater Manchester ‘whole place’ Community Budget pilot, it was the first Treasury-approved assessment of the 


costs and benefits of joining-up and reforming public services in local areas.  


 


The framework was developed by New Economy, the economic strategy unit of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority. John 


Holden, acting director of economic strategy at the agency, led the team that devised the methodology. He said 


 


 "this model provides a framework to start thinking about more holistic projects that deliver long-term outcomes but also produce short-


term cashability [savings]" 


 


The guidance sets out a standard process to determine the benefit of reforms, based on the unit cost of services, their impact and the 


savings that result.  In providing Treasury backing for the cost benefit analysis framework  – it has been included in Whitehall’s Green 


Book for policy appraisal and evaluation – it has been added to the government’s assessment process for the latest £320m round of the 


Transformation Challenge Award, which provides funding to councils to implement reforms. 


 


 Challenge question 


 


Has the Council considered the applicability of the government's cost benefit  analysis guidance  in considering  the cost-benefits of  local 


service delivery options? 
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Emerging issues and developments 


Grant Thornton 


Local Government Governance Review 


 


This report is our third annual review into local authority governance. It aims to assist  managers and elected members of councils and fire 


and rescue authorities to assess the strength of their governance arrangements and to prepare for the challenges ahead. 


 


Drawing on a detailed review of the 2012/13 annual governance statements and explanatory forewords of 150 English councils and fire 


and rescue authorities, as well as responses from 80 senior council officers and members, the report focuses on three particular aspects 


of governance: 


 


• risk leadership: setting a tone from the top which encourages innovation as well as managing potential pitfalls  


• partnerships and alternative delivery models: implementing governance arrangements for new service delivery models that achieve 


accountability without stifling innovation  


• public communication: engaging with stakeholders to inform and assure them about service performance, financial affairs and 


governance arrangements. 


 


Alongside the research findings, the report also highlights examples of good practice and poses a number of questions for management 


and members, to help them assess the strength of their current governance arrangements. 


 


Challenge questions 


 


• Our report includes a number of case studies summarising  good practice in risk leadership, partnerships and alternative delivery 


models and public communication. Has the Council reviewed these case studies and assessed whether it is meeting good practice in 


these areas? 


• Our report includes key questions for members to ask officers on risk management and alternative delivery models. Are these issues 


being considered and responded to by officers? 
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Emerging issues and developments 


Grant Thornton 


Events 


We are involved in organising and supporting various events for our local government clients including the following. 


 


• Following on from our recent national report on welfare reform Reaping the Benefits we are continuing to gather information and 


examples of good practice from local government and housing around the country. We  are presenting our key findings updated 


information on good practice to CIPFA Benefits and Revenues Network and regional CIPFA events 


 


• We are sponsoring the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CFPS) annual Scrutiny Camp Unconference in London on 11 June 


 


• We are also sponsoring The Municipal Journal’s annual Growth Agenda conference on 4 June where we will be launching our Where 


Growth Happens report 


 


• For the third year running we are sponsoring the conference drinks reception at CIPFA’s Annual Conference, taking place in London on 


2 July 


 


• We are hosting an Alternative Delivery Models seminar at our Birmingham office in 16 July where practitioners will share experiences 


of setting up and operating various alternative delivery models. 


 


• We are holding workshops for Chairs and other members of Local Government Audit Committees. There are events in Bristol (11 July), 


Taunton (16 July) and Dorchester (23 July).  The workshops draw on our publication "a guide to local authority accounts" and aim to: 


• explain the purpose and main features of the financial statements and notes; 


• assist Audit Committee members to understand and challenge the key issues of importance; 


• explain how auditors engage with Audit Committees throughout the ensure audit process; 


• help Audit Committees better understand the structure and principals of an external audit, and 


• enable members to network with members from other councils and share good practice. 
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North Devon District Council 


Internal Audit Report 


Contracts and Capital Expenditure 2013/14 


 
June 2014 
 


This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 13. 


 


Report issued to:  


Head of Property and 
Technical Services 


 


Diana Hill 


Head of Finance Steve Hearse 


  


This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract dated 14 September 2011 between North Devon District Council and 
Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited


[1]
.  This report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of North Devon District Council.  This report must not be 


disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to 
any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 


[1]
  As from 1 February 2014, Mazars LLP purchased the shares of Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited from Deloitte LLP.  The company will be known as 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


 







North Devon District Council -  


 


  


 


Contents 


Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 1 


Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 


Appendix A – Audit Framework .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 


Appendix B – Reporting Definitions ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 11 


Appendix C – Staff Interviewed .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 12 


Statement of Responsibility ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 


 


 







North Devon District Council -  


 


 1 
 


Executive Summary 


Background 


The Council procures goods and services from third parties, which contribute to the Council’s service delivery.  As goods and services are procured with tax 
payers’ money, the Council must ensure that its procurement and contracting processes are accountable, fair and transparent. To achieve value for money, 
goods and services procured from third parties must be delivered according to the Council’s specified quality, timescales and price.  If the Council cannot 
achieve its objectives for value for money, it will be at risk of ineffective service delivery. 


In order to achieve accountability, fairness and transparency in its contractual process, the Council has a Constitution which is a legal requirement where 
Councils set out their roles, responsibilities and rules and provides high level guidance on capital accounting, procurement and contracting.  Moreover, a 
detailed guidance on procurement is in place and published on the Council’s web pages.  Capital investment and expenditure is managed through the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  Capital investment is approved by members at the start of each financial year.  


Capital investment for the period 2013-14 to 2015-16 is as follows: 


 2013-14 - £3.2m 


 2014-15 - £7.2m 


 2015-16 - £0.7m 


The Senior Capital Accountant (SCA) manages the capital accounting which is closely aligned to the capital programme.  A report in respect of the projects’ 
performance against their budgets is produced and provided to the Executive every quarter.   


The heads of services are responsible for the procurement and contracts in their areas, and with support from service and project managers, they identify the 
changes in each project within the capital programme and report them to the SCA, prior to the updating of the capital plan in readiness for the quarterly report. 
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Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings 


Through the work undertaken, the following opinion has been provided: 


Audit Opinion 


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / or there is 
evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 


 
 
For a key to the assurance ratings, see Appendix B – Reporting Definitions. 


Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit, we have raised the below recommendations. 


Priority 
Number of 


Recommendations 
Area of Scope / Recommendation 


1 0 N/A 


2 1 


Procurement guidance should be reviewed and updated 


 


3 1  Due diligence of consultants 


 


  


Substantial 
Assurance 
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Section 1 – Detailed Summary of Key Findings  


Area 1:  Overall control framework (VFM Strategy) for the Council’s Capital Programme 


The Council has a strategy for capital investment, which is outlined in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  The strategy is updated each year and 
approved by the Council's Executive.  The MTFS for 2012-2016 has been approved by the Executive on 5 February 2013.   


A programme of capital investment is established and attached to the capital investment strategy and is a rolling programme of approved investments.  The 
investments that require more than £40,000 Council resource must be individually approved by the Council's Project Appraisal Group and the Executive.  
Investments below £40,000 are approved by the responsible head of service.  The Project Appraisal Group provides support to capital investment project 
managers to ensure projects are managed in line with the Council's Constitution.  The project appraisal group consists of the Assistant Chief Executive, two 
heads of service, two senior project managers and one financial manager. 


The Council's Accountancy team is responsible for identifying any new or amended capital investments and updating the capital programme.  This is carried 
out prior to the start of each financial year, and the updated capital programme is attached as an appendix to the capital investment strategy.  From review of 
MTFS we are satisfied that this is current and has been approved by members of the Council’s Executive, on 5 February 2013. 


There is an Asset Management Plan 2012 – 2016 in place which is linked to the Council's capital programme by providing context to future capital planning.  
The plan was last reviewed in May 2013. In addition, the Council's fixed asset register is updated to take account any additions and changes made to the 
capital investment.  This is carried out each year by the SCA who will reconcile the fixed asset register and general ledger.  We examined the reconciliation 
between the fixed asset register held on the radius system, the property register held on the asset management system, and the general ledger, and was 
able to verify that these balanced. 


We noted that at year end (2012/13) the SCA collected all additions, disposals and revaluations that may affect the valuation of the fixed assets from the 
Property and Technical Services Department.  The SCA then updated the general ledger and fixed asset register in order to prepare for year-end 
reconciliation. 


Area 2: Policy and procedures for contracts and capital expenditure, including compliance with Contract and Procurement 
Regulations, and anti-bribery requirements 
 
The Council's Constitution includes a comprehensive guidance on contract rules and procurement, which is published on the Council's intranet and website. 
In addition, guidance on project management and capital projects is established and can be accessed by all staff via the intranet. We noted the guidelines to 
the contract procedure rules of the Council and public procurement legislation had last been reviewed and updated in June 2010.  Furthermore, we noted in 
Appendix 14 of the Constitution, Contract Procedure Rules, guidance was out of date or in need of amendment.  We understand that the Council’s 
Constitution is currently under review by the Legal team, and this should be completed by the end of September 2014.  If the guidance is not up to date there 
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is a risk that procurement is not dealt with in accordance with Council and legislative requirements, which may result in legal challenge and reputational 
damage to the Council.  We have included a recommendation for the procedural documentation to be updated as a matter of priority. 
 
From examination of guidance on the intranet, we found that there was none in place for procurement and contract management, apart form the 
Constitutional pages.  We would have expected to see a guidance pages dedicated to procurement and contract management for staff use.  Lack of 
procurement and contract management procedures may increase the risk that inappropriate capital expenditures are made, or incorrect processes are 
followed by the staff, which could result financial loss to the Council.  A recommendation has been raised to address this. 
 
In addition, procedures on capital accounting are in place.  This includes a checklist of tasks that need to be completed by the Senior Capital Accountant in 
order to produce the quarterly monitoring report, submitted to the Executive.  We confirmed that the procedures for quarterly capital monitoring were in place 
with the latest review in February 2014. 
 


Area 3: Due Diligence of consultants 
 
The Council’s guidance on contract rules and procurement does not include specific guidance in respect of using consultants and the due diligence or 
background checks needed in their procurement.  This increases the risk that the Council could appoint consultants without a fair and transparent process 
and who do not have the appropriate qualifications or experience to provide a service.   A recommendation has been raised to address this. 
 


Area 4: Budgetary processes for capital accounting 
 
The capital programme is part of the annual budgetary process in the Council and details all the capital projects and their budgets for the current year and 
following three years. Before the start of each financial year, the SCA will collate the capital projects approved by members through the programme of capital 
investments.  For the next three years, the forecasted capital expenditure will be set out on a spreadsheet for each individual project.  The projects are 
grouped according to responsible head of service.  The SCA will provide all heads of service with the spreadsheet, so that they can confirm the expenditure is 
correct.  The SCA will upload the forecasted expenditure onto the Council’s general ledger for the forthcoming year. 


 
Area 5: Approval of the annual Capital Programme 
 
The Head of Financial Services reports the capital programme to the Council’s Leadership Team each year for approval.  The Leadership Team will approve 
the capital programme as well as any new bids.  The capital programme will then be reported to the Council’s Executive for approval.   We confirmed that the 
current capital programme (2012 – 2016) has been reviewed and approved by the Council's Executive on 5 February 2013. 


 
Area 6: Monitoring processes for capital expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure is monitored every quarter.  The SCA prepares a spreadsheet that includes the latest capital programme expenditure allocations for the 
current year.  In addition, the spreadsheet details the projects’ information and responsible project managers. Each quarter, the SCA provides all budget 
holders with a copy of the spreadsheet. Testing a sample of five out of 22 active capital projects carried out during 2013/14, we noted that all the budget 
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holders had been provided with the monitoring spreadsheet with the most up to date information from the Accounting team.  As this information may change 
going forward, the budget holders had provided any changes to capital expenditure, which the SCA had added to the capital programme. 
 
The Accounting team provide the Exchequer and Technical Services with a completed quarterly monitoring spreadsheet.  The Exchequer and Technical 
Services are responsible for the day to day treasury management operations and the Council’s cash flow.  Both departments will liaise to ensure sufficient 
funds are in place for capital expenditures.  We confirmed that information on capital payments due dates has been sent to the Exchequer and Technical 
Services and this has been used to manage the Council's daily cash flow. In addition, the capital programme is monitored by the Senior Management team 
(SMT).  The SCA will prepare a report summarising the projects within each service area.  Any variances are detailed individually. The summary reports are 
prepared and submitted to SMT each quarter.  We examined two quarterly reports, and confirmed that capital expenditures are monitored by the SMT team, 
with  review points included within the meeting minutes. 
 
The Finance Manager will prepare capital budget monitoring reports each quarter for the Executive, which include all individual capital projects in progress or 
completed in the current year.  The forecasted and actual expenditure is documented for the year to date.  In addition, forecasted expenditure is included for 
the next two financial years.  No significant variances for capital expenditure have been reported in 2013/14. The Finance Manager will submit capital budget 
monitoring reports to the Executive in June, September, November and February.   The Executive agenda for each meeting will request the Executive to 
review and comment on the Council’s capital expenditure position in relation to over and under spending.  The review will be summarised in the Executive 
meeting minutes, which are published on the Council’s website. A sample of capital budget monitoring reports was reviewed for 3 September 2013, 5 
November 2013, and 4 February 2014, and we confirmed that budget variances are reported to the Executive promptly.  
 
 


Area 7: Project management, including systems in use, payments to contractors and contracts file management 
 
The Council’s project management guidance sets out the process to be followed for all capital expenditure projects.  All projects should have an assigned 
project manager with responsibility for the progress of the project from commencement to the lessons learnt at the end of the project.  Regular review will take 
place during the project’s progress.   The Council does not have a project management system, however, all project documentation is held on the Council’s 
project management folders on its Microsoft Office system.  All officers responsible for project management have access to these folders.  It is the project 
manager’s responsibility to maintain the project management folder in respect to the projects assigned to them.  
 
The Council’s Contract and Procurement Regulations require all capital investment projects to be supported by a valid business case, which demonstrates 
that the investments are in line with the Council’s priorities.  The regulations require the responsible budget holder to submit a business case report to the 
Executive to include the nature of the project, and why the project is necessary for effective service delivery.  All forecasted costs are included.   The report is 
submitted to the Council’s Executive who will review the project, and approve if considered appropriate for service delivery.  Approval is recorded by a Record 
of Executive Decision within the minutes.  For a sample of five capital projects out of 22 active projects tested, we confirmed that each project had been 
approved by the Executive. 
 
The Project Initiation Document (PID) is the key document for all projects and is prepared for each project with an estimated expenditure of over £40,000.  
The PID outlines the project tasks, reasons, timelines, processes, resource requirements, risk assessment and controls that need to be in place to ensure the 
project can be run smoothly.  At present, there are 22 projects being undertaken, and only one contract commenced in 2013/14 requires a PID, as the 
expenditure exceeded £40,000.  Effective communication is important to ensure that colleagues, partners and other stakeholders are aware of the progress of 
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the project. For projects over £40,000, the communication process must be set out in the PID.  The Council has an internal and external communication 
process designed to publicise project work through its website and internal publications, such as the Council’s local community magazine.   We confirmed that 
a PID was in place and prepared appropriately for this project.   
 
Payments to the contractors are closely monitored by project managers who can approve payments to contractors providing their approval is shown in the 
Council’s authorised signatory list.   The project manager responsible will review payment requests for individual projects to confirm the work specified in the 
invoice has been completed satisfactorily, or that the goods have been received.   In addition, the Exchequer and Technical Services are engaged to ensure 
sufficient funds are available and payments are made according to the payment schedule within the agreements.  For a sample of five capital projects out of 
22 active projects, we confirmed that payments were in line with the payment schedules. 
 
A number of capital projects undertaken by the Council are wholly exempt or partially exempt from VAT, and therefore all expenditure must be recorded 
correctly and reported for VAT submissions.  The VAT claimed back should not exceed 5% of the VAT payable on the total of all payments for the financial 
year.  This means it is essential that the timely information for capital expenditure is provided as soon as possible to enable continuous monitoring of VAT 
exemptions.  We reviewed the information provided to the Exchequer and Technical Services in the quarterly capital monitoring report and noted that the 
Assistant Manager (Technical) uses the information provided by the SCA in respect of cash flow and VAT treatment.   
 
Formal agreements or contracts are required for all capital expenditures in the Council.   Agreements are prepared by the Council’s Legal team, who will use 
standard contract template to maintain consistency.  For a sample of five of the 22 active projects, we confirmed that formal agreements or contracts are in 
place and signed by appropriate parties.  A copy of the contract is held on the project file. 
 
The Council's Constitution section 17.4 states that a register of all contracts awarded by the Council will be maintained that: 
 


(a) have been the subject of a tendering process under the Regulations; or 
(b) have been the subject of either the open or selective tendering process; or 
(c) at the time of the award of the contract is expected to exceed £40,000, shall be kept and maintained by the Legal Services Manager. 


 
We confirmed that a single contracts register was in place and it was held by the Council's Legal Department.  
 


Area 8: Management information and reporting 


Capital investment monitoring is carried out by: 


 Budget holders, using a spreadsheet prepared by the SCA each quarter.  The spreadsheet is compiled from the capital projects set at the start of the 
financial year.  Expenditure is updated using data from the general ledger.  This is confirmed as accurate by the project budget holders; 


 Heads of services through Senior Management Team.  The SCA will summarise the capital project expenditure in a capital project report.  The report, 
which is provided quarterly, includes a split of projects within each service area.  In addition over and under spends are reported for individual 
projects.  The data is compiled from the spreadsheet provided to budget holders; 
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 The accountancy team will utilise the spreadsheet report to monitor projects for over and under spends.  Any significant variance will be reported to 
the budget holder in monthly monitoring reports.  The monthly monitoring reports are automatically generated from the Council’s Radius Financial 
system.  Testing of monthly budget monitoring has been undertaken in our Main Accounting System and Budgetary Control Audit 2013/14; and 


 Members of the Executive are provided with a capital budget monitoring reports each quarter for their  review.  The reports include all individual 
capital projects in progress or completed in the current year.  The data is compiled from the spreadsheet for budget holders.  The forecasted and 
actual expenditure is included in the report for the year to date. 


All capital investment projects are recorded on the Council's capital programme, including the values and release of funds.  Project progress is managed by 
project managers and is reported to the SMT and the Executive via a Financial Performance report each quarter.  The report details any significant overspend 
underperformance and project delays.  Actions will be raised to address the issues and are followed up.  We confirmed that the latest report was provided to 
SMT in January 2014 and to the Executive on 4 February 2014, and there were no major occurrences reported.  
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Section 2 – Recommendations / Matters Arising 
 


1.  Procurement guidance should be reviewed and updated                                             Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The Council's contract procedure guidance should be 
reviewed and updated to reflect current procedures.  This 
should be made available on the intranet to ensure the 
appropriate procurement process is followed.   


The guidance should contain links to other related 
processes such as project management and capital 
projects to ensure consistent methodologies are used. 


Operational guidance should be reviewed and updated 
on a regular basis to enable users to follow the correct 
process and ensure that the Council meets its obligations 
under Council, UK and EU Legislation. 


We noted the guidelines to the contract procedure rules 
of the Council and public procurement legislation had last 
been reviewed and updated in June 2010.  Furthermore, 
we noted in Appendix 14 of the Constitution, Contract 
Procedure Rules, guidance was out of date or in need of 
amendment.  We understand that the Council’s 
Constitution is currently under review and update by the 
Legal team, and this should be completed by the end of 
September 2014.   


We found that there was no guidance in place for 
procurement and contract management, apart from the 
Constitutional web pages.   


If the guidance is not comprehensive and up to date, 
there is a risk that procurement is not dealt with in 
accordance with Council and legislative requirements, 
which may result in legal challenge, delayed procurement 
and/or reputational damage to the Council.   


Procurement & Service Delivery 
Manager  


 


Legal Services Manager 


 


Management Response Implementation Deadline 


Accepted – and will be completed as part of the Constitution review 


Contract procedural guidance has now been made available on the Council’s intranet and internet.   


30 September 2014 
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2. Due Diligence of Consultants                                                                                                 Priority 3 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The Council's contract procedure guidance should include 
the due diligence of consultants. 


The Council’s guidance for procurement and contracting 
should include a section in respect of the use of 
consultant. The added guidance will help to ensure that 
the due diligence of such is included within the Council’s 
contract lifecycle. 


The Council’s guidance on contract rules and 
procurement does not include specific guidance for using 
consultants particularly the due diligence or background 
checks needed in their procurement.   


If the Council appoints consultants without following due 
diligence there is an increased risk that they may not be 
competent to provide the service or should they have a 
background with conduct issues this might provide a 
reputational risk to the Council. 


Procurement & Service Delivery 
Manager  


 


Legal Services Manager 


 


Management Response Implementation Deadline 


Accepted – and will be completed as part of the Constitution review.  It should be noted that the Council has a 
permanent legal contract specialist who reviews such appointments.  In addition specifications for the use of 
consultants are included within contracts. 


30 September 2014 
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Appendix A – Audit Framework 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over Contracts and Capital Expenditure at North 
Devon District Council. 


Audit Approach & Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Internal Audit Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 Identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 Testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and have 
drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system.  See Appendix B for details of the Audit team and staff interviewed. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: - 


 Overall control framework (VFM Strategy) for the Council’s Capital Programme; 


 Policy and procedures for contracts and capital expenditure, including compliance with Contract and Procurement Regulations, and anti-bribery 
requirements; 


 Due diligence of consultants 


 Budgetary processes for capital accounting; 


 Approval of the annual Capital Programme; 


 Monitoring processes for capital expenditure; 


 Project management, including systems in use; payments to contractors; and contracts file management; and  


 Management information and reporting.  
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Appendix B – Reporting Definitions 


In order to assist management in using our reports: 


a) We categorise our audit opinion according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of compliance with these controls:  


Full Assurance There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being 
consistently applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and 
/ or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 


Limited Assurance Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-
compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil Assurance  Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


b) We categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority. 


  
1 


High Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


2 
Medium Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee Important issues 
which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


3 


Low Priority Recommendation 
Detailed problems of a minor nature resolved on site through discussions with local management. 
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Appendix C – Staff Interviewed 


Audit Team Staff Consulted 


Andy Jefford – Director Procurement & Service Delivery Manager – Martin Williams 


John Micklewright – Engagement Senior Manager Technical Services Manager – Paul Robertshaw 


Rachel de Bradeny – Auditor Senior Capital Accountant – Tony Rumble 


Contact Details: 


John.Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 
 


An exit meeting was held with the Procurement & Service Delivery Manager, on Wednesday 30 April 2014. 


Acknowledgement 


We would like to thank the Management and staff involved in the audit work for their assistance. 
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Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for 
their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities 
for the application of sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and 
transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by 
management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


June 2014 


    


Andy Jefford Director Andrew.Jefford@mazars.co.uk 07810  656 522 


John Micklewright Engagement Manager John Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 07970 425 275 


Rachel De Bradeny Auditor Rachel.DeBradeny@mazars.co.uk 07825 457842 


 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name 
or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or communicate them to 
any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown 
or gains access to this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy 
group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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Open 


NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 


REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 


Date: 15 July 2014 


TOPIC: AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 


REPORT BY: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OFFICER 


 
 


1 Introduction 
 


1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to 
address internal and external audit recommendations. 


 
2. Recommendations 


 
2.1 That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address identified 


risks since the 20 May 2014 Committee meeting. 
 


2.2 That the Committee raises any areas of concern arising from the list of 
outstanding recommendations. 


 


3. Reasons for Recommendations 
 


3.1 To give assurance to the Committee that audit recommendations are being 
actively managed, and to give the Committee a full opportunity to review any 
areas of concern. 


  


4. Report 
 


4.1 SMT has reviewed the high and medium risk audit recommendations to assess 
progress and instigate any required actions. 
 


4.2 Table A provides a status position on all audit recommendations held within 
Covalent. Housing Benefits 2013/14 (4) 


o Licensing 2013/14 (1) 
Table A) Recommendations within the system 


 


 Completed Overdue Cancelled Not due Total 


High 18 3 0 4 25 
Medium 393 19 16 15 443 
Low 421 16 21 5 463 


Totals 832 38 37 24 931 
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Audit recommendations completed since the last Audit Committee 
 


Report Author: Jo Ash 


Generated on: 26 June 2014 


  


Recommendation Latest Note 


11 LLC 01 Complete an electronic procedure manual of operational duties Local Land Charges/Elections Officer via e-mail: Closure Note: The manual is all 


complete and has been checked.  


12 C&P 04 Key performance indicators should be in place for procurement. The 


information relating to the indicators should be reported and analysed, with action 


taken to improve where necessary. 


Procurement Manager: Closure Note: Key PI's are almost impossible to produce. 


We monitor through spend analysis, but the system in our Authority makes PI's 


of procurement spread over so many departments impossible. Other suitable 


controls are in place. This should be dropped as the time will not be well spent 


compiling something that is not used.  


13 CT&NNDR 02 Reconciliations between Councils IBS system and the Valuation 


Office Agency schedule of properties in a timely manner. 


Revenues Manager, Closure Note (via e-mail): Recommendations have now been 


implemented.  


13 CT&NNDR 03 Reconciliations between IBS and GL should be signed and dated by 


the completing officer 


Revenues Manager, Closure Note (via e-mail): Recommendations have now been 


implemented.  


14 AP 02 Procedures to prevent Section 151 Officer posting journals to ledger Closure Note: Restrictions have been put in place to ensure the Section 151 


Officer (Steve Hearse) no longer has the facility to post journals within Civica 


Financials  


14 CC 02 Departmental Cash Forms Should Contain Standard Fields Management Response: Accepted. Finance Manager - each of the service areas 


have different information needs, but the sheets will be reviewed for date and 


signature.  


14 DR 02 Contact Details ICT Manager: Action completed (via e-mail 27.05.14)  


14 DR 03 System Backup and Recovery ICT Manager: Action completed (via e-mail 27.05.14)  


14 DR 05 Emergency Action Procedures Closure Note  Management Response: Updated to clarify that we have no 


recovery partners currently.  
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Recommendation Latest Note 


14 DR 07 Disaster Escalation procedures ICT Manager: Action completed (via e-mail 27.05.14)  


14 HS & HN 01 Update strategies for Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleepers 


and ensure all information is current 


Housing Services Manager, Closure Note (via email): The Website has been 


updated to ensure there is no content or reference to out of date strategies or 


policies.  


14 R&BS - AA 01 Observations and Recommendations Management Response and Closure Note: This has already been logged with the 


software company, however all staff already use capital, number and lower case 


combinations on all of their other applications and automatically use this 


combination on IBS. Also we are fully aware that lax rules allow for insecure 


passwords and all users are instructed and DO use the stronger combination. As 


this is the 1st time this has been highlighted we have now done as 


recommended and passwords have been amended.  
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Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
 


Code Description Progress Bar 
Due 
Date 


Latest Note 


11 CP 03 Agree set of 
PIs & targets for ND+ 
and report results to 
Members annually 


The Council should have an agreed set of targets 
between North Devon Plus and North Devon Council. 
Performance should be reported to North Devon 
Council members on an annual basis.  


 


30-Sep-
2011 


21-May-2014 The Committee should note that this 
recommendation was raised in 2011, closed in October 2012. 
Then in March 2013 internal audit found it should not have 
been marked closed and recommended it's reopening. A note 
was added in December 2013 saying that the PIs had been 
done and "now needed to be reported to Members, however 6 
months later it is still open.  


11 MoCA 01 Sufficient 
licenses for 
Technology Forge are 
obtained 


The Council should ensure that a sufficient amount of 
licenses for Technology Forge are obtained, to 
enable the Property Services team to operate 
effectively.  


 


30-Jun-
2011 


09-Dec-2013 Management Comment: There are sufficient 
licences for P&T Team to be able to perform adequately at the 
moment. However to improve efficiency more will be required 
in the future.  


12 C&CE 03 Update 
the Sustainable 
Procurement Strategy 
including the 
progression of the 
action plan as required 


The Council's Sustainable Procurement Strategy 
should be updated, including the progression of the 
action plan as required.  
Original due date: 31 December 2012  
Revised due date: 31 August 2013  


 


31-Aug-
2013 


18-Jun-2014 Procurement and Services Delivery Manager: 
National strategy is currently running 18 months late and we 
are awaiting that as it will be the overarching strategy we will 
have to comply with.  


12 C&P 01 Review & 
update Council's 
Contract Procedure 
Guidance to reflect 
current procedures 


Procurement: The Council's contract procedure 
guidance should be reviewed and updated to reflect 
current procedures.  


 


31-Dec-
2012 


26-Feb-2014 Claire Holm: Final guidance received by 
Comms. Document will be uploaded after proofing.  


12 C&P 03 Formalise 
contractual 
arrangements for water 
analysis & private 
water supplies. Also, 
review other framework 
agreements by DCC to 
ensure individual 


Provision of water analysis: The Council should 
formalise its contractual arrangements for the 
provision of water analysis for private water supplies. 
This may be undertaken through the framework 
agreement arranged by Devon County Council.  
Furthermore, the Council should review its other 
contractual arrangements where a framework 
agreement has been arranged by Devon County 


 


30-Nov-
2012 


18-Sep-2012 Management Response: Accepted - 
Management to have improved training in procurement and 
procedure rules. Head of Service to ensure staff compliance.  
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Code Description Progress Bar 
Due 
Date 


Latest Note 


agreements are in 
place 


Council to ensure individual agreements are in place.  


12 D 07 Create an 
automated (implex) 
rule to enable 
incorrectly payments 
for business rates (BR) 
to be paid to BR 
suspense account 


Posting of Debtor Payment - An automated 
(implex) rule should be created on the cash 
receipting system that will enable the incorrectly 
referenced monthly payment for business rates to be 
posted to the business rates suspense account and 
not to an incorrect debtor account.  


 


31-Mar-
2013 


03-Jul-2013 Payment details have been identified and looking 
at Icon Impex rules to test  


13 BCM 01 Review 
Service Business 
Resumption Plans to 
reflect NDC's 
objectives & service 
delivery needs, to inc 
key staff, silver rotas 
as required. 


Service business resumption plans should be 
reviewed and updated: The Council should 
undertake a review of its Service Business 
Resumption Plans in order to reflect NDC's 
objectives & service delivery needs. The plans 
should be updated to include current information in 
relation to service owners, key staff contacts, silver 
rotas officers and resources required.  


 


17-Mar-
2014 


18-Jun-2014 Community Protection Manager: DCC 
commissioned to deliver support for new plan. NDC is now due 
to provide dedicated resource to complete this work.  


13 BCM 02 Service 
Business Resumption 
Plans are Tested 


Service Business Resumption Plans are Tested: 
To ensure that each Services' Business Resumption 
Plan is tested in accordance with the requirements of 
the Councils Business Continuity Plan  


 


12-May-
2014 


26-Nov-2013 Management Response: Accepted. Revised 
Business Resumption, once approved by SMT, will be tested 
by each Head of Service and results passed to the Community 
Protection Manager  


13 BCM 03 Critical 
review of functions & 
assoc key business 
processes, info 
records, IT systems & 
services 


Table top and live business continuity exercises 
should take place: A complete review of critical 
functions and assoc key bus. processes, information 
records, IT systems and services provided by the 
Authority be completed to ensure that these reflect 
the current objectives and ops of the Council.  


 


26-Jun-
2014 


21-Nov-2013 Management Response: Accepted  


13 BCM 06 Review of 
critical functions & key 
business processes & 
services by the Council 
to reflect current 
objectives 


Review of Service Priorities: A complete review of 
critical functions and assoc key bus processes, info 
records, IT systems and services by the Council 
should be conducted to ensure that these reflect the 
current objectives and ops of the Council.  


 


30-May-
2014 


21-Nov-2013 Management Response: Accepted  
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Code Description Progress Bar 
Due 
Date 


Latest Note 


13 C&CE 02 Provide 
full procurement 
guidance on Insite to 
ensure process is 
followed and linked to 
other processes 


Procurement guidance accessibility 
The Council should provide comprehensive 
procurement guidance on its intranet to ensure the 
appropriate procurement process is followed.  
The guidance should contain links to other related 
processes, such as project management and capital 
projects, to ensure consistent methodologies are 
used.  


 


30-Apr-
2013 


26-Feb-2014 Claire Holm: Final guidance received by 
Comms. Document will be uploaded after proofing.  


13 CT&NNDR 01 The 
Income Collection and 
Debt Recovery Policy 
should be reviewed 
and updated on a 
regular basis 


Income Collection and Debt Recovery Policy: The 
Income Collection and Debt Recovery Policy should 
be reviewed and updated on a regular basis  


 


31-Dec-
2013 


06-May-2014 Policy has been reviewed by both Revenues and 
Benefits Managers - awaiting changes to be fed to Finance 
Manager to update policy with debtors section amendments  


13 D 01 Policies to be 
reviewed and updated 
with to include date of 
amendments and 
expiry date 


Policies and Procedures: Policies should be 
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. These 
should detail the date they were updated and the 
date at which they are due to be reviewed in the 
future.  


 


31-Dec-
2013 


06-May-2014 Policy has been reviewed by both Revenues and 
Benefits Managers - awaiting changes to be fed to Finance 
Manager to update policy with debtors section amendments  


13 ES 01 W&R to 
produce a service risk 
register re. efficiency 
savings & the impacts 
these would have on 
service delivery 


Service risk registers should include efficiency 
savings risks 
A risk register should be produced for the Works & 
Recycling service. It should include risks in respect of 
efficiency savings and the impact they may have on 
the service delivery.  


 


31-Mar-
2013 


28-Apr-2014 HoS Works & Recycling: Works Unit 
Administration Manager is finalising the register 


13 HB 04 Payments 
over £1k to a single 
claimant to be formally 
checked & signed in 
triplicate review 


Evidence of payment runs over £1k not retained: 
Payments over £1k to a single claimant should be 
formally checked & signed via the triplicate review 
instead of through the Systems/Assessment Officer  


 


31-Aug-
2013 


19-Sep-2013 Management Response: Accepted, but the 
checks will be done for individual payments over £1500 due to 
rent increases.  


13 SC 01 Identify 
information to support 
operational decisions 
for cleansing inc 


Performance Information: W&RS to identify what 
info needs to be maintained to support operational 
decisions for the control of street cleansing and toilet 
cleaning and to include identification and reporting of 


 


31-Mar-
2014 


28-Apr-2014 HoS Works and Recycling: this is ongoing and is 
fed by the team 1:2:1 meetings and management meetings. 
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Code Description Progress Bar 
Due 
Date 


Latest Note 


reporting of KPIs KPI's  


13 WM 03 Formulate a 
suite of local indicators, 
linked with NPIs to 
improve operational 
service 


Analysis of Management Information: The W&R 
Service should have a suite of local indicators to use 
on an operational level for the improvement of the 
service; and these should be linked to national PI's  


 


31-Mar-
2014 


08-May-2014 HoS Works and Recycling: looked at but no 
local indicators established yet - still using the national set as 
reported through Waste Dataflow'.  


14 P&SE 02 Expense 
claim description and 
approval process 


Staff: To be reminded to specify individual journeys 
on a daily basis and include sufficient 'detail notes', 
inc reason for journey on any expense claims 
submitted.  
Line Managers: to review mileage expenses 
submitted for reasonableness.  
Council: Should ensure process for mileage claims 
are more robust through the introduction of an 
approved inter-office mileage table.  


 


31-Jan-
2014 


17-Mar-2014 Management Response: Accepted. The Payroll 
Officer will send a reminder to all staff, which will include 
highlighting staff and line manager responsibilities. An 
interoffice table will be created and provided to staff.  


14 P&SE 04 Staff 
expenses reported to 
SMT 


The Council should consider reporting the cost of 
staff expenses to the SMT. This could include 
information such as the number of miles claimed 
each month to enable quarterly analysis  


 


30-Apr-
2014 


06-May-2014 New budget monitoring report to SMT for 2014-
15 will include expenses information  


14 R&BS - AA 
Revenue and Benefits 
Systems - Application 
Audit 


Audit Meeting: 20.05.14  
 


31-May-
2014 


21-May-2014 Audit Opinion:  Substantial Assurance  


14 R&BS - AA 2 
Segregation of Duties 


We recommend that the specific functions available 
to authorised users be reviewed in detail with a view 
to ensuring that no one individual can initiate, 
authorise and execute transactions without the 
involvement of other staff or management.  


 


31-May-
2014 


21-May-2014 Management Response: Core is REVS and 
BENS. This will be reviewed as requested. Training will be 
given within the Benefits Team NOT cross trained with 
Revenues therefore NO security issues.  


 
  


  







 


5. Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement 
 


5.1 An annual review of NDC’s governance arrangements leads to the Annual 
Governance Statement, which forms part of the Statement of Accounts.  


 
5.2 In addition to any other issues the review captures recommendations from 


external and internal audit and inspections and sets out an action plan. This plan 
is tracked through Covalent.  


 
5.3 2010/11 AGS action plan is 100% complete  


2011/12 AGS action plan is 50% complete 


2012/13 AGS action plan remains incomplete 
 


6. Constitution Context  
 


Appendix and 
paragraph 


Referred or 
delegated power? 


5.5 Delegated 


 


7. Statement of Internal Advice 
 
7.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 


Councillors and officers. 
 


 
Author: Jo Ash                Date:  26 June 2014          Reference: Audit Recommendation Report July 2014 


 
 







 


AGS 


Action Code and 
Title 


Description Status Progress Bar Latest Note Due Date 
Committee 


Action 


12 AGS Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 


12 AGS 02 Shared 
services 


Develop appropriate governance arrangements to 
ensure effective management of shared services    


21-May-2014 The due date has 
been revised until after the 2015 
election.  


01-Sep-
2015 


 


13 AGS Annual Governance Statement 2013/14 


13 AGS 01 
Address MTFS 
forecast of a 
spending gap 


Address the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2013/17 
forecasts that will be necessary to reduce spending by 
£1.5m by 2016/17  


  


21-May-2014 Audit Cttee on 20 
May 2014 agreed to amend the 
due date from March 2014 to 
September 2014 to allow 
preparation and adoption of the 
MTFS.  


30-Sep-
2014 


 


13 AGS 02 
Implementation of 
an Organisational 
Wide Improvement 
Plan 


Implementation of an organisational wide improvement 
plan to address weaknesses in staff moral, appraisal 
process, internal comms, management capabilities  


  


01-May-2014 The first phase of 
the improvement plan concluded 
with the award of Investors in 
People status again. The next 
phase has begun. The completion 
date has been revised from March 
2014 to December 2014.  


31-Dec-
2014 


 


13 AGS 03 Review 
of Business 
Continuity Plan 


A Review of all Business continuity Plans to address the 
potential for severe disruption of Council services by 
extreme weather events, such as localised flooding of 
council property.  


  


01-May-2014 The risk of 
inadequate business continuity 
planning has been added to the 
Corporate Risk Register.  


29-Mar-2014 


 


13 AGS 04 
Implement Agreed 
Procurement 
Improvement Plan 


Implement agreed procurement improvement plan to 
improve the Council's procurement processes    


21-May-2014 Work underway on a 
training programme and guidance 
notes was report to the May 2014 
Audit Cttee [Note: this overlaps 
with several audit 
recommendations on 
procurement]  


29-Mar-2014 


 


13 AGS 05 IT 
Disaster Recovery 
Audit 


Audit Committee: 20.05.14  
Audit projects with Limited and Nil Assurance 2013-14    


02-Jun-2014 This 
recommendation has been 
included in the AGS action plan 
for 2013/14  


31-Aug-
2014 


 


 








Audit Committee Work Programme
North Devon Council


Committee Dates  15-Jan-13 12-Mar-13 30-Jul-13 24-Sep-13 12-Nov-13 14-Jan-14 11-Mar-14 20-May-14 15-Jul-14 23-Sep-14 11-Nov-14 27-Jan-15 3-Mar-15


Formal review of the Committee's Terms of Reference 12-Mar 11-Mar 12-Mar 13-Mar 15-Mar 03-Mar


Annual Review of the Committee's effectiveness 24-Sep 11-Mar 12-Mar 23-Sep 16-Mar 17-Mar


Produce an annual report on the work of the Audit Committee to 


Full Council
24-Sep 23-Sep 17-Mar 18-Mar


Annual Governance Statement 30-Jul 24-Sep 15-Jul 16-Mar 18-Mar 19-Mar


Statement of Accounts 30-Jul 24-Sep 15-Jul 17-Mar 19-Mar 20-Mar


Corporate Risk Register 12-Mar 24-Sep 20-May 23-Sep 21-Mar


Major changes to Accounting Policies Management procedures to 


be reported by the Head of financial Services 
Update? 12-Mar 19-Mar 21-Mar 22-Mar


Annual Performance monitoring of Internal/External Audit 30-Jul 14-Jan 15-Jul 23-Sep 22-Mar 23-Mar


Internal Audit Annual report 30-Jul 21-Mar 23-Mar 24-Mar


Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 12-Mar 11-Mar 22-Mar 24-Mar 03-Mar


Internal Audit Charter 24-Sep 11-Mar 23-Sep 25-Mar 26-Mar


Council Tax Support Scheme and questions 30-Jul 11-Mar 24-Mar 26-Mar 27-Mar


External Audit Fee Letter 15-Jan 11-Mar 20-May 25-Mar 27-Jan 28-Mar


External Audit Annual Governance Report 24-Sep 23-Sep 28-Mar 29-Mar


External Audit Annual Audit Letter 24-Sep 23-Sep 29-Mar 30-Mar


External Audit Plan 12-Mar 30-Jul 11-Mar 20-May 28-Mar 30-Mar 03-Mar


External Audit Letter of Representation 23-Sep


Certification Work Report 15-Jan 14-Jan 20-May 29-Mar 27-Jan 01-Apr


Empty Homes Policy - Head of Environmental Health and Housing 


to attend
30-Jul 14-Jan 30-Mar 01-Apr 02-Apr


Procurement Fraud - Risk to the Council 20-May


Appointment of an Independent Member to the Audit Committee ????


Informal Meeting with Auditors 12-Mar 11-Mar 31-Mar 02-Apr 03-Mar
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Open 


NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 


REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 


 15 July 2014 


TOPIC: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2013/14 


REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 


1 INTRODUCTION 


1.1  The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a public statement that accompanied the 
council’s statement of accounts. It explains how the council manages its governance 
and control arrangements. An AGS or similar document is produced by both public 
and private sector organisations. 


1.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations give the statutory requirement for the council to 
have “a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of that 
body’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk”. The 
statement that describes the system is the appended AGS. 


1.3  The Audit Committee has delegated power to oversee the preparation of this 
statement and recommend it to Council. This report has a draft AGS appended for the 
Committee’s consideration and comment.  


2 RECOMMENDATIONS 


That the Audit Committee: 


2.1  Considers and approves the attached Annual Governance Statement. 


2.2  Recommends the attached Annual Governance Statement to council as an 
accompaniment to the Statement of Accounts. 


3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 


3.1 This report is to allow the Audit Committee to properly carry out their duty to oversee 
the production of the Annual Governance Statement in line with regulations. 


4 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 


4.1  The AGS is the formal statement that records and publishes an authority's governance 
arrangements.  


4.2  “Governance” comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values by 
which a body is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to and engages 
with its community. Good governance arrangements ensure that the body is doing the 
right things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest 
and accountable manner. 







Page 2 of 2 


4.3   CIPFA1 and SOLACE2 have published a framework that suggests best practice in the 
preparation of the AGS, which NDC follows. this includes the review and approval of 
the statement by a Member group to help ensure its robustness. The council’s 
Constitution allocates this role to the Audit Committee. 


5 AUDIT COMMITTEE IMPLICATIONS 


5.1  As “those charged with Governance'” the Audit Committee receives assurances on the 
effectiveness of governance arrangements, and compliance with the Code of 
Governance. The Audit Committee should review the AGS to ensure it accurately 
reflects the council’s governance arrangements.  


5.2  Once satisfied with the Statement, the Committee approve it for submission to the 
Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive for signature before it proceeds to 
Council. 


6 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 


6.1 None arising from this report. 


7 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 


Appendix Referred or 
delegated power? 


5 Delegated 


8 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 


8.1 None of this report contains any confidential information. 


9 BACKGROUND PAPERS 


 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 


 CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering good governance in Local Government: Framework 


 CIPFA/SOLACE: Guidance Note for English Authorities 


 CIPFA Financial Advisory Network: The Annual Governance Statement 


10 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 


10.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and officers. 


 


Author: John Patrinos   Date: 12 June 2014 


Reference: I:\Projects\AGS\2013-14\2013-07-30 AGS - rpt Audit Cttee.doc 


                                            
1
 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 


2
 Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2013/14 


1 Introduction 


North Devon Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In 
discharging this overall responsibility the council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, and facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 


The Council has a code of corporate governance which is consistent with the 
principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), and 
the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (Solace) Framework “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government”. This statement explains how the council has 
complied with the code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. 


2 The purpose of the governance framework 


Confidence in public sector governance is of critical importance, given the huge 
investments by taxpayers in local services and the need to ensure that none is wasted. 
This Annual Governance Statement is to help provide that confidence by formally 
recognising, recording and publishing the council’s governance arrangements. 


The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and 
values, by which the council is directed and controlled and the activities through which 
it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the council to 
monitor the achievement of its objectives, and to consider whether those objectives 
have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 


The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the 
council’s aims and objectives. It can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process 
designed to: 


 identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the council’s aims and 
objectives 


 evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
occur, and 







Page 2 of 19 


 manage them efficiently, effectively and economically 


The governance framework has been in place at North Devon Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2014, and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts. 


Our governance framework derives from core principles in the publication entitled 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”, Framework that is mentioned in 
the introduction. They are: 


a) Focussing on the purpose of the council, outcomes for the community, and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area 


b) Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles 


c) Promoting values for the council and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 


d) Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny, and managing risk 


e) Developing the capacity and capability of Members and officers to be 
effective 


f) Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability 


The authority’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government” (2010) as set out in the Application Note to “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework”. 
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3 North Devon Council’s governance framework 


This section describes the key elements and processes that comprise the council’s 
governance arrangements.  


 


3.1 Identifying and communicating the council’s vision and intended outcomes 
for citizens and service users 


The council’s aims and objectives are set out in the Corporate Plan 2011/15, which 
was updated in November 2013 to focus more on the changed environment to be 
faced in 2014/15. The Plan describes the areas where we are focussing our activities. 
The Plan is fully integrated with our budget so that resources are allocated to our 
priority areas.. 


 The Corporate priorities are communicated to internal stakeholders through 
the Service Planning process.  


The council has established a range of communication methods to ensure that 
employees are clear about the corporate priorities and major new initiatives:  


 A Communications team focussed on ensuring the Council’s messages are 
understood by staff and reflected as accurately as possible externally, for 
example through the local media  


 Heads of Service cascade key issues from Senior Management Team for 
discussion at regular team meetings 


 There are briefings for all staff to update them on key initiatives and changes, 
which this year have included the council’s approach to dealing with central 
Government’s spending reductions 


 Frequent press releases transmit messages to the local population  


 The Intranet is used to communicate issues arising from each week’s Senior 
Management Team meetings  


 


3.2 Reviewing the council’s vision and its implications for the council’s 
governance arrangements 


The preparation of the Corporate Plan includes a review of the vision and priorities of 
the council as part of workshops with Executive members. This is informed by an 
environmental scan covering political, social, economic and legal issues. It is also 
influenced by the results of a range of consultation events so that the views of the 
people of the area are appropriately reflected in the Plan. 


As part of this process any impact on governance arrangements is identified and 
responded to.  


 


3.3 Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered 
in accordance with the council’s objectives, and for ensuring that they 
represent the best use of resources 


The Corporate Plan provides clarity for all Members and officers by: 
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 Setting out our objectives 


 Reviewing our progress and performance during the last year against our key 
objectives 


 Renewing improvement targets for the future  


 Helping manage our performance to deliver better services in the areas that 
matter most to our residents 


Stemming from the Corporate Plan are Service Plans that focus on delivering service 
improvement and outcomes for the public. These form the basis of individual 
performance appraisal of all staff, which provides clarity about expectations for 
achievement during the year. 


Service planning is underpinned by financial planning, with changed expenditure in 
any service area being approved by the Executive and Council through the annual 
resource allocation process. As part of this process a rigorous examination of all 
budgets is undertaken to identify opportunities for making efficiency savings, 
maximising income, or reducing unnecessary expenditure. 


The Executive receives quarterly Performance and Financial Management reports 
from the Executive Team that monitor progress towards delivering the Corporate Plan 
as well as covering any other areas of service delivery that are of note. This report 
covers operational performance, revenue and capital expenditure, key prudential code 
indicators, treasury management performance, and debt management. It integrates 
the reporting of operational performance with financial performance. The reports are 
written in clear language and provide a succinct overview of performance so that the 
lay reader can easily understand them. 


Each quarter the Overview and Scrutiny Committee scrutinises these reports and the 
adequacy of the Executive’s action in ensuring progress is maintained.  


The council has an effective, documented Performance Management Framework 
and utilises a dedicated information technology system to record and report upon 
performance information. The council’s Corporate Plan focuses attention on council 
priorities and drives the system. This is cascaded through Service Plans, individual 
employee appraisals and action plans. 


In addition to the above, the council maintained robust budgetary monitoring and 
control processes during the year to ensure that financial resources were being used 
to their best advantage. This includes  


 frequent management reporting to the Chief Financial Officer 


 monthly monitoring reports to Senior Management Team and the Lead 
Members, and  


 quarterly reports to the Executive, which then go to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 


 


3.4 Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, 
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation 
arrangements and protocols for effective communication 


The Constitution sets out how the council operates, how decisions are made, and the 
procedures that are followed to ensure these are efficient, transparent and 
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accountable to local people. While it has been updated with piecemeal changes the 
present Constitution in now undergoing a wholesale review. This is scheduled for 
completion in 2015. 


The main decision-making body is the Executive, which is responsible for all 
executive matters as defined by law and operates within the budget and policy 
framework approved by full council. Meetings are open to the public except where 
personal or confidential matters are being discussed. In addition, senior and other 
officers of the council can make decisions under delegated authority; again the extent 
of these delegations is set out in the Constitution.  


The council publishes a Forward Plan that contains details of key decisions to be 
made by the Executive.  


Each Executive Councillor works to a pre-defined role description and is the lead 
member for specific areas of responsibility. They work closely with officers to 
achieve the council’s priorities. However, the council has not adopted individual 
decision-making powers for the Executive Councillors.   


The council has several committees that carry out regulatory or scrutiny functions. 
These are:  


 an Audit Committee to provide assurance about the adequacy of internal 
controls, financial accounting and reporting arrangements, and the effectiveness 
or risk management. Its work is intended to improve the corporate and financial 
governance of the council and to enhance public trust 


 an Ethics Committee, which promotes and monitors probity and high ethical 
standards amongst the council’s Members. This extends to the committee hearing 
complaints against Town and Parish Councillors as well as District Councillors. 


 an Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which reviews and scrutinises Executive 
decisions made, or actions taken, in connection with the discharge of any of the 
council’s functions. It also reviews the performance of the Council as well as 
reporting on any matter that might affect the Council or its inhabitants. 


 a Planning Committee to determine land use planning applications and related 
matters 


 a Licensing Committee, which is responsible for the council’s licensing and 
regulatory functions. It is also the body which hears all appeals that are not 
required to be dealt with elsewhere. 


 a Procedures Committee, which makes recommendations to Council to ensure 
the Constitution is amended to meet changing circumstances and legislation. It 
also  makes recommendations on Councillors matters such as training and 
development, and allowances. Other items are only dealt with upon request from 
the Leader, Executive, or Council. 


The Chief Executive leads a Senior Management Team (SMT) comprising Heads of 
Service. The Senior Management Team meets each week to develop policy issues 
commensurate with the council’s aims, objectives and priorities. The Team also 
considers other internal control issues, including risk management, performance 
management, compliances, efficiency, value for money, and financial management.  
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The Chief Executive and Heads of Service meets frequently with the Leader and 
Executive Members to forward plan council business and pick up new issues and 
risks.  


 


The council’s services are delivered through seven Services each managed by a 
Head of Service or the Chief Executive. Changes to this during the year were 


 the Assistant Chief Executive retired in May 2013 resulting in a corporate team 
directly managed by the Chief Executive 


 for the first part of the year the Head of Legal Services was a shared post with a 
neighbouring council, by the end of the year it was a fully NDC post 


 for the first part of the year there was a Head of Human Resources shared with 
another council. This was replaced by a fully NDC Human Resources Manager 
who reports to the Chief Executive. 


The officer management structure is shown in the following diagram: 


 
 


There are clear lines of internal communication to ensure direction from and 
reporting to the Senior Management Team to assist with the monitoring of council 
business activities and decision making. 
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3.5 Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a 
scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which 
clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls 
required to manage risks 


The Constitution is available to the public on our website.  


Three key documents, which are included in the Constitution are: 


 the Scheme of Delegations 


 Standing Orders, and 


 Financial Procedure Rules 


which are available to all officers, Councillors, and the public via the council's 
intranet and website. 


Other documentation includes corporate policies or guidance on a range of topics 
such as: 


 Customer feedback and 
complaints 


 Data Protection 


 Freedom of Information 


 Anti-Fraud and Corruption 


 


 


 


 Information and 
Communication Technology 
Security  


 Whistleblowing 


 Email and Internet 


 Anti-Money Laundering  


 Data Quality 


 Performance Management 


 Project Management 


 File retention and disposal 


All the main council policies are also available on the website. 


 


3.6 Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff 


All policies are subject to internal review to ensure these are adequately maintained. 
There is regular engagement with staff through the Staff Consultation Panel on policy 
development, human resources issues, and the Code of Conduct. The council keeps 
all staff aware of changes in policy and new legislation as necessary, by a variety of 
means, and where appropriate arranges training for all or key members of staff.  


The council’s regime for overseeing standards of conduct for councillors changed 
significantly following enactment of the Localism Act 2011. The previous regime was 
abolished and replaced by an Ethics Committee, which is intended to fulfil part of the 
function of the previous standards regime; the remainder is now left to the police and 
the courts. 


The Ethics Committee and the Monitoring Officer provide advice, training and help to 
councillors on the ethical framework. Councillors and officers are made aware of their 
responsibilities, and the behaviours expected of them under the framework. 



http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_council_policies_and_plans/nonlgcl_council_constitution_for_north_devon_council.htm

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_councils/contact_us/nonlgcl_your_complaints.htm

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_councils/contact_us/nonlgcl_your_complaints.htm

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_councils/lgcl_data_protection_and_freedom_of_information/lgcl_privacy_and_data_protection.htm

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_councils/lgcl_data_protection_and_freedom_of_information/lgcl_privacy_and_data_protection.htm

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/anti_fraud_and_corruption_strategy.pdf

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/index/lgcl_council_government_and_democracy/lgcl_council_policies_and_plans.htm
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The management of and adherence to the council's wider statutory obligations relies 
heavily on devolved working arrangements, with Legal Services advising all services 
on legislation as required. 


The council has adopted a number of key documents and protocols that govern 
both Member and officer activities. These include: 


 A Protocol governing relationships between Members and Officers 


 Members Code of Conduct  


 Officers Code of Conduct  


The three above are part of the Constitution and therefore under review as mentioned 
in 3.4 above.  


In addition there are: 


 A separate Planning Code of Conduct 


 Members’ declarations of interest  


 Rules on the receipt and registration of any gifts and hospitality  


 A Confidential Reporting Code (i.e.  whistle blowing policy). However, dates 
from 2008 so a review has been included in the action plan below, 


 


3.7 Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in 
Cipfa’s “Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities” 


In 2006 the council formed an independent Audit Committee, with its own 
comprehensive Terms of Reference that adhere to Certified Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance. The council has delegated to the Audit 
Committee responsibility for ensuring the adequacy of governance arrangements. 


The Audit Committee must meet at least four times a year, which it did during 2013/14. 
At the meetings it: 


 considered the annual Audit Plan 


 agreed the risk-based annual strategy for internal audit 


 received all external and internal audit reports 


 monitored the implementation of action plans resulting from audit reports 


 reviewed the Corporate Risk Register 


 ensured that the Annual Governance Statement properly reflects the risk 
environment and any actions required to improve it 


 


3.8 Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies 
and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful 


The council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and various 
regulations in the performance of its functions. It has developed policies and 
procedures for its officers to ensure that, as far as possible, all officers understand 
their responsibilities both to the council and to the public.  
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A compulsory consultation checklist is completed for every report that is considered 
by the Executive. This ensures the active involvement of the council’s statutory officers 
in reviewing and advising on the financial, legal, constitutional and staffing implications 
associated with decisions. 


The council was accredited in July 2001 under the Investors in People Standard, 
which is a quality framework to ensure that the council’s employees have the right 
knowledge, skills, and motivation to work effectively. It has been repeatedly re-
accredited since then. 


Internal audit is an independent appraisal function that acts as a control that 
measures, evaluates and reports upon the effectiveness of internal controls, financial 
and others, as a contribution to the efficient use of resources within the council. 
External contractors carry out the function. The Annual Internal Audit Plan is used to 
map out the cyclical coverage of fundamental financial systems and other audits. The 
plan is based in large part on the council’s Corporate Risk Register, then amended 
following discussions with the Chief Financial Officer, and takes into account concerns 
identified by the Audit Committee. Work relating to prevention and detection of fraud 
and corruption is integrated into this audit planning process. 


Internal Audit publishes an annual report setting out its opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s internal control environment, providing 
details of any weaknesses that qualify this opinion and bringing to the attention of the 
council any issues particularly relevant to the preparation of this Statement. 


The adequacy of Internal Audit is tested by our External Auditors, Grant Thornton. 


The Council has delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility for ensuring the 
adequacy of governance arrangements. Both the Senior Management Team and the 
Audit Committee review and monitor all external and internal audit reports.  


A member of the Senior Management Team is designated as the council’s lead 
officer on risk management and chairs the Corporate Risk Group. The lead 
Councillor for risk management is the Leader of the Council. 


The council continues to develop and refine systems for identifying and evaluating all 
significant risks, via the Corporate Risk Group. The council has approved a Risk 
Management Framework as part of our Performance Management Framework.  


The risk management process involves identifying, analysing, determining 
appropriate controls, managing and monitoring risks. The identification of risks is 
derived from a top down (i.e. corporate) and a bottom up (i.e. service) process of risk 
assessment and analysis resulting in coverage of the whole council. The process 
prioritises the risks, resulting in a focus upon the key areas.  


 


3.9 Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the 
public 


The council’s whistleblowing policy, the Confidential Reporting Code, was reviewed 
in 2008 and is available to all officers and Councillors on Insite. 


The customer feedback and complaints system is managed corporately to facilitate 
the identification and reporting of trends. It is available to all officers and Councillors on 
Insite.  During the year the system was reviewed and updated. 
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3.10 Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in 
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 


An annual Member training and development programme was delivered. These 
include: 


 a variety of aspects of land use planning 


 customer feedback and complaints  


There is a targeted development programme for managers that, in addition to specific 
qualifications appropriate to their strategic role, has included three dozen middle 
managers undergoing the Chartered Management Institute’s level 5 qualification in 
Leadership & Management.  


  


3.11 Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the 
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and 
encouraging open consultation 


The council has a Constitution that details how the council operates, how decisions 
are made and the procedures to be followed. This ensures that these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to local people.  


The Executive is responsible for most decisions. Major decisions are published in 
advance in the Forward Plan, and will invariably be discussed in a meeting open to 
the public. All decisions must be in line with the council's overall policies and budget. 
Any decisions the Executive wishes to take outside the budget or policy framework 
must be referred to council as a whole to decide.   


We have a well-established Community Consultation Framework that guides and 
co-ordinates the consultation exercises we conducted during the year. The 
management of the consultations is through our on-line tool “Consultation Finder”. 


The council publishes a range of ‘open’ data on the website, including expenditure 
data. This is to increase the transparency of the organisation. It also uses social 
media such as Facebook and twitter to engage new audiences.  


Members have a weekly information sheet and a monthly newsletter to keep them 
up to date. Home computers are offered to all Members. 


At Full Council meetings a ‘Question time’ gives members the opportunity to ask 
questions of the Leader and Executive Councillors. Similarly the public can also ask 
questions of the Chair, Leader and Executive Members. 


 


3.12 Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships 
and other group working. 


There are annual performance reports from key partners to the Executive. These 
include: 


 North Devon Theatres Trust 


 North Devon + 


 North Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 



https://engagespace.co.uk/devon/northdevon/default.aspx
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4 Review of effectiveness 


4.1 Background 


The council has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of its governance 
framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 
informed by  


 the work of council officers who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of governance environment 


 the annual report of internal audit, and  


 comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates 


 assurance work completed during the year and up until the point that this 
Annual Governance Statement is approved. 


The main processes that have been relied upon by North Devon Council in reviewing 
and maintaining the effectiveness of the system of internal control are highlighted 
below. 


Underpinning all the council’s arrangements is its Constitution. As mentioned in 3.4 
and 3.6 above the Constitution being reviewed. This is included in the action plan 
below. 


 


4.2 The Council 


The Council has overall responsibility for governance and exercises much of this 
through delegation, including: 


 Formal delegation of risk management and audit issues to the Audit 
Committee 


 Formal delegation to operate an effective internal audit service to the Chief 
Finance Officer 


 Appointment of an Ethics Committee to support the Member Code of 
Conduct 


Council receives reports from the Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the 
Audit Committee, and the Procedures Committee on the achievement of the 
Committees' work programmes and on any issues they consider should be brought to 
the attention of Council. 


At each Council meeting a "question time" allows any Member of the Council an 
opportunity to formally ask the Leader or any Member of the Executive questions 
without notice on any matters falling within their sphere of responsibility. Members of 
the public can also ask questions, but then need to be submitted in advance in writing. 


 


4.3 The Executive  


The Executive has responsibility for preparing the council’s Corporate Plan, Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and budgets for approval by Council. It has responsibility for 
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determining targets and for monitoring performance against them. It is also 
responsible for securing continual improvement.  


It exercises its role by: 


 preparation of the Corporate Plan,  


 annual preparation of the Medium Term Financial Strategy, revenue budget 
and capital programme for approval by Council  


 monitoring of financial and non financial performance against targets through 
the quarterly Performance and Financial Management report 


 taking decisions in the year which are in line with the policy and budgetary 
framework, or recommending changes to the policy and budgetary 
framework to Full Council  


 taking decisions on changes to targets and agreeing service improvement 
plans 


Following public consultation Council decided to adopt the ‘strong leader’ system of 
governance. This has resulted in a Leader being appointed for four years rather 
annually and the Leader, rather than Council, selecting the members of the Executive. 
Since 2011 the Leader has delegated all his powers to the Executive collectively. 


In this year the Executive has delivered services within a significantly reduced budget 
against a background of the largest reduction in public spending since the 1920s and a 
Government policy agenda that increasingly devolves financial and business risk to 
local authorities.  Dealing with this situation in the future has been included in the 
action plan below, 


 


4.4 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  


The Overview and Scrutiny Committee exercises its role in holding the Executive to 
account by: 


 scrutiny of the Corporate Plan 


 scrutiny of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 


 scrutiny of the budget and capital programme proposed by the Executive 
prior to their presentation to Council 


 scrutiny of all four quarterly Performance and Financial Management reports, 
and 


 delivering its annual work programme 


 


4.5 Ethics Committee  


The year saw the end of the previous national scheme for maintaining standards of 
conduct. A new regime with an Ethics Committee was introduced in 2012/13 following 
implementation of the Localism Act 2011. The new regime relies on the legal system 
to deal with any serious misdeeds or allegations. Lesser matters are dealt with by the 
Ethics Committee, which has much weaker powers than the previous Standards 
Committee. 
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The Ethics Committee has duties relating to: 


 promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by District, Parish and 
Town councillors and co-opted members 


 advising and training councillors and co-opted members on matters relating 
to their code 


 receiving allegations and deciding whether any action needs to be taken 


 


4.6 The Audit Committee 


In this financial year the Audit Committee has met four times. Its work has included: 


 reviewed the Corporate Risk Register  


 received all internal and external audit reports 


 received monitoring reports at every meeting on progress with completion of 
internal and external audit recommendations and action plans from previous 
Annual Governance Statements 


 reviewing its own effectiveness. Although it should be noted while some 
Members of the committee were fully engaged in this others were less so. 


 


4.7 Internal Audit  


Internal Audit is responsible for objectively reviewing the council’s internal systems of 
control with a view to reporting on and making recommendations to management with 
regard to their effectiveness for managing business risk and achieving the 
organisation’s objectives 


Internal Audit reviews are designed to assess the effectiveness of the internal controls 
on which the council relies for managing risk. There is an annual risk-based internal 
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. During the year Internal Audit undertook 
25 audits, for all bar one, they were able to report substantial assurance that there was 
a basically sound system. 


In their annual report Internal Audit is of the view that overall there was one are of 
concern, relating to the IT Disaster Recovery Plan this was given limited assurance as 
a number of areas were identified where the control environment needed 
improvement.  The Council have accepted the recommendations which are currently 
being addressed. This has been included in the action plan below.  


Their effectiveness in carrying out this function is assessed by the Audit Committee. 


The service is provided through an external supplier enabling access to a wide variety 
of skills and specialist practitioners. During the year the ownership of the supplier 
changed from Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Ltd to Mazars Public 
Sector Internal Audit Ltd. However, this did not change the quality of the service 
received by the council, which external audit has agreed is adequate. 
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4.8 External Audit  


In September 2012 the appointment of our new external auditors, Grant Thornton, took 
effect.  


The 2012/13 Annual Audit Letter (received in September 2013) identified that: 


“The Council needs to develop a detailed plan for savings required in 2014/15 to 
achieve a balanced budget, and an outline plan for 2015/16. In particular members 
should take a decision on the implementation of proposed changes to Waste 
management.” This has been included in the action plan below. 


 


4.9 Other external agencies 


The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) reports on each council every year. The 
latest available report is for the year preceding the period covered by this statement. In 
2012/13 the LGO received 19 complaints about NDC. In the preceding four years the 
numbers were 23, 23, 17, and 25 respectively. 


In previous years the LGO has provided more information on categories of complaints 
and response times. However, the LGO’s systems changed in the year so this is not 
available to councils. 


The Investors in People review has been used as a useful stimuli to prepare and 
implement improvements to: 


 staff morale  


 the performance appraisal process  


 internal communications 


 management capabilities 


This resulted in a successful re-accreditation in February 2014. 


4.10 Statutory Officers (i.e. Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer, and 
Monitoring Officer) 


The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service. 


The Chief Financial Officer has statutory responsibility under section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. This officer covers both North Devon and Torridge Councils. 


The Monitoring Officer has a statutory responsibility to ensure the legality of 
transactions, activities and arrangements the council enters into. For the first part of 
the year the Monitoring Officer covered both North Devon and Torridge Councils. By 
the end of the year a purely North Devon appointment was made.  


All reports presented to Committee for decision making require the legal, financial, and 
staffing implications to be explicitly detailed. The council’s Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Financial Officer, and Monitoring Officer consider these reports, along with their 
implications.  


Each officer also provided on-going advice in connection with both the financial and 
legal standing of council business, including monthly reviews of the council’s 
expenditure against the budget. 
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In the course of the year the council's Monitoring Officer has not had to report on any 
proposal, decision or omission by the council, any committee or officer, that has 
contravened or is likely to contravene any enactment or rule of law, or on any formal 
report by the Local Government Ombudsman finding maladministration causing 
injustice. 


At the end of the year all statutory officers signed a statement assuring that there 
were no significant governance issues that are not covered in this Annual Governance 
Statement. 


 


4.11 Senior Management Team 


The Senior Management Team meets each week to develop policy issues and also 
considers internal control issues, including risk management, performance 
management, compliances, efficiency and value for money, and financial 
management. 


During the year all external and internal audit reports were considered by the Senior 
Management Team before agreement of the recommendations. This ensured the 
action that stemmed from them was properly integrated into the council’s activity. 


The Senior Management Team reviewed and updated the Corporate Risk Register, 
supported by the Corporate Risk Management Group. 


The council’s performance was reviewed quarterly. The Senior Management Team are 
the first step in the chain of monitoring and action that culminated in Executive 
decisions on the Performance and Financial Management Report.  


All members of Senior Management Team have responsibility for maintaining a 
system of sound internal controls and management processes within their area of 
responsibility, and for reviewing their effectiveness. Each has completed an 
Assurance Statement for their area confirming that a sound system of internal control 
has been in place throughout the financial year, and identifying any areas that are less 
robust. 


 


4.12 Corporate Risk Management Group 


This group is chaired by the council’s lead officer on risk management. Its function is 
to support the Audit Committee and the Senior Management Team. Its terms of 
reference are to: 


 review the Corporate Risk Register quarterly to ensure it is up to date, and report 
to the Senior Management Team on the adequacy of actions taken and any major 
unmitigated risks 


 report on the Corporate Risk Register to the Audit Committee 


 undertake or facilitate, with the Senior Management Team, annual horizon 
scanning exercise to link with the planning process 


 support the Annual Governance Statement generation process 
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4.13 Health and Safety 


There are established risk assessment and incident reporting processes. These are 
supported by framework risk assessments for ‘office work’, ‘office work at home’ ‘site 
visits’, ‘driving at work’, and ‘attendance at exhibitions’. These are available to all 
officers on the council’s intranet. In addition there are a range of information sheets. 


The Senior Management Team and the council’s Health Safety, and Welfare 
Committee (a joint staff/Member/management committee) met six times in the year 
and received incidence statistics with notes of trends and actions taken. These fora 
support the Health and Safety Advisor’s introduction of improvements and updates to 
guidance or practices to mitigate risks/incidence issues. 


There are reports to the Chief Executive and the Senior Management Team when 
issues arise.  


 


4.14 Information Management and Security 


The Council holds a great deal of information and personal data to support the delivery 
of services. The security of that information is of paramount importance. The 
Information Management Group monitors compliance with the Information Security, 
Email, Internet, and Data Protection Policies. It has responsibility for ensuring that 
procedures are in place to reinforce the policies and for ensuring that specific training 
and guidance is provided at all levels within the Council. It reports to the Senior 
Management Team as issues arise.  


 


4.15 Procurement 


As the council’s resources decrease the robustness of its procurement process 
becomes even more critical to organisational success. Implementation of 
improvements have been included in the action plan below. 
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5 Significant governance issues 


North Devon Council has considered the outcomes of the governance arrangements 
referred to in this Statement. Where appropriate action plans have been developed to 
ensure the continuous improvement of the council’s internal control, risk management 
and corporate governance arrangements. 


The following governance issues were identified during 2013/14 as a result of the 
review of arrangements: 


 


Areas identified by an internal review of governance arrangements  


Issue Action 


1  The Council needs to develop a plan 
for savings for 2015/16 and beyond. 


This is being addressed as a matter of 
urgency by the Executive. 


2 The IT Disaster Recovery Plan is out of 
date. 


Review and updated the IT Disaster 
Recovery Plan. 


3 The Constitution is out of date in places. Complete the rewriting of the 
Constitution. 


4 Potential for severe disruption of council 
services by extreme weather events, 
such a localised flooding of council 
property. 


A review of all business continuity 
plans. 


5 Improve the council’s procurement 
processes. 


Implementation of the agreed 
procurement improvement plan. 


6 Confidential Reporting Code (i.e. the 
whistle blowing policy) has not been 
reviewed since 2008. 


Review and refresh the code. 


 


No additional risk areas were identified by either our external or internal auditors.  
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6 Certification 


We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework to address weaknesses and ensure 
continuous improvement of the system is in place. 


 


We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to 
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will 
address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness 
and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 


 


Signed: 


 


 


 


Councillor Brian Greenslade ………………………………………………… 


Leader  


 


 


 


 


Mike Mansell   …………………………………………………  


Chief Executive 
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This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract dated 14 
September 2011 between North Devon District Council and Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited


 [1]
.  This 


report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of North Devon District Council.  This report must not 
be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to any third party who purports to use or rely, for 
any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 


[1]
 As from 1 February 2014, Mazars LLP purchased the shares of Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit 


Limited from Deloitte LLP.  The company will be known as Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 
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1. Introduction 


1.1 This report sets out the final internal audit activity for 2013/14 and the activity to date in 
2014/15 for North Devon District Council.  It also includes a report summarising the National 
Fraud Initiative (NFI) for 2012/13. 


1.2 The purpose of internal audit is to provide Members and the Chief Executive, through the 
Audit Committee, with an independent and objective opinion on risk management, control and 
governance and their effectiveness in achieving North Devon District Council’s agreed 
objectives.  In order to provide this opinion, we are required to review annually the risk 
management and governance processes within North Devon District Council and on a cyclical 
basis, the operation of internal control systems within the organisation.   


 


2. COMPLETION OF THE 2013/14 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 


2.1 Appendix II details the 2013/14 Audit Plan and shows the status of work to date, the number of 
days delivered, together with the assurance level at the time of the audit and the number of 
recommendations raised. The 2013/14 Plan is now complete with the exception of:  


Network Infrastructure / Virtualisation audit – The Audit Committee agreed at the 20 May 
2014 meeting to the 2014/15 plan and which included the transfer of this audit; and 


Follow- Up audit – this has been issued as a draft. 


 


2.2 Since the last Audit Committee, we have issued the following final reports and these appear 
as full reports on the Audit Committee’s agenda. The definitions for each of the assurance 
levels are provided in Appendix I. 


Crematorium Return Substantial 


Theatres & Museum Substantial 


Private Sector Renewal Substantial 


Contracts & Capital Expenditure Substantial 


VAT Substantial 


 


Significant Control Weaknesses 2013/14 


2.3 Based on the work we have undertaken since the last Audit Committee meeting, there are no 
new Priority One recommendations to be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee. 


 


Performance of the Internal Audit Service   


2.4 The following table details the Internal Audit service performance for the 2013/14 year, 
measured against the key performance indicators set out in the Internal Audit Quality Plan.   


No. Performance indicator  Target  Actual  


1. A close out meeting to be held for each audit 
 


100% 100% 


2. Average period between the close out meeting and 
issue of the draft report   


15 days 16 days 


3. Average period between the receipt of final 
management responses and issue of the final report  
 


10 days  3 days 


4. Average customer satisfaction score (measured by 
survey for each audit) – (Target is 85% of 3 or above)  
5=Very good; 4=Good; 3=Satisfactory; 2=Poor; 1= Very poor 


3 3.5 
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3. PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2014/15 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  


3.1 Appendix III details the 2014/15 Audit Plan and shows the status of work to date and the 
number of days delivered.  The following table summarises progress against the plan:  


Number of audits in plan  28  


Number of audits finalised  0 0% 


Number of audits issue at draft  0 0% 


Number of audits in progress 4 14% 


 
Significant Control Weaknesses 2014/15 


3.2 Based on the work we have undertaken, there are no Priority One recommendations to be 
brought to the attention of the Audit Committee. 


Performance of the Internal Audit Service   


3.3  There has been insufficient activity in 2014/15 to report on the agreed key performance 
indicators set out in the Internal Audit Quality Plan.  This will be re-introduced at the next 
meeting.   


 


4. NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE (NFI)   


4.1 The NFI is a data matching exercise. It compares information held by and between around 
1,300 organisations including councils, the police, hospitals and almost 100 private 
companies. This helps to identify potentially fraudulent claims, errors and overpayments, all 
hosted on a secure website.  When there is a match, there may be something that warrants 
investigation.  For example, when data matching shows a person listed as dead and also in 
receipt of a pension, the relevant body will investigate and, if appropriate, stop pension 
payments. 


4.2 The following are extracts, relevant to the Council, from the Audit Commission’s National 
Fraud Initiative National Report – June 2014. 


Since the last report in May 2012 the NFI in England has identified £203 million of fraud, 
overpayment and error.  This is made up of £144 million for 2012/13 and £59 million of 
outcomes not previously reported from earlier exercises. 


Single person discount matching continues to yield significant results, with £39 million of 
incorrectly awarded discounts being identified since the matches were released in February 
2012. 


Housing benefit accounts for a significant proportion of the total fraud identified through the 
NFI.  During the 2012/13 exercise, the NFI has helped to uncover benefit fraud, overpayment 
and error worth £33 million, 16 per cent of the NFI’s total outcomes in England. 


Since the last NFI report, social landlords were able to recover 86 properties from those in 
unlawful occupation and reallocate the properties to tenants in genuine need of them. 


The NFI matches immigration data from the Home Office against data, such as housing 
benefit claims, employee payroll records and social housing tenants.  Aggregate outcomes 
across the NFI datasets for this reporting period amount to £12.2 million and include:  


 the dismissal or resignation of 120 employees from 64 organisations, including local 
authorities, NHS hospitals and NHS foundation trusts; 


 councils identifying 61 housing benefit overpayments amounting to £1.1 million; 


 the recovery of 11 social housing properties; 
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 the removal of 28 individuals from the UK; and 


 employers identifying £9 million of salary payments to illegal workers. 


4.3 At Appendix IV there is a summary of the results for the Council and shows that the Council 
has cleared the majority of recommended matches in the priority / high risk reports and in 
many cases examined significant numbers of further matches.  This has resulted in recovery 
of £1,682 where the Council has identified error.  Evidence of fraud has not been detected.  


 


5. Action Required   


5.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note our progress report. 
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Appendix 1 - Definitions 


Our internal audit assurance opinions are defined as follows: 


Full 
Assurance 


There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being consistently 
applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / or 
there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 


Limited 
Assurance 


Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil 
Assurance 


Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance with 
basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


Our internal audit recommendations are prioritised as follows: 


Priority 1 Major organisational issues to be addressed for the attention of senior management and the Audit Committee. 


Priority 2 Important local issues to be addressed by senior and local management in their areas of responsibility. 


Priority 3 Minor / best practice issues to be addressed by local management. 


Medium 


Low 


High 
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Appendix II – Completion of the Internal Audit Plan 2013/14   


No. Audit Title Planned 


Days 


Days 


Delivered 


Assurance Priority 


One 


Priority 


Two 


Priority 


Three 


Status 


1 Risk Management and Corporate 
Governance  


10 10 Substantial 0 2 1 Final Report 


2 Creditors (Key Controls Testing) 5 5 Substantial 0 1 1 Final Report 


3 Debtors (Key Controls Testing) 5 5 Substantial 0 1 3 Final Report 


4  Payroll 10 10 Substantial 0 3 1 Final Report 


5 Cash Collection 


 


6 6 Substantial    Final Report 


6 Council Tax & NNDR 15 15 Substantial 0 3 0 Final Report 


7 Main Accounting System & 
Budgetary Control 


10 10 Substantial 0 0 4 Final Report 


8 Treasury Management 5 5 Substantial 0 1 1 Final Report 


9 Homelessness Services including 
temporary accommodation 


6 6 Substantial 0 2 0 Final Report 


10 Housing Benefits 12 12 Substantial 0 3 1 Final Report 


11 Efficiency Savings 


 


7 7 Substantial 0 2 0 Final Report 


12 Waste Management (Refuse & 
Recycling) 


8 8 Substantial 0 3 0 Final Report 


13 Housing Needs, including Choice 
Based Lettings and Mortgage 
Rescue Plan. 


7 7 Substantial 0 0 0  Final Report 


14 Private Sector Renewal 8 8 Substantial 0 0 1 Final Report  


15 Street Cleansing 7 7 Substantial 0 2 0 Final Report 


16 Licensing 6 6 Substantial 0 1 0 Final Report 
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No. Audit Title Planned 


Days 


Days 


Delivered 


Assurance Priority 


One 


Priority 


Two 


Priority 


Three 


Status 


17 One Stop Shop/Customer Service 
Centre 


7 7 Substantial 0 0 2 Final Report 


18 Network Infrastructure / 
Virtualisation 


10 -     Transferred to 2014/15  


19 IT Disaster Recovery 6 6 Limited 3 5 1 Final Report 


20 IBS Revenues & Benefits 8 8 Substantial 0 2 0 Final Report 


21 Contracts & Capital Expenditure 7 7 Substantial 0 0 1 Final Report 


22 VAT 


 


7 7 Substantial 0 2 1 Final Report 


23 Members Expenses and 
Allowances 


6 6 Substantial 0 2 1  Final Report 


24 Theatre/Museum 6 6 Substantial 0 3 0  Final Report 


25 
Follow Up 


10 10 Not 
applicable 


    Draft Report 


26 Crematorium 2 2 Substantial 0 1 1  Final Report 


 Contingency 15 8     Additional work required on One Stop 
Shop/Customer Service Centre (two days) 
and Staff Expenses (six days) 


 Audit Management/ NFI 24 24 


 


     


  235 218*  3 39 20  


 
* The difference between the planned and delivered days (17 days) is due to the transfer of Network Infrastructure / Virtualisation to 2014/15 (10 days) and not using 
all the contingency days (7 days).
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Appendix III – Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 


 


 Audit Title Planned 
Days 


Days 
Delivered 


Anticipated 
Risk Level 


Proposed 
Quarter 


 Additional Details 


1. Risk Management and 
Corporate Governance 


10  High Q4  


2. Creditors 5  High Q2  


3. Debtors 5  High  Q2  


4. Payroll 10  High Q3  


5. Staff Expenses (including 
Mileage Claims) 


6  Medium Q2 


(July) 


 


6. Cash Collection 6  High Q2  


7. Council Tax & NNDR 15  High Q2  


8. Main Accounting System & 
Budgetary Control 


10  High Q3  


9. Treasury Management 5  High Q3  


10. Homelessness Services 
including temporary 
accommodation 


10 1 High Q1 Commenced 1 July 2014 


11. Housing Benefits 12  High Q2  


12. Efficiency Savings 7  High Q4  


13. Equality & Diversity 5 3 Low Q1 Fieldwork completed – report being quality assured 


14. Regeneration Projects 6  Medium Q2  


15. Parking Operations 7 4 Medium Q2 Fieldwork completed – report being quality assured 
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 Audit Title Planned 
Days 


Days 
Delivered 


Anticipated 
Risk Level 


Proposed 
Quarter 


 Additional Details 


16. Building Control  7  Medium Q2  


17. Affordable Housing 5  Medium Q2  


18. Commissioning & 
Procurement 


10  Medium Q3  


19. Virus Protection / Spyware 6  High Q4  


20. Network Infrastructure / 
Virtualisation 


10  High Q4  


21. Data Backup 6  High Q4  


22. NatWest PayAway BACS 4  High Q4  


23. Shared Services   Medium  Number of days required for this audit has not been shown as it is 
unclear at this stage whether this audit will fall to this year or 2015/16.  
If it is before 2015/16 then the days will be from contingency. 


24. Fraud Management  10 7 N/A Q1 Fieldwork completed 


25. Emergency Planning 8  High Q3  


26 Safeguarding  8  High Q3  


27. Follow Up 10  N/A Q4 Follow up of any audit area scoring a low assurance grade in prior year. 


28. Crematorium 6 


2 


 N/A Q4 Examination of operational controls and undertaking the usual testing to 
support the Head of Finance with completion of  Audit Certificate.   


29. Contingency  18    The plan takes into consideration any risk areas for potential coverage 
identified throughout the year. 


30. Audit Management 24 6    


 Total 250 21    
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Appendix IV – NFI (High Priority 2012/13 matches)  


 Recommended 
matches  


Recommended 
matches completed 


Recommended 
matches In progress 


Recommended 
matches Not started 


Total 
completed 
matches 


Outcome 


Housing Benefit Claimants to Student 
Loans 


12 10 1 1 10 0 


Housing Benefit Claimants to Payroll 4 3 1 0 31 0 


Housing Benefit Claimants to 
Pensions 


4 3 1 0 43 0 


Housing Benefit Claimants to In-
Country Immigration 


1 1 0 0 1 0 


Housing Benefit Claimants to 
Housing Benefit Claimants 


1 1 0 0 14 0 


Housing Benefit Claimants to Taxi 
Drivers 


2 1 1 0 8 0 


Duplicate creditors by address detail 0 0 0 0 201 
£182 - 
error 


Duplicate records by invoice 
reference, invoice amount and 
creditor reference 


8 8 0 0 28 0 


Duplicate records by invoice amount 
and creditor reference 


60 60 0 0 335 0 


VAT overpaid 14 14 0 0 22 0 


Duplicate records by supplier invoice 
number and invoice amount but 
different creditor reference and name 


0 0 0 0 26 
£1,500 - 


error 
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Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our 
work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all 
improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you 
for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not 
be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management 
practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed 
by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal 
control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against 
collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by management as 
being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access 
to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the 
authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by 
management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


Bristol 


June 2014 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, 
without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name or this document for any other purpose, 
disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or 
communicate them to any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any 
purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown or gains access to 
this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  
Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm 
of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 








Elizabeth Cave 
Director 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Hartwell House, 
55 – 61 Victoria Street, 
Bristol. 
BS1 6FT 
 
Dear Liz 
 
Audit of the Financial Statements – Compliance with International 
Auditing Standards 
 
In response to your letter we would like to confirm the following information 
and assurances. 
 
Question 1 - Management Processes in relation to: 
 


 Undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud; 


 Identifying and responding to risks of breaches of internal control 
 Identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation   


 Communicating to employees its views on business practice and 
ethical behaviour; and 


 
Throughout the year the Council’s Internal Audit Service completes a 
scheduled annual audit plan, which audits all the Council’s significant and key 
financial systems.  This plan is developed by the Head of Internal Audit using 
a risk based approach discussed with the Head of Finance and Chief 
Executive and reported to the Audit Committee who are responsible for 
approving the audit plan. 
 
Audit reports are reviewed by senior management who are provided with 
levels of assurance on how the controls within these systems are operating.  
Where instances of control weaknesses or issues are reported an action plan 
often recommended by Internal Audit is produced, approved where necessary 
by senior management, then assigned to officers to implement.  The report 
and action plan is reported to the Audit Committee.  Action plans are 
monitored and progress against actions is reported to the Audit Committee on 
a regular basis  
 
The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which 
incorporates data matching exercises designed to identify fraud across 
Council systems.  Managers particularly within the Finance Team are 
responsible for ensuring that the data matching reports are dealt with. 
 
Progress on the latest data matches for NFI is currently being reviewed and 
will be reported to the Audit Committee. 
 







The Council has a number of corporate policies and guidance on a range of 
topics including anti-fraud and corruption, anti-money laundering, IT security, 
etc. which all members of staff are made fully aware of.   
 
In addition to the above, reviews of the Council’s statement of accounts are 
undertaken by the Accountancy Team and the Chief Financial Officer to 
provide an overall general opinion.  Capacity is included in the closedown 
timetable to allow these reviews. 
 
Key officers within the Finance Team receive regular training to ensure that 
they maintain their levels of knowledge and expertise on an annual basis. 
 
Therefore we are of the opinion that the Council operates within a sufficiently 
robust framework to mitigate the potential for loss or misstatement due to 
fraud. 
 
Question 2 – Management’s awareness of any actual or alleged 
instances of fraud 
 
The council has recently submitted its response to “protecting the Public 
Purse – 2013/14 Audit Commission fraud and corruption survey”.  Responses 
to the survey are co-ordinated by the s151 Officer from officers across the 
council in order to gain assurance that any instances are captured and 
recorded.  Outside of Council Tax and Housing Benefit service there were no 
other instances of fraud. 
 
Question 3 – How does the Audit Committee gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? 
 
The Audit Committee receives two key documents that provide assurance in 
this area.   
 
Twice yearly the Council’s Corporate Risk Register is reported, which 
identifies the key risks facing the Council that have the potential to impact on 
delivery of its objectives.  The officer group responsible for the process of 
review of the  risk includes the Head of Finance and Head of Legal Services.  
Changes in legislation and compliance where they have a material impact on 
the Council’s business are reviewed. 
 
The second document, which is produced, reviewed and updated as 
necessary on an annual basis is the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  
This provides assurance that all services are compliant with relevant laws and 
regulations through the provision of a signed statement from each of the 
Heads of Service, s151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive.  This 
is currently being developed and will be reported to the July Audit Committee. 
 
Question 4 - Whether we are aware of any potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements 
 







The Legal Services team have confirmed that there are no potential actions 
against the Council that would affect the financial statements. 
 
In addition the schedule of questions has been completed and attached.. 
  
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Adam Bradford    Steve Hearse 
Chairman      Head of Financial Services 
Audit Committee     (Chief Finance Officer)     
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Foreword by the Chief Financial Officer 
 
Introduction 
 
The purpose of this foreword is to provide the reader with an easily understandable 
guide to the most significant financial matters reported in the Accounts. This foreword 
also acts as the Council’s Annual Report, which highlights the major influences on 
the Council’s expenditure and income and comments on the Council’s overall 
financial position and performance against the Corporate Plan. 
 
A Review of the Financial Year 
 
The business of managing the Council’s finances presents a number of significant 
challenges with over £60m passing through our books in a year. 
 
The Challenges 
 
The world economic conditions continued to dominate, which made 2013/14 another 
challenging year for everyone: the Council being no exception.  Returns on 
investments continued to be low due to unprecedented low interest rates.   
 
The Council had forecast to receive less revenue during the year and continued 
implementing plans to reduce expenditure with careful planning and consideration to 
ensure service provision was not unduly compromised.     
 
However, the Council recognises that the impact the recession has had on Public 
Finances will continue well beyond 2013/14.  The Council’s Corporate Plan (2011-
2015) was updated in September 2013 to reflect the changed landscape we now 
face and the reality of the significant cuts to government grant support which have 
been extended into 2015/16.  We are forecasting reductions beyond 2015/16 as 
there are no indications that austerity measures will come to an end. 
 
Due to cuts in government grant and the poor economic situation, the Council has 
reduced its revenue budget by £3m (to around £12m for 2013/14) with the loss of 
around 70 jobs.  Income streams have also been affected by the current poor 
economic conditions.   
 
The recent spending review announced by the Chancellor means that we will need to 
reduce the budget by a further £2m by 2015/16 which means that over a relatively 
short period of time the Council’s budget will have fallen by one third. 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is currently being reviewed to take 
account of these significant financial challenges and will continue to be updated as 
we move into 2015/16 in light of the Chancellor’s spending plan announcement 
outlining further reductions in Government funding for Local Authorities. 
 
The national crisis for pensions funding continues to be a major concern for Local 
Government.  During the autumn of 2013 our actuary undertook the latest triennial 
review of the Pension scheme and costs.  The Local Government Pension Scheme 
has been reviewed nationally to ensure it meets the objectives of being viable and 







North Devon Council                               Statement of Accounts 2013/14 


Page 3 of 87 


acceptable to both employees and the employer resulting in changes to the scheme 
coming into force in April 2014.   
 
The full valuation of the pension fund through to 2016/17 informs the authority in 
terms of employer contribution levels, which will increase from 19.3% to 22.4%.  Due 
to these and a range of other factors the deficit on the pension fund increased slightly 
from £42.3m to £42.7m. 
 
Meeting the Challenges 
 
The Council already operates a robust financial planning regime through its approved 
five year rolling financial plan (the Medium Term Financial Strategy).  This plan seeks 
to achieve Council Tax increases in line with Central Government guidelines, at the 
same time, achieving budget improvement to help meet new challenges and priorities 
set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan.  
 
Whilst many of the economic conditions experienced during the year could not have 
been accurately predicted, prudent management of resources and a continued drive 
for efficiency provides the Council with a strong financial framework for dealing with 
these unprecedented and challenging financial circumstances.   
 
Capital Programme investment during 2013/14 was £1.8m compared to £4.1m in 
2012/13.  £0.4m was spent on the construction and purchase of new assets, £0.8m 
providing grants and other financial assistance and £0.6m on improvement works to 
already owned assets.  A further explanation of capital investment is highlighted in 
notes 11, 12, 13 and 14. 
 
Summary  
 
The financial challenge faced by the Council during the year will continue through 
2014/15 and beyond particularly whilst the Government continues implementing its 
plans to reduce public expenditure across all Government Departments.  Further 
remedial action will be required including close management of vacancies, reviewing 
reserve contributions and a general search for savings opportunities to meet the 
Council’s ongoing programme of investment and improvement in services, whilst 
meeting the challenge of reduced funding. 
 
The recommended level of general fund balance is 5%-10% of the council’s net 
revenue budget.  I am pleased to report that the combination of in year measures 
and robust budget management saw us through the financial pressures and resulted 
in us reaching the year-end with a general fund reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of 
£1.009m, which is a level of 8.3%. 
 
At the same time, the Council continued to meet its commitment to keep the Council 
Tax increase low by approving a 0% increase for 2013/14 financial year together with 
a freeze on the majority of fees and charges. 
 
The challenges of 2013/14 have now been dealt with and have been absorbed within 
our future financial plans, where necessary. 
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The Financial Statements 
 
The accounts contain a number of separate but inter-related statements.  These are 
described briefly below. 
 
Statement of Accounting Policies 
 
This statement describes the accounting concepts and policies adopted in the 
preparation of the accounts.  It contains a number of technical notes, none of which 
are unusual or which differ from the concepts adopted by the majority of other Local 
Authorities.  The Council complied with all recommended accounting practices 
contained within the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2013/14 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14, which is 
recognised by statute as representing proper accounting practices.  These principles 
provide the basis by which authorities present their net cost of services in the 
statement of accounts i.e. the classifications of service to be detailed in the service 
expenditure analysis in the top half of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are a suite of accounting 
standards used across the world and are the equivalent of the Financial Reporting 
Standards (FRSs) that were previously used in the United Kingdom. 
 
The 2013/14 financial statements have been produced in accordance with the above 
standards. 
 
Pension Liabilities 
 
The Net Cost of Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement includes current service costs and past service costs.  Net Operating 
Expenditure includes the Council’s share of the return on pensions assets and the 
net interest cost of the Council’s liability due to under-funding.   
 
The Council’s liability relating to the Devon County Council defined benefit pension 
scheme is included within the Balance Sheet.  The liability is £42.7m at 31st March 
2014 (£42.3m at 31st March 2013).  The amount the Council contributes to the 
Pension Fund is re-assessed every three years; the most recent review was in the 
autumn of 2013 and took effect from April 2014. This review incorporated a number 
of significant changes to the Local Government pension Scheme, which came into 
effect on 1 April 2014.  The next review is due in autumn 2016.  The Council has 
adjusted its contributions in line with the Actuaries recommendations. 
 
Note 42 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes provides more information on this area. 
 
Revenue Account 
 
Expenditure and income on everyday running costs, such as officers’ salaries, 
premises, transport, supplies and services is contained in the Council’s revenue 
account, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the income and 
expenditure for all the Council’s services and the net surplus/deficit for the year, 
before taking account of transactions provided under statute, which are shown in a 
separate statement called Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
The Council originally budgeted to spend £12.142m in 2013/14.  
 
Actual 31 March 2014  
 
As at 31 December 2013, the Council was reporting a net budget shortfall of 
£0.076m which we anticipated closing through Quarter 4.  I can report that due to 
effective budget management we were able to turn this around and we achieved a 
budget surplus by the end of the financial year. 
 
It is pleasing to report that the final out turn position is a budget surplus of (£0.249m), 
which is an overall movement of (£0.325m) from the last forecast at quarter 3.  The 
following table shows this movement: 
 
 


Service and cost area Worse/(better) 
£m 


Totals 
£m 


Q3 reported to Executive – February 2014  0.076 
Environmental Health & Housing  (0.087) 
Homelessness 
Local Welfare Support – officer time funded by grant 


(0.014) 
(0.040) 


 


Additional income generated 
Other 


(0.018) 
(0.015) 


 


Financial Services  (0.211) 
Council Tax Collection – reduced cost/additional income (0.154)  
Business Rate Retention Scheme – additional income 
Business Rate Retention Scheme –provision for appeals 


(0.268) 
0.211 


 


Human Resources 
Additional income generated 


 
(0.013) 


(0.013) 


Legal Services 
External Professional Services 
Other 


 
(0.010) 
(0.007) 


(0.017) 
 
 


Planning & Development Services  0.016 
Planning fee income – reduction on Q3 forecast 0.032  
External professional services 
Employee savings 


0.016 
(0.013) 


 


Local Plan reduced costs (0.019)  
Property & Technical Services  (0.055) 
Employee savings (0.011)  
Rock Park agency (0.010)  
Additional income generated (0.023)  
Other (0.011)  
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Service and cost area Worse/(better) 
£m 


Totals 
£m 


Works & Recycling Service  0.098 
Employee costs 0.054  
Sale of recycling materials 
Tipping Charges (commercial waste) 
Other 


0.030 
0.011 
0.003 


 


Corporate Services  (0.021) 
Additional income generated 
Reduced Audit costs 


(0.014) 
(0.010) 


 


Supplies and Services – reduced costs DRM (0.011)  
Other 0.014  
Other  (0.035) 
Interest receivable (0.012)  
Additional central government grant funding (0.023)  


Total  (£0.249m) 


 
A large proportion of the surplus has arisen from the accounting arrangements for the 
new Business Rate retention scheme.  Previously known as National Non Domestic 
Rates, under the previous scheme the Council acting as billing authority, paid all 
monies collected over to a national pool and received pre-determined funding back 
as part of the government settlement. 
 
The Business Rate retention scheme was introduced for 2013/14 which sees billing 
authorities receive a ‘baseline funding’ but in addition to this they are exposed to the 
risks and rewards of retaining a proportion of the income collected.  This is driven by 
collection rates, movements on the tax base and decisions on outstanding appeals; 
however this exposure is mitigated by participating in the Devon-wide pool that 
collate all of the Business Rate growth and decline and return a share of the impact 
to each local authority. 
 
In addition to the Business Rate baseline funding we prudently budgeted for an 
element of growth of (£0.187m) within the 2013/14 revenue budget.  The final 
position on the new scheme has yielded additional income over and above this 
growth of (£0.268m).  However, as mentioned above we are exposed to decisions, 
which are considered by the Valuation Office on appeals against the rateable values 
entered in the list.  If successful they are also normally backdated, therefore we have 
prudently set aside £0.211m (North Devon’s share) into a reserve to mitigate any 
impact this potentially could have on the revenue budget. 
 
From the overall revenue surplus of (0.249m), it has been decided to set aside  
£0.226m as an additional contribution into the Improvement Programme Reserve.   
The reason for this is the Council are committed to funding the one-off cost of 
voluntary redundancies / early retirements for posts approved at Personnel 
Committee on 28 April 2014.  The total one-off cost for 2014/15 year is £0.333m 
which is offset by in-year savings of (£0.142m), the remaining £0.191m to be funded 
from the Improvement Programme reserve.  There will then be on-going savings of 
(£0.273m) which will be factored into next year’s revenue budget and help reduce the 
funding gap for 2015/16. 
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The additional £0.035m being set aside into the Improvement Programme reserve is 
to cover costs in 2014/15 in relation to project and associated software costs to 
ensure all Council assets are registered with the Land Registry.   
 
The remaining balance from the surplus of £0.023m will be placed into the Council’s 
General Fund reserve.  The balance in this reserve will increase to £1.009m at 31 
March 2014.  The recommended level of general fund balance is 5%-10% of the net 
revenue budget; the Council’s balance above equates to 8.3% (2013/14) and moving 
forwards equates to 8.6% of the 2014/15 net revenue budget. 
 
The Council will hold a General Fund reserve of £1m and earmarked reserve 
balances of £4.4m: providing overall total reserves of £5.4m.  These balances enable 
North Devon Council to remain in a strong financial position to deal with the risks it 
faces and to continue to deliver upon its priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 
Within the accounts the Council also holds balances in relation to the North Devon 
Crematorium, which is provided under a joint arrangement with Torridge District 
Council.  The Council’s Balance Sheet contains a General Balance of £0.06m and 
Earmarked Reserve Balance of £0.43m, which represents North Devon’s estimated 
60% of the share of the Crematorium total holding. 
 
The Council’s net expenditure on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement was financed from the following sources: 
 
 
 £000 % 
Council Tax 6,598 47%
Government Grants 4,684 34%
Non Domestic Rates 2,722 19%
 14,004  


 
Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 
Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The Surplus (or Deficit) on 
the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the 
Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  These are different from the statutory amounts required 
to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes.  The Net 
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory 
General Fund balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked 
reserves undertaken by the Council. 
 
Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the assets and liabilities of the Council as a whole at 31 
March 2014. 
 
There are a number of detailed notes.  These include details of capital expenditure of 
the Council on fixed assets such as land and buildings as distinguished from revenue 
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expenditure or running costs.  During 2013/14, the Council invested £1.830m from its 
capital resources, analysed as follows: 
 
 2013/14
 £000
New assets being constructed 29
Purchase of vehicles and IT equipment 342
Providing grants and assistance 825
Statutory and Landlord Functions 634
Total 1,830
 
This compares to £4.1m spent in 2012/13. 
 
In 2008/09 the method of accounting for certain elements traditionally accounted for 
as Capital Expenditure changed.  Expenditure incurred on items, which includes 
disabled facilities grants and affordable housing, is now shown in the accounts as 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute.  It was previously known 
as deferred charges.   
 
The legislation still allows the expenditure to be funded from capital resources such 
as capital receipts.  However, the expenditure must be accounted for within the Cost 
of services of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement together with 
any grants received to offset expenditure.  The difference between expenditure and 
grant received is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement in order 
that there is no impact on Council Tax.  The reversal reflects the fact that the 
expenditure has already been funded from capital resources and a corresponding 
entry is made to the Capital Adjustment Account to reflect this. 
 
The Council plans to invest the following sums in the years indicated: 
 
2014/15 £8.0m 
2015/16 £0.7m 
Total  £8.7m 
 
This investment will be financed by: 
 
Capital receipts from the sale of assets £5.6m 
Earmarked reserves   £0.7m 
External grants and contributions  £1.1m 
Approved future external borrowing £1.3m 
Total      £8.7m 
 
The Balance Sheet contains the Authority’s Revenue Reserves, which are 
summarised below: 
 


31/03/13  31/03/14
£000  £000
986 General Revenue Account  1,008


2,573 Earmarked Reserves 4,412
3,559  5,420
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The Council has an overdraft facility of up to £500,000 with its bank subject to 
extension by agreement. Temporary borrowing from the money markets may occur 
during the year to meet temporary cash flow requirements.  
 
Borrowing for Capital Investment 
 
The Council has forecast that the capital investment can be fully funded over the 
investment period.  However, the timing and realisation of capital receipts can be 
impacted by events beyond the control of the Council.   
 
The Council is able to manage its cash flows for these projects through internal 
borrowing and also has authority to borrow up to a prudential borrowing limit of £5m 
from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) as outlined in the Treasury Management 
Annual Investment Strategy. 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
 
This statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from external 
transactions for both capital and revenue purposes.  
 
Collection Fund 
 
These Statements represent the transactions of the Collection Fund, a statutory fund 
separate from the main accounts of the Authority.  The Fund accounts independently 
for income from council tax and non-domestic rates on behalf of those authorities for 
which the income has been raised.   
 
Notes to the Accounts 
 
These provide the additional information and further explanation to the content of the 
Statements. 
 
Authorisation of the Statement of Accounts 
 
The Chief Financial Officer certified the Statement of Accounts 2013/14 on 30 June 
2014. This is also the date up to which events after the balance sheet date have 
been considered. 
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 
Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The Surplus (or Deficit) on 
the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the 
Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  These are different from the statutory amounts required 
to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes.  The Net 
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory 
General Fund balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked 
reserves undertaken by the Council. 
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Balance at 31st March 2012 
 
Movement in Reserves during 
2012/13 (re-stated) 


1,187 3,500 351 66
 


5,104 
 


34,848 39,952


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 
services 


(6,664) 0 0 0 (6,664) 0 (6,664)


Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 


0 0 0 0 0 (953) (953)


Total Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 


(6,664) 0 0 0 (6,664) (953) (7,617)


Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations (Note 6) 


5,536 0 (351) (5) 5,180 (5,180) 0


Net increase/decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 


(1,128) 0 (351) (5) (1,484) (6,133) (7,617)


Transfers to/from Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 7) 


927 (927) 0 0 (1) 1 0


Increase/decrease in 2012/13 (201) (927) (351) (5) (1,485) (6,132) (7,617)
   
Balance at 31st March 2013 
carried forward 


986 2,573 0 61 3,619 28,716 32,335
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Balance at 31st March 2013 
 
Movement in Reserves during 
2013/14 


986 2,573 0 61
 


3,619 
 


28,716 32,335


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 
services 


(6,311) 0 0 0 (6,311) 0 (6,311)


Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 


0 0 0 0 0 1,598 1,598


Total Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 


(6,311) 0 0 0 (6,311) 1,598 (4,713)


Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations (Note 6) 


8,172 0 0 0 8,172 (8,172) 0


Net increase/decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 


1,861 0 0 0 1,861 (6,574) (4,713)


Transfers to/from Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 7) 


(1,839) 1,839 0 0 0 0 0


Increase/decrease in 2013/14 22 1,839 0 0 1,861 (6,574) (4,713)
   
Balance at 31st March 2014 
carried forward 


1,008 4,412 0 61 5,480 22,142 27,622
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted practices, rather than the amount to be funded 
from taxation.  Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with 
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.  The taxation position is 
shown in the Movement In Reserves Statement. 
 
 


2012/13 (re-stated)  2013/14 
Gross 


Expenditure 
£000 


Gross 
Income 


£000 


Net 
Expenditure 


£000 


Gross 
Expenditure 


£000 


Gross 
Income 


£000 


Net 
Expenditure 


£000
     


9,696 (8,563) 1,133 Central Services to the 
Public 


2,002 (1,117) 885


1,465 (6) 1,459 Corporate and 
Democratic Core 


1,338 (5) 1,333


571 0 571 Non Distributed Costs 487 0 487
3,489 (356) 3,133 


 
Cultural and Related 
Services 


2,538 (265) 2,273


9,997 (2,755) 7,242 Environmental and 
Regulatory Services 


9,556 (3,033) 6,523


31,438 (29,583) 1,855 Housing Services 30,609 (28,566) 2,043
2,940 (3,746) (806) Highways and 


Transport Services 
5,014 (3,632) 1,382


4,770 (2,142) 2,628 Planning Services 4,761 (1,838) 2,923
64,366 (47,151) 17,215 Cost of services 56,305 (38,456) 17,849


1,933 (407) 1,526 Other operating 
expenditure (Note 8) 


1,468 (535) 933


2,166 (398) 1,768 Financing and 
investment income and 
expenditure (Note 9) 


1,772 (433) 1,339


0 (13,845) (13,845) Taxation and non-
specific grant income 
and expenditure  
(Note 10) 


194 (14,004) (13,810)


68,465 (61,801) 6,664 (Surplus) or deficit on 
Provision of Services 


59,739 (53,428) 6,311


      
0 (1,034) (1,034) Surplus or deficit on 


revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment 
assets 


671 0 671


1,987 0 1,987 Actuarial gains/losses 
on pension assets/ 
liabilities 


0 (2,269) (2,269)


1,987 (1,034) 953 Other Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 


671 (2,269) (1,598)


      
70,452 (62,835) 7,617 Total Comprehensive 


Income & Expenditure 
60,410 (55,697) 4,713
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BALANCE SHEET 
 
The balance sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and 
liabilities recognised by the Authority.  The net assets of the Authority (assets less 
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority.  Reserves are reported 
in two categories.  The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those 
reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to 
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for 
example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital 
expenditure or repay debt).  The second category of reserves is those that the 
Authority is not able to use to provide services.  This category of reserves includes 
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation 
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the 
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under regulations’.  
 
 


31st March 
2013 


 
£000 


Notes 31st March 
2014 


 
£000 


    
68,043 Property, Plant and Equipment 11 62,909 


839 Heritage Assets 12 871 
4,104 Investment Property 13 4,410 


45 Intangible Assets 14 28 
1,293 Long Term Debtors 15 1,249 


74,324 Long Term Assets  69,467 
    


0 Short Term Investments 15 0 
0 Assets Held For Sale 20 0 


142 Inventories 16 114 
3,160 Short Term Debtors 18 4,681 
5,354 Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 1,873 
8,656 Current Assets  6,668 


    
0 Short Term Borrowing 15 0 


(5,525) Short Term Creditors 21 (3,063) 
(761) Donated Assets Account 33 (761) 
(578) Provisions 22 (730) 


(6,864) Current Liabilities  (4,554) 
    


0 Long Term Borrowing 15 0 
(42,343) Defined Benefit Pension Scheme Liability  42 (42,663) 


(39) Finance Leases 36 0 
(1,399) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 33 (1,296) 


(43,781) Long Term Liabilities  (43,959) 
    


32,335 Net Assets  27,622 
    


3,619 Usable Reserves  5,480 
28,716 Unusable Reserves 23 22,142 


    
32,335 Total Reserves  27,622 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 
Authority during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the Authority 
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as 
operating, investing and financing activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising 
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the 
Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of 
services provided by the Authority.  Investing activities represent the extent to which 
cash outflows have been made for resources, which are intended to contribute to the 
Authority’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are 
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) 
to the Authority. 
 
 


2012/13 
£000 


 2013/14
£000


(re-stated) 
 


 


6,664 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 6,311
(7,309) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non 


cash movements 
(3,446)


115 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision 
of services that are investing and financing activities 


74


(530) Net cash flows from Operating Activities (Note 24) 2,939
3,729 Investing Activities (Note 25) 1,253
(926) Financing Activities (Note 26) (711)
2,273 Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3,481
   


(7,627) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (5,354)
5,354 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 1,873
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COLLECTION FUND  
 
These Statements represent the transactions of the Collection Fund, a statutory fund 
separate from the main accounts of the Authority.  The Fund accounts independently 
for income from council tax and non-domestic rates on behalf of those authorities for 
which the income has been raised.   
 
2013/14 Collection Fund 
 


 Business 
Rates
£000


Council 
Tax


£000


 
 Total 
£000 


Notes


     
INCOME 
 
Council Tax Receivable 


 
 


0


 
 


49,235


 
 


49,235 


 
 


39 
Business Rates Receivable 31,427 0 31,427 40 
Transitional Protection Payments Receivable 156 0 156  
 31,583 49,235 80,818  
 
Contribution to Previous Year’s Deficit 


  
 


Central Government 0 0 0  
North Devon Council 0 12 12  
Devon County Council 0 80 80  
Devon and Somerset Fire 0 5 5  
Devon and Cornwall Police 0 11 11  
 0 108 108 37 
 
Total Income 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 
Precepts, Demands and Shares 


31,583 49,343
 


80,926 
 


Central Government 16,492 0 16,492  
North Devon Council 13,193 6,538 19,731  
Devon County Council 2,969 34,428 37,397  
Devon and Somerset Fire 330 2,325 2,655  
Devon and Cornwall Police 0 5,024 5,024  
 
 
Charges to Collection Fund 


32,984 48,315 81,299  


Write offs of uncollectable amounts 178 108 286  
Increase/(Decrease) in provision for bad debts 217 251 468  
Increase/(Decrease) in provision for appeals 861 0 861  
Cost of Collection 202 0 202  
 1,458 359 1,817  
 
Total Expenditure 
 
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year 
Balance at beginning of the year 


 
34,442


 
(2,859) 


0


 
48,674


 
669 


(177)


 
83,116 


 
(2,190) 


(177) 


 


(Deficit)/Surplus at 31 March 2014 (2,859) 492 (2,367)  
    


 
The (£2,859k) represents the overall deficit on the non-domestic rate element of the Collection Fund at 31 March 
2014.  Of this balance 40% is attributable to North Devon Council, which equates to (£1,144k). 
 
The £492k represents the overall surplus on the council tax element of the Collection Fund at 31 March 2014.  Of 
this balance 10.6% is attributable to North Devon Council, which equates to £52k. 
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2012/13 Collection Fund 
 
 
 2012/13 


£000 
Notes 


   
EXPENDITURE   
Precepts   
 Devon County Council 39,084  
 North Devon District Council 7,339  
 Devon and Cornwall Police 5,592  
 Devon and Somerset Fire & Rescue 2,588  
    
Business Rates   
 Payments to National Pool 30,681  
 Costs of Collection 200  
    
Bad Debts Written Off (308)  
Increase in Provision For Bad Debts 492  
   
   
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 85,668  
   
INCOME   
Council Tax 46,969 39 
Business Rates 31,111 40 
Council Tax Benefits 7,520 41 
   
Contribution to Previous Year’s Revenue Account Deficit 108 37 
   
TOTAL INCOME 85,708  
   
(Deficit)/Surplus 40  
Balance at Beginning Of Year (217)  
   
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR (177)  
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 i. General Principles 
 
 The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for 


the 2013/14 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 
2014.  The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, which those 
Regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper 
accounting practices.   


 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14, supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued 
under Section 12 of the 2003 Act. 


 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is 
principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain 
categories of non current assets and financial instruments. 
 
These statements have been compiled on the basis of the Council 
remaining a going concern and all amounts have been rounded to the 
nearest £1,000. 


 
ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 


 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when 
cash payments are made or received.  In particular: 
 
• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority 


transfers the significant risk and rewards of ownership to the 
purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 


 
• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the 


Authority can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the 
transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.  


 
• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – 


where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and 
their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance 
Sheet. 


 
• Expenses in relation to services received including services 


provided by employees are recorded as expenditure when the 
services are received rather than when payments are made. 


 
• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is 


accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis 
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of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument 
rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 


 
• Where revenue and expenditure has been recognised but cash has 


not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant 
amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not be 
settled, the balance sheet of debtors is written down and a charge 
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 


 
iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
 Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial 


institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 
hours.  Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no 
more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in value. 


 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net 
of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the Authority’s cash management. 


 
iv. Exceptional Items 
 


When items of income and expense are material, their nature and 
amount is disclosed separately, either on the face of the 
comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to 
the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an 
understanding of the Authority’s financial performance. 


 
v. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 


Estimates and Errors 
 
 Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in 


accounting policies or to correct a material error.  Changes in 
accounting estimate are accounted for prospectively i.e. in the current 
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 


 
 Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 


accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant 
information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions 
on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless otherwise stated) 
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior 
period as if the new policy had always been applied. 


 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected 
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period. 
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There were no material errors discovered requiring amendments in the 
2013/14 statement of accounts. 


 
vi. Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets 
 
 Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the 


following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets 
during the year: 
 
• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service 


where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve 
against which the losses can be written off 


• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service 
 
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations.  However, it is 
required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the 
reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to either an 
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in 
accordance with statutory guidance (England and Wales).   
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are 
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by 
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in 
the Movement In Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two. 
 
The Council has no outstanding borrowing as at 31 March 2014 
therefore no contribution from revenue to reduce borrowing was 
necessary for 2013/14. 


 
vii. Employee Benefits 
 
 Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
 Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 


months of the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and 
salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non 
monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to 
the Authority.   


 
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements and time off in 
lieu earned by employees but not taken before the year end which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual 
is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following 
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the 
benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reserved out through the Movement in Reserves 
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statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the 
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 


 
 Termination Benefits 
 
 Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by 


the Authority to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal 
retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy 
and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the 
Authority is demonstrably committed to the termination of the 
employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. 


 
 Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, 


statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 
with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards.  In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the 
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year end. 


 
 Post Employment Benefits 
 
 Employees of the Authority are members of the Local Government 


Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by Devon County Council. 
 
 The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump 


sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Authority. 
 


Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined 
benefits scheme: 
 
• The liabilities of the Devon County pension fund attributable to the 


Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis 
using the projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates etc. and projections of projected earnings 
for current employees. 


 
• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a 


discount rate of 4.4% (annualised yield at the 18 year point on the 
Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond curve). 
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• The assets of the Devon County pension fund attributable to the 
Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
 
- Quoted securities – current bid price 
- Unquoted securities – professional estimate 
- Unitised securities – current bid price 
- Property – market value 
 


• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following 
components: 
 
- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of 


years of service earned this year – allocated in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements to the 
services for which the employees worked 


 
- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current 


year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 


 
- Net interest cost – the net interest expense for the authority – the 


change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that 
arises from the passage of time; charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 
liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a 
result of contribution and benefit payments. 


 
- Return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net 


interest on the net defined benefit liability - charged to the 
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 


 
- Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability 


that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions 
made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries 
have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 
- Contributions paid to the Devon County pension fund – cash 


paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in 
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 


 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the 
Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
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In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are 
appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.   
 
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required 
to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than 
as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards 
of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements.  Any liabilities 
estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted 
for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. 


 
 viii. Events after the Reporting Period 
 
 Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable 


and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period 
and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.  
Two types of events can be identified: 


 
• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of 


the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to 
reflect such events 


 
• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting 


period – the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such 
events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, 
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect. 


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not 
reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 


 ix. Financial Instruments 
 
  Financial Liabilities 
 
 Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 


Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at 
their amortised cost.   


 
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
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Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the 
liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at 
which it was originally recognised. 


 
As at 31 March 2014 the Council had no outstanding loans.  
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing 
are credited and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan 
portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing 
instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or 
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write 
down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest 
rate. 
 


  Financial Assets 
 
  Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 


• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments but are not quoted in an active market 


 
• Available for sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price 


and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments 
 
Loans and Receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument.   
 
The loans that the Authority has made to organisations are at less than 
market rates (soft loans).  When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to 
the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that will be 
foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised 
cost than the outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate 
of interest than the rate receivable from the organisations, with the 
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difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the 
Balance Sheet.   
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General 
Fund Balance is in the interest receivable for the financial year – the 
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  However, the Authority only has a minor value of 
loans outstanding (total long term loans outstanding as at 31st March 
2014 is £0.237m).  Therefore the amount presented in the Balance 
Sheet is simply the outstanding principal. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising 
from a past event that payments due under the contract will not be 
made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant 
service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  The impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the 
revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. 
 
Any gains or losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are 
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
Available For Sale Assets 
 
Available for sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when 
the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a 
financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value.  
Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  Where there are no 
fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it 
becomes receivable by the Authority. 
 
The Authority does not hold any available for sale assets. 


 
 x. Foreign Currency Translation 
 
 Where the Authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a 


foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the 
exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.  
Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, 
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they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31st March.  
Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 


 
 The Authority has a policy to deal with UK institutions only; therefore 


there are no foreign currency translation transaction in 2013/14. 
 
 xi. Government Grants and Contributions 
 
 Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government 


grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as 
due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that: 


 
• The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the 


payments; and 
 


• The grants or contributions will be received. 
 


Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions 
attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions 
are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution 
are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future 
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have 
not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors.  When 
conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or 
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non ring fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve.  Where it has been applied, it is posted to 
the Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 
once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 


 xii. Intangible Assets 
 
 Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical 


substance but are controlled by the Authority as a result of past events 
(e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
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economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset 
to the Authority. 


 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only re-
valued where the fair value of the assets held by the Authority can be 
determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no intangible 
asset held by the Authority meets this criterion and they are, therefore, 
carried at amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible 
asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.   
 
An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of 
an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


 
There were no impairments, disposals or abandonment of intangible 
assets during 2013/14. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure 
for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General 
Fund Balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds 
greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 


 
 xiii. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
 
 The Authority has no material interests in companies and other entities 


that have the nature of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled 
entitles and requiring the preparation of group accounts.   


 
Although the Council does not have arrangements that give rise to the 
full adoption of Group Accounts the North Devon Crematorium has 
been treated as a joint arrangement with Torridge District Council that 
is not an entity.  The arrangements are based upon an estimated 60:40 
split of all assets and liabilities.  The Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet include this Authority’s 
share (60%) of the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the 
Crematorium.   
 


 xiv. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 


Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value.  The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO 
costing formula. 
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Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 


 
 xv. Investment Property 
 
 Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals 


and/or for capital appreciation.  The definition is not met if the property 
is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of 
goods or is held for sale. 


 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently 
at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be 
exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms length.  Properties 
are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market 
conditions at the year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The same 
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the 
General Fund Balance.  However, revaluation and disposal gains and 
losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact 
on the General fund balance.  The gains and losses are, therefore, 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the capital Adjustment Account and 
(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 


 
 xvi. Leases 
 
 Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease 


transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  All 
other leases are classified as operating leases. 


 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings 
elements are considered separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a 
right to use an asset in return for payment and accounted for under this 
policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
specific assets. 


 
  The Authority As Lessee 
 
  Finance Leases 
 
 Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised 


on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair 
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value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched 
by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the 
Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.  Premiums 
paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they 
incurred. 


 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 


equipment – applied to write down the lease liability, and 
 


• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement) 


 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is 
accounted for using the policies applied generally to such assets, 
subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the 
asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period). 
 
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation 
or revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, 
a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the 
deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore 
substituted by a revenue contribution on the General Fund Balance by 
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two. 


 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease; 
even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent 
free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Authority as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 


 
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of 
plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance 
Sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the lease, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
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Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing 
the Authority’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also part of 
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of 
the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long term 
debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.   
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied 


to write down the lease debtor (together with any premiums 
received), and 


• Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement) 


 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the 
General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt.  
Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.   
 
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by 
the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the 
General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax as 
the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate 
arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are therefore appropriated 
to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an 
item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet.  
Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made 
on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the 
commencement of the lease).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the 
same basis as rental income. 
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 xvii. Overheads and Support Services 
 
 The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that 


benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the costing 
principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14 
(SeRCOP).  The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost 
of overheads and support services are shared between users in 
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 


 
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s 


status as a multi-functional democratic organisation. 
• Non-Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded 


to employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on 
Assets Held for Sale. 


 
These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for 
as separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services. 


 
 xviii. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
 Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the 


production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more 
than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 


 
 Recognition 


 
 Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, 


Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that 
it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or 
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 


 
 Measurement 
 
 Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 


• The purchase price 
 


• Any costs attributable to brining the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management 


 
• (the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the 


item and restoring the site on which it is located) 
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The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets 
are under construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its 
fair value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance 
(i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority).  In 
the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of 
the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the 
Authority. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference 
between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the 
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been 
made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the 
Donated Assets Account.  Where gains are credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 
 
• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – 


depreciated historical cost 
 


• All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would 
be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV) 


 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the 
specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is 
used as an estimate of fair value. 
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are re-valued 
sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not 
materially different from their fair value at the year end, but as a 
minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by 
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains 
(Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss 
previously charged to a service). 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 


Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 


 
• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an 


insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
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against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 


 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 
1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising 
before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed each year-end as to whether there is any 
indication that an asset may be impaired.  Where indications exist and 
any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the 
shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 


• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains). 


 
• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an 


insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 


 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is 
credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 
adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had 
not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 


 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment 
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over 
their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community 
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under 
construction). 
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Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 


• Dwellings and other buildings – straight line allocation over the 
useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer, ranging 
from 5 up to 100 years 


 
• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight line allocation 


ranging from 3 to 15 years 
 


• Infrastructure – straight line allocation ranging from 5 to 100 
years 


 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major 
components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the 
item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
The Authority holds one asset containing major components, namely 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre.  The valuation of this asset has been 
accounted for separately with different estimated lives and thus been 
depreciated separately within the financial statements. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the 
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and 
the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals And Non Current Assets Held For Sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be 
recovered, principally through a sale transaction rather than through its 
continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held For Sale.  The asset 
is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the 
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up 
to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or 
Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on Assets 
Held For Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held For 
Sale, they are reclassified back to non current assets and valued at the 
lower of their carrying amount before they are classified as held for 
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would 
have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale 
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 


 Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as 
Assets Held for Sale. 
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When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount 
of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and 
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from 
disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 
time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in 
the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 


 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised 
as capital receipts.  A proportion of receipts relating to housing 
disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of 
statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to Government.  The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment (or set 
aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement (England and Wales)).  Receipts are 
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as 
the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate 
arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 


xix. Heritage Assets 
 


The Authority’s Heritage Assets are held in the Authority’s Museum and 
surrounding grounds.  The Museum has a number of collections of 
heritage assets, which are held in support of the primary objective of 
the Authority’s Museum, ie increasing the knowledge, understanding 
and appreciation of the Authority’s history and local area.  Heritage 
Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of 
revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the Authority’s 
accounting policies on property, plant and equipment.  However, some 
of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as 
detailed below.  The Authority’s collections of heritage assets are 
deemed to have indeterminate lives hence the Authority does not 
consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
 
The carrying amount of heritage assets are reviewed where there is 
evidence of impairment for heritage assets, eg where an item has 
suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise to its 
authenticity.  Any impairment is recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Authority’s general policies on impairment – see 
above note on property, plant and equipment in this summary of 
significant accounting policies.  The Museum may occasionally dispose 
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of heritage assets that have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for 
public display.  The proceeds of such items are accounted for in 
accordance with the Authority’s general provisions relating to the 
disposal of property, plant and equipment.  


 
 xx. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets 
 
  Provisions 
 
 Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the 


Authority a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires 
settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  For 
instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could 
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation. 


 
 Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in 


the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that 
the Authority becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the 
best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 


 
 When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision 


carried in the Balance Sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at 
the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable 
that a transfer or economic benefits will now be required (or a lower 
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 


 
 Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is 


expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance 
claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority 
settles the obligation. 


  
  Contingent Liabilities 
 
 A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives 


the Authority a possible obligation whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Authority.  Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but 
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 


 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
 







North Devon Council                               Statement of Accounts 2013/14 


Page 37 of 87 


Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives 
the Authority a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed 
by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Authority. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will 
be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 


 xxi. Reserves 
 
 The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy 


purposes or to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by 
appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  When expenditure to be financed 
from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in 
that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge 
against council tax for the expenditure. 


 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non 
current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits 
and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these 
reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 


 
 xxii. Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute 
 
 Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under 


statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non 
current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.  
Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this 
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax. 


 
 xxiii. VAT 
 


VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable 
is excluded from income. 
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2. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT 
YET BEEN ADOPTED 


 
From 1 April 2014, the following new provisions in the Accounts Code will be 
implemented and result in changes of accounting policies in the 2014/15 
Statement of Accounts.  The forthcoming standards that will need to be 
considered are: 


  
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in 2011) 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation 


 
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 Cycle 


 
It is anticipated that details of the disclosures required for most of these 
changes will be included in the Code of Practice issued for 2014/15. 


 
 
3. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 In applying the accounting policies set out in 1. above, the Authority has had 


to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving 
uncertainty about future events.  The critical judgements made in the 
Statement of Accounts are: 


 
• There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 


government.  However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty 
is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority 
might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels 
of service provision. 


 
 
4. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR 


SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 
 The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 


assumptions made by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise 
uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot 
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from 
the assumptions and estimates. 


 
The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2014 for which there 
is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are 
as follows: 
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 Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ 
from assumptions 


    
 Property, Plant 


and Equipment 
Assets are depreciated 
over useful lives that are 
dependent on assumptions 
about the level of repairs 
and maintenance that will 
be incurred in relation to 
individual assets.  The 
current economic climate 
makes it uncertain that the 
Authority will be able to 
sustain its current 
spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into 
doubt the useful lives 
assigned to assets. 


If the useful life of assets is 
reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets fall. 
 
 


    
 Provisions The Authority has made a 


provision of £0.385m to 
pay voluntary redundancy 
and early retirement costs 
in for staff leaving during 
the year. 


Full costing of the posts 
concerned has taken place 
and approved by Personnel 
Committee assuming leave 
dates.  If leave dates alter 
then the actual cost could 
change. 


    
 Pensions Liability Estimation of the net 


liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of 
complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality 
rates and expected returns 
on pension fund assets.  A 
firm of consulting actuaries 
is engaged to provide the 
Authority with expert 
advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net 
pensions liability of changes 
in individual assumptions 
can be measured.  For 
instance, a 0.1% increase in 
the discount rate 
assumption would result in 
a decrease in the pension 
liability by £1.7m. 
 
A 1 year increase in 
longevity rates would 
reduce the pension liability 
by £3.5m. 
 
However, the assumptions 
interact in complex ways.  


  
Pension Assets 
 


 
The value of pension 
assets is estimated based 
upon information available 
at the Balance Sheet date, 
but these valuations may 
be earlier than the Balance 


 
The actual valuations at the 
Balance Sheet date, which 
may not be available until 
some time later, may give a 
different value of pension 
assets, but this difference is 
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 Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ 
from assumptions 


Sheet date.  
 


not considered to be 
material. 
 


 Arrears At 31st March 2014, the 
Authority had a balance of 
sundry debtors for £2.7m.  
A review of significant 
balances suggested that 
an impairment of doubtful 
debtors of 33% (£888,000) 
was appropriate.  
However, in the current 
economic climate, it is not 
certain that such an 
allowance would be 
sufficient 


If collection rates were to 
deteriorate, a doubling of 
the amount of the 
impairment of doubtful 
debts would require an 
additional £890,000 to set 
aside as an allowance. 


    
This list does not include assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value 
based on a recently observed market price. 


 
 
5. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
 


The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial 
Officer (Head of Financial Services) on 30 June 2014.  Events taking place 
after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.  Where 
events taking place before this date provided information about conditions 
existing at 31st March 2014, the figures in the financial statements and notes 
have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this 
information. 
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6. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS 
UNDER REGULATIONS 


 
 This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive 


income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance 
with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory 
provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and 
revenue expenditure. 


 
 
 
 
2013/14 


General 
Fund 


Balance 
£000


Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 


£000


Capital 
Grants 


Unapplied 
£000


Total 
Usable  


Reserves 
£000 


Unusable 
Reserves 


£000 


Total 
Authority 
Reserves 


£000
Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account: 


  


Reversal of items debited 
or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement: 


  


Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non current 
assets 


1,763 0 0 1,763 (1,763) 0


Revaluation losses on 
Property Plant and 
Equipment 


3,209 0 0 3,209 (3,209) 0


Movements in the fair value 
of Investment Properties 


0 0 0 0 0 0


Amortisation of intangible 
assets 


18 0 0 18 (18) 0


Revenue expenditure funded 
from capital under statute 


312 0 0 312 (312) 0


Insertion of items not 
debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement: 


  


Capital expenditure charged 
against the General Fund 


(417) 0 0 (417) 417 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Account: 


  


Capital grants and 
contributions unapplied 
credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


(643) 0 643 0 0 0


Application of grants to 
capital financing transferred 
to Capital Adjustment 
Account 


680 0 (643) 37 (37) 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Receipts Reserve: 


  


Transfer of cash sale 
proceeds credited as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to 
the Comprehensive Income 


(535) 535 0 0 0 0
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2013/14 


General 
Fund 


Balance 
£000


Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 


£000


Capital 
Grants 


Unapplied 
£000


Total 
Usable  


Reserves 
£000 


Unusable 
Reserves 


£000 


Total 
Authority 
Reserves 


£000
and Expenditure Statement 
Use of the Capital Receipts 
Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure 


0 (536) 0 (536) 536 0


Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve to finance 
the payments to the 
Government capital receipts 
pool 


2 (2) 0 0 0 0


Transfer from Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
upon receipt of cash 


0 3 0 3 (3) 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Pensions 
Reserve: 


  


Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


4,306 0 0 4,306 (4,306) 0


Employer’s pensions 
contributions and direct 
payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 


(1,754) 0 0 (1,754) 1,754 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Collection 
Fund Adjustment Account: 


  


Amount by which council tax 
income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is 
different from council tax 
income calculated for the 
year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 


(71) 0 0 (71) 71 0


Amount by which business 
rate income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is 
different from business rate 
income calculated for the 
year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 


1,355 0 0 1,355 (1,355) 0


Adjustment primarily 
involving the Accumulated 
Absences Account: 


  


Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different 
from the remuneration 
chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory 
requirements  


(53) 0 0 (53) 53 0


Total Adjustments 8,172 0 0 8,172 (8,172) 0
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2012/13 (re-stated) 


General 
Fund 


Balance 
£000


Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 


£000


Capital 
Grants 


Unapplied 
£000


Total 
Usable  


Reserves 
£000 


Unusable 
Reserves 


£000 


Total 
Authority 
Reserves 


£000
Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account: 


  


Reversal of items debited 
or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement: 


  


Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non current 
assets 


1,788 0 0 1,788 (1,788) 0


Revaluation losses on 
Property Plant and 
Equipment 


413 0 0 413 (413) 0


Movements in the fair value 
of Investment Properties 


0 0 0 0 0 0


Amortisation of intangible 
assets 


23 0 0 23 (23) 0


Revenue expenditure funded 
from capital under statute 


1,749 0 0 1,749 (1,749) 0


Amounts of non current 
assets written off on disposal 
or sale as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


362 0 0 362 (362) 0


Insertion of items not 
debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement: 


  


Capital expenditure charged 
against the General Fund 
 


(730) 0 0 (730) 730 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Account: 


  


Capital grants and 
contributions unapplied 
credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


(518) 0 518 0 0 0


Application of grants to 
capital financing transferred 
to Capital Adjustment 
Account 


614 0 (523) 91 (91) 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Receipts Reserve: 


  


Transfer of cash sale 
proceeds credited as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to 
the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


(418) 418 0 0 0 0
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2012/13 (re-stated) 


General 
Fund 


Balance 
£000


Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 


£000


Capital 
Grants 


Unapplied 
£000


Total 
Usable  


Reserves 
£000 


Unusable 
Reserves 


£000 


Total 
Authority 
Reserves 


£000
Use of the Capital Receipts 
Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure 


0 (770) 0 (770) 770 0


Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve to finance 
the payments to the 
Government capital receipts 
pool 


2 (2) 0 0 0 0


Transfer from Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
upon receipt of cash 


0 3 0 3 (3) 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Pensions 
Reserve: 


  


Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


4,063 0 0 4,063 (4,063) 0


Employer’s pensions 
contributions and direct 
payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 


(1,798) 0 0 (1,798) 1,798 0


Adjustments primarily 
involving the Collection 
Fund Adjustment Account: 


  


Amount by which council tax 
income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is 
different from council tax 
income calculated for the 
year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 


(4) 0 0 (4) 4 0


Adjustment primarily 
involving the Accumulated 
Absences Account: 


  


Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different 
from the remuneration 
chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory 
requirements  


(10) 0 0 (10) 10 0


Total Adjustments 5,536 (351) (5) 5,180 (5,180) 0
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7. TRANSFER TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES 
 
 This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in 


earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund 
expenditure in 2013/2014. 


 
 Balance 


at 1st 
April 
2012 
£000 


Transfers 
Out 


 
2012/13 


£000 


Transfers 
In 
 


2012/13 
£000 


Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2013 
£000 


Transfers 
Out 


 
 2013/14 


£000 


Transfers 
In  
 


2013/14 
£000 


Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2014 
£000 


        
Collection Fund 0 0 0 0 0 1,355 1,355
Crematorium 
Capital Works 


474 (418) 176 232 0 196 428


Improvement 
Programme 


499 (838) 363 24 (232) 487 279


Public 
Conveniences 
Maintenance 


274 (1) 0 273 0 0 273


HEAT 0 (0) 360 360 (116) 0 244
Housing 
Prevention CLG 
Grant 


213 (112) 136 237 (153) 118 202


2nd Homes 
Council Tax 


125 0 0 125 0 0 125


Greensweep 548 (395) 0 153 (30) 0 123
Lynton Agency 226 (136) 0 90 (4) 25 111
Repairs Fund 128 (184) 194 138 (222) 194 110
Executive 
Contingency 


196 (123) 45 118 (61) 50 107


Land Charges 98 0 0 98 0 0 98
Local Plans 0 0 0 0 0 90 90
C Tax Support 
Scheme 


0 (2) 38 36 0 54 90


Tarka Tennis 
Surface 
Replacement 


78 0 9 87 (11) 8 84


Planning 
Inquiries 


62 (130) 68 0 (38) 118 80


Town & Parish 
Fund 


0 0 30 30 (30) 56 56


Office 
Technology 


39 (113) 74 0 (50) 106 56


District Council 
Election 


0 0 25 25 0 25 50


New Homes 
Bonus 


0 (88) 195 107 (93) 0 14


General 
Contingency 


61 (17) 27 71 (59) 0 12


Other 
Reserves: 
(balances less 
than £50,000) 


479 (184) 74 369 (170) 226 425


Total 3,500 (2,741) 1,814 2,573 (1,269) 3,108 4,412
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The following table shows the purpose of each reserve with a balance at 31st March 
2014 over £0.1m:  
 
Collection Fund To deal with the timing impacts of the Collection Fund 


(Council Tax and Business Rates transactions) 
Crematorium Funding of capital works at the North Devon 


Crematorium 
Improvement Programme Financing of service improvements 
Public Conveniences Public Conveniences planned maintenance 
HEAT Reserve Home Energy Action Taskforce - funding to support 


launch of Green Deal and increase energy efficiency 
Housing Prevention To fund associated costs of homelessness and 


prevention 
Second Homes Council Tax To fund capital programme projects relating to 


housing 
Greensweep Replacement To provide for future wheelie bin replacement within 


the capital programme 
Lynton Agency Accumulated surpluses and deficits from the agency 


arrangement with Lynton Town Council 
Repairs Fund To fund the maintenance of Council assets 
Executive Contingency Funding for in year initiatives and to deal with any 


matters that arise of an urgent nature that could not 
have been foreseen when setting the budget 


 
8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
 


2012/13 
£000s 


 


 2013/14
£000s


1,577 Parish council precepts 1,463
3 Levies 3
2 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 2


(56) (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non current assets (535)
1,526 Total  933


 
9. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 


2012/13 
£000s 


(re-stated) 


 2013/14
£000s


0 Interest payable and similar charges 0
1,713 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 1,835
(115) Interest receivable and similar income (74)


170 Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes 
in their fair value 


(422)


1,768 Total  1,339
 
10. TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOMES 
 


2012/13 
£000s 


 2013/14
£000s


(7,332) Council tax income (6,598)
(5,746) Non domestic rates (2,722)


(767) 
0 


Non ring fenced government grants 
CTS grant paid to parishes 


(4,684)
194


(13,845) Total  (13,810)
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Movements in 2013/14 


O
th


er
 L


an
d 


an
d 


B
ui


ld
in


gs
 


£0
00


 


Ve
hi


cl
es


, P
la


nt
, F


ur
ni


tu
re


 
an


d 
Eq


ui
pm


en
t 


£0
00


 


In
fr


as
tr


uc
tu


re
 A


ss
et


s 
£0


00
 


C
om


m
un


ity
 A


ss
et


s 
£0


00
 


Su
rp


lu
s 


A
ss


et
s 


£0
00


 


A
ss


et
s 


U
nd


er
 c


on
st


ru
ct


io
n 


£0
00


 


To
ta


l P
ro


pe
rt


y,
 P


la
nt


 a
nd


 
Eq


ui
pm


en
t 


£0
00


 


GBV or Valuation        
At 1st April 2013 68,760 9,104 1,399 134 865 16 80,278
Additions 614 357 0 7 2 0 980
Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


(264) 0 (440) 0 0 0 (704)


Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


(3,112) 0 (402) 0 0 0 (3,514)


De-recognition – 
disposals 


0 0 0 0 0 0 0


De-recognition – other (3,229) (149) (57) 0 0 0 (3,435)
Other movements in cost 
or valuation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 0


At 31st March 2014 62,769 9,312 500 141 867 16 73,605
   
Accumulated 
Depreciation and 
Impairment 


  


At 1st April 2013 5,015 7,144 65 0 11 0 12,235
Depreciation charge 1,106 781 8 0 1 0 1,896
Impairment 
losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Impairment 
losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


0 0 0 0 0 0 0


De-recognition – other (3,229) (149) (57) 0 0 0 (3,435)
At 31st March 2014  2,892 7,776 16 0 12 0 10,696
   
Net Book Value   
At 31st March 2013 63,745 1,960 1,334 134 854 16 68,043
At 31st March 2014  59,877 1,536 484 141 855 16 62,909
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Comparative 
Movements in 2012/13 
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GBV or Valuation        
At 1st April 2012 71,645 9,063 1,442 134 932 965 84,181
Additions 891 158 0 0 0 0 1,049
Donations 508 0 0 0 0 0 508
Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


1,224 0 0 0 10 0 1,234


Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


105 0 0 0 (12) 0 93


De-recognition – 
disposals 


(286) 0 0 0 (8) 0 (294)


De-recognition – other (5,823) (117) (43) 0 (57) (562) (6,602)
Other movements in cost 
or valuation 


496 0 0 0 0 (387) 109


At 31st March 2013 68,760 9,104 1,399 134 865 16 80,278
   
Accumulated 
Depreciation and 
Impairment 


  


At 1st April 2012 9,140 6,398 91 0 57 0 15,686
Depreciation charge 1,060 863 17 0 11 0 1,951
Impairment 
losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


168 0 0 0 0 0 168


Impairment 
losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


470 0 0 0 0 0 470


De-recognition – other (5,823) (117) (43) 0 (57) 0 (6,040)
At 31st March 2013  5,015 7,144 65 0 11 0 12,235
   
Net Book Value   
At 31st March 2012 62,505 2,665 1,351 134 875 965 68,495
At 31st March 2013  63,745 1,960 1,334 134 854 16 68,043
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Capital Commitments 
 
 At 31st March 2014, the Authority has the following capital commitments: 
 


• Old Quay Head £539,217 
 


  Similar commitments at 31st March 2013 were £132,080. 
 
 


Revaluations 
 
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, 
Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least 
every five years.  All valuations were carried out internally by Natalie Hayes 
BSc Hons MRICS, Estates Officer.  Valuations of land and buildings were 
carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set 
out in the professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
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Valued at Historic Cost 0 6,133 0 0 0 16 6,149
Valued at fair value as at:  
31st March 2014 44,908 357 348 0 706 0 46,319
31st March 2013 10,427 158 41 0 20 0 10,646
31st March 2012 102 475 68 94 1 0 740
31st March 2011 7,241 375 1 47 140 0 7,804
31st March 2010 91 1,814 42 0 0 0 1,947
Total 62,769 9,312 500 141 867 16 73,605


 
 
12. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 


 31st March 
2013


 
£000


31st March 
2014 


  
£000 


  
Valuation 839 871 


 
The above heritage assets are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance 
valuation, which is based on market values.  Further information on the above 
collections is detailed in notes 46 and 47. 
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
 The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the 


Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement: 


 
 2012/13


£000
2013/14 


£000 
   
Rental income from investment property 246 318 
Direct operating expenses arising from 
investment property 


113 124 


Net gain/(loss) 133 194 
 
 There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent 


in its investment property or on the Authority’s right to the remittance of 
income and the proceeds of disposal.  The Authority has no contractual 
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, 
maintenance or enhancement. 


 
The following table summaries the movements in the fair value of investment 
properties over the year: 


 
 2012/13


£000
2013/14 


£000 
   
Balance at start of year 4,325 4,104 
Additions:  


• Construction 0 0 
Disposals (67) 0 
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments (45) 306 
Transfers:  


• To/from Property, Plant and 
Equipment 


(109) 0 


Other changes (IFRS re-statement - from 
assets held for disposal) 


0 0 


Balance at the end of the year 4,104 4,410 
 
 
Revaluations 
 
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Investment 
Properties are measured at fair value and revalued at least every five years.  
All valuations were carried out internally by Natalie Hayes BSc Hons MRICS, 
Estates Officer.  Valuations of Investment Properties were carried out in 
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 
professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
 The Authority accounts for its software licenses as intangible assets, to the 


extent that the software license is not an integral part of a particular IT system 
and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 


 
 All software licenses are given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the 


period that the software is expected to be of use to the Authority.  The useful 
lives assigned to the major licenses used by the Authority are: 


 
  Useful Lives Internally 


Generated Assets 
Other Assets 


    
 4 Years None IEG Software Licenses  
   Gazetteer Software Licenses 
   Software Licenses acquired 2008/09 
   Software Licenses acquired 2009/10 
   Software Licenses acquired 2010/11 
   Software Licenses acquired 2011/12 
   Software Licenses acquired 2012/13 


Software Licenses acquired 2013/14 
 
 The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis.  


The amortisation of £18,288.35 charged to revenue in 2013/14 was charged to 
IT and then absorbed as an overhead across the service headings in the Net 
Expenditure of Services.  It is not possible to quantify exactly how much of the 
amortisation is attributable to each service heading. 


  
The movement of Intangible Assets balances during the year is as follows: 


 2012/13 2013/14 
 Internally 


Generated 
Assets 


£000 


Other 
Assets 


£000


Total
£000


Internally 
Generated 


Assets 
£000


Other 
Assets 


£000 


Total
£000


Balance at start of 
year 


       


• Gross carrying 
amounts 


0 162 162 0 213 213


• Accumulated 
amortisation 


0 145 145 0 168 168


Net carrying 
amount at start of 
year 


0 17 17 0 45 45


Additions:   
• Purchases 0 51 51 0 1 1
Amortisation for the 
period 


0 23 23 0 18 18


Net carrying 
amount at end of 
year 


0 45 45 0 28 28


Comprising:   
• Gross carrying 


amounts 
0 213 213 0 214 


 
214


• Accumulated 
amortisation 


0 168 168 0 186 186







North Devon Council                               Statement of Accounts 2013/14 


Page 52 of 87 


15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 Categories of Financial Instruments 
 
     Long Term    Current 
 
 


31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014
£000


31st March 
2013 
£000 


 


31st March 
2014
£000


Investments  
Unquoted equity investment at cost 0 0 0 0
Total Investments 0 0 0 0
  
Debtors  
Loans and receivables 281 237 53 39
Financial assets carried at contract 
amounts 


1,012 1,012 2,855 2,818


Total included in Debtors 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Total Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 


1,293


0 
0


1,249


0 
0


2,908 
 
 
 


5,354 
5,354 


2,857


1,873
1,873


  
Borrowings  
Financial liabilities at amortised 
cost 


0 0 0 0


Total included in Borrowings 0 0 0 0
  
Other Long Term Liabilities  
Finance lease liabilities (39) 0 0 0
Total Other Long Term Liabilities (39) 0 0 0
  
Creditors  
Financial liabilities carried at 
contract amount 


0 0 (4,443) (2,340)


Total Creditors 0 0 (4,443) (2,340)
 
 
 Fair Values of Assets And Liabilities 
 
 Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and 


long term debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised 
cost.  Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the 
cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, 
using the following assumptions: 


 
• Estimated interest rates for loans receivable and payable based on new 


lending rates for equivalent loans at that date. 
• No early repayment or impairment is recognised. 
• Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is 


assumed to approximate to fair value. 
• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or 


billed amount. 
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The fair values calculated are as follows: 
 
   31st March 2014 
    Carrying 


Amount 
£000 


Fair Value


£000
      
 Cash (deposit account)   620 620
 Total   620 620
 


The council provides interest free loans to employees for car loans and the 
balance outstanding at 31 March 2014 was £60,558.  The council has also 
provided a loan to the Falcons Gymnastics Academy to enable them to 
construct a new facility at the Tarka Tennis Centre; the balance at 31 March 
2014 was £179,990.   An assessment for soft loan issues has been completed 
on both of these loans and confirmed the accounting adjustment fell below our 
materiality level.  As a result, the loans are recognised as debtors in the 
balance sheet and measured at nominal value. 
 
Short-term debtors and creditors are carried at cost, as this is a fair 
approximation of their value. 


 
 
16. INVENTORIES 
      


 
Consumable Stores 
 
 


2012/13
£000


2013/14 
£000 


Balance outstanding at start of year 135 142 
Purchases 1,157 1,050 
Recognised as an expense in the year (1,150) (1,078) 
Balance outstanding at year end 142 114 


 
 
17. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
 


At 31st March 2014, the Authority had no construction contracts in progress. 
 
 
18. DEBTORS 
  


 31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014  
£000


Central government bodies 162 1,717
Other local authorities 312 436
Other entities and individuals 2,686 2,528
Total 3,160 4,681
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 


31st March 
2013 
£000 


 


 31st March 
2014 
£000 


 
2 Cash held by the Authority 2 


(52) Bank current accounts 704 
5,404 Short term deposits with banks and building 


societies 
1,167 


5,354 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,873 
 
 
20. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 
  2012/13


£000
2013/14


£000
    
 Balance outstanding at start of year 0 0
 Assets declassified as held for sale to: 
 • Property, plant and equipment 0 0
 Balance outstanding at year end 0 0
 
 
21. CREDITORS 
 


 31st March 
2013 
£000


31st March 
2014  
£000 


Central government bodies 1,548 374 
Other local authorities 691 444 
Other entities and individuals 3,286 2,245 
Total 5,525 3,063 


 
 
22. PROVISIONS 
  
  Redundancy 


and Early 
Retirement


£000


Municipal 
Mutual 


Insurance
£000


Business 
Rate 


Appeals 
£000 


Total
£000


 Balance at 1st April 2013 561 17 0 578
 Additional provisions made in 


2013/14 
169 0 345 514


 Amounts used in 2013/14 (345) (17) 0 (362)
 Balance at 31st March 2014 385 0 345 730
 
 
 Redundancies and Early Retirements 
 


A number of redundancies and early retirements have been identified which 
were approved by Personnel Committee.  As these redundancies and early 
retirements were known as at 31st March 2014 a provision was set up to cover 
the costs.  
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23. UNUSABLE RESERVES 
  


31st March 
2013 


 
£000 


 31st March 
2014 


 
£000 


14,601 Revaluation Reserve 13,642 
56,670 Capital Adjustment Account 52,608 


13 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 11 
(42,343) Pensions Reserve (42,663) 


(19) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (1,303) 
(206) Accumulated Absences Account (153) 


28,716 Total Unusable Reserves 22,142 
 


 
Revaluation Reserve 


 
 The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising 


from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment (and 
Intangible Assets).  The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated 
gains are: 


 
• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 
• Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 


depreciation, or 
• Disposed of and the gains are realised 


 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, 
the date that the Reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that 
date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 


 
 


2012/13 
 


£000 


  2013/14


£000
13,838 Balance at 1st April  14,601


1,283 Upward revaluation of assets  2,395
(178) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses 


not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


 (3,066)


(270) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical 
cost depreciation 


 (288)


(72) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped  0
14,601 Balance at 31st March  13,642


 
 
 Capital Adjustment Account 
 
 The Capital Adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from 


the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non current 
assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those 
assets under statutory provisions.  The Account is debited with the cost of 
acquisition, construction or enhancement as deprecation, impairment losses 
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to covert 
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fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the 
amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, 
construction and enhancement. 


 
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties 
and gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the 
Authority. 
 
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant 
and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve 
was created to hold such gains. 
 
Note 6 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the 
Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 
  
 


2012/13 
£000 


  2013/14
£000


59,203 Balance at 1st April  56,670
 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 


credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


 


(1,558) • Charges for depreciation and impairment of non 
current assets 


 (1,476)


(368) • Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and 
Equipment 


 (3,515)


(23) • Amortisation of intangible assets  (18)
(2,587) • Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 


statute 
 (848)


(290) • Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal 
or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


 


 0


 Capital financing applied in the year:  
770 • Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 


capital expenditure 
 536


838 • Capital grants and contributions credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
that have been applied to capital financing 


 537


730 • Capital expenditure charged against the General 
Fund and HRA balances 


 417


 
(45) 


 
 
 


 
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


 
 305


56,670 Balance at 31st March  52,608
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 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (England and Wales) 
 
 The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the 


disposal of non current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take 
place.  Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains 
as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash 
receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts 
are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 


 
 


2012/13 
£000 


 2013/14
£000


15 Balance at 1st April 13
(2) Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (2)
13 Balance at 31st March 11


 
 
 Pensions Reserve 
 
 The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the 


different arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for 
funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.  The Authority 
accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing 
years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs.   


 
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as 
the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually 
pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.  The debit balance on 
the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits 
earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set 
aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will 
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 


 
 


2012/13 
£000 


 2013/14
£000


(re-stated)  
(37,968) Balance at 1st April (42,343)


(2,047) Actuarial gains or (losses) on pensions assets and liabilities 2,212
(4,063) Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to 


the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


(4,306)


1,735 Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 


1,774


(42,343) Balance at 31st March  (42,663)
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 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 


The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising 
from the recognition of council tax and business rates income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from 
taxpayers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across 
amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 


 
2012/13 


£000 
 2013/14


£000


(24) Balance at 1st April (19)
5 Amount by which council tax and business rates income credited to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from 
council tax and business rates income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements  


(1,284)


(19) Balance at 31st March (1,303)
 
 Accumulated Absences Account 
 
 The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would 


otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated 
absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement 
carried forward at 31st March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact 
on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the 
Account. 


 
2012/13 


£000 
  2013/14


£000


(216) Balance at 1st April  (206)
216 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of 


the preceding year 
 206


(206) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year  (153)
(206) Balance at 31st March  (153)


 
24. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 
 The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 


2012/13 
£000 


(re-stated) 


 
 


2013/14
£000


6,664 Net surplus/deficit on the provision of service 6,311
(5,536) 


(4) 
Net amount debited to the general fund (note 6) 
Removed as part of note 6 that do form part of the cash movement 


(8,172)
1,283


(730) 
0 


 


Capital items removed that are part of note 6 and are not in the I&E  
Movement in Provisions 
(Add back) 


(417)
175


35 Other non-cash items (5)
8 Movement in Stock (28)


(1,111) Movement in Debtors 1,351
29 Movement in Creditors 2,367


 Remove interest paid and received to include in note 25 
115 Interest received 74


0 Interest paid 0
(530) Net Cash flow from operating activities 2,939
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25. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 


2012/13 
£000 


 2013/14
£000


3,855 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets 


1,873


0 Purchase of short term and long term investments 0
0 Other payments for investing activities 0


(11) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 


(546)


(115) Proceeds from short term and long term investments (74)
3,729 Net cash flows from investing activities 1,253


 
 
26. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 


2012/13 
£000 


 2013/14
£000


(926) Other receipts from financing activities (711)
0 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 0


(926) Net cash flows from investing activities (711)
 
 
27. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS 
 
 The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice.  However, decisions about resource 
allocation are taken by the Authority’s Executive on the basis of budget reports 
analysed across Services.  These reports are prepared on a different basis 
from the accounting policies used in the financial statements.  In particular: 


 
• No charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas 


depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance 
on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 


• The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of 
employer’s pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of 
benefits accrued in the year. 


• Expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not 
charged to Services. 


 
The income and expenditure of the Authority’s principal Services recorded in 
the budget reports for the year is as follows: 
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 Service Income And 
Expenditure 2013/14 
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 Fees, charges and other 
service income 


(1,237) (1,029) (252) (1,164) (4,576) (1,711) (9,969)


 Government grants (237) (405) (28,196) 0 0 0 (28,838)
 Total Income (1,474) (1,434) (28,448) (1,164) (4,576) (1,711) (38,807)
 Employee expenses 1,092 0 0 1,335 511 2,614 5,552
 Other service expenses 1,847 1,199 27,305 322 2,903 1,686 35,262
 Support service recharges 1,248 2,404 2,062 782 1,556 1,568 9,620
 Total Expenditure 4,187 3,603 29,367 2,439 4,970 5,868 50,434
 Net Expenditure 2,713 2,169 919 1,275 394 4,157 11,627


 
 Service Income And 


Expenditure 2012/13 
Comparative Figures 
(re-stated) 
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 Fees, charges and other 
service income 


(1,507) (865) (216) (1,084) (4,493) (1,735) (9,900)


 Government grants 0 (1,155) (36,208) 0 0 0 (37,363)
 Total Income (1,507) (2,020) (36,424) (1,084) (4,493) (1,735) (47,263)
 Employee expenses 1,160 102 0 1,513 585 2,820 6,180
 Other service expenses 2,322 938 35,403 484 2,905 1,594 43,646
 Support service recharges 1,506 2,535 2,097 920 1,686 1,712 10,456
 Total Expenditure 4,988 3,575 37,500 2,917 5,176 6,126 60,282
 Net Expenditure 3,481 1,555 1,076 1,833 683 4,391 13,019


 
Reconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Service income 
and expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 2012/13 


£000 
(re-stated) 


 


2013/14
£000


Net expenditure in the Service analysis 13,019 11,627
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement not reported to management in the analysis 


4,366 5,800


Amounts included in the analysis not included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


(170) 422


Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


17,215 17,849







North Devon Council                               Statement of Accounts 2013/14 


Page 61 of 87 


Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures on the analysis of Service income 
and expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
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 Fees, charges and other 
service income 


(9,969) 0 359 (209) (9,819) (359) (10,178)


 Interest and investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 0 (74) (74)


 Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (6,598) (6,598)
 Income from Business 


Rates 
0 0 0 0 0 (2,722) (2,722)


 Government grants and 
contributions 


(28,838) 0 0 0 (28,838) (4,685) (33,523)


 Total Income (38,807) 0 359 (209) (38,657) (14,438) (53,095)
 Employee expenses 5,552 267 0 7,773 13,592 0 13,592
 Other service expenses 35,262 0 (131) 2,056 37,187 2,161 39,348
 Support service recharges 9,620 0 (110) (9,620) (110) 110 0
 Depreciation, amortisation 


and impairment 
0 5,533 304 0 5,837 (304) 5,533


 Precepts and levies 0 0 0 0 0 1,466 1,466
 Payments to Housing 


Capital Receipts Pool 
0 0 0 0 0 2 2


 Gain or loss on disposal 
of fixed assets 


0 0 0 0 0 (535) (535)


 Total Expenditure 50,434 5,800 63 209 56,506 2,900 59,406
 (Surplus) or Deficit on 


the provision of 
services 


11,627 5,800 422 0 17,849 (11,538) 6,311
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 2012/13 Comparative 


Figures 
(re-stated) 
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 Fees, charges and other 
service income 


(9,900) 0 283 (188) (9,805) (283) (10,088)


 Interest and investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 0 (115) (115)


 Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (7,332) (7,332)
 Government grants and 


contributions 
(37,363) 0 0 0 (37,363) (6,513) (43,876)


 Total Income (47,263) 0 283 (188) (47,168) (14,243) (61,411)
 Employee expenses 6,180 193 0 8,370 14,743 0 14,743
 Other service expenses 43,646 0 (120) 2,274 45,800 1,833 47,633
 Support service recharges 10,456 0 (247) (10,456) (247) 247 0
 Depreciation, amortisation 


and impairment 
0 4,173 (86) 0 4,087 86 4,173


 Precepts and levies 0 0 0 0 0 1,580 1,580
 Payments to Housing 


Capital Receipts Pool 
0 0 0 0 0 2 2


 Gain or loss on disposal 
of fixed assets 


0 0 0 0 0 (56) (56)


 Total Expenditure 60,282 4,366 (453) 188 64,383 3,692 68,075
 (Surplus) or Deficit on 


the provision of 
services 


13,019 4,366 (170) 0 17,215 (10,551) 6,664
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28. BUILDING CONTROL TRADING ACCOUNT 
 


The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 1998 require the 
disclosure of information regarding the setting of charges for the 
administration of the Building Control function.  North Devon Council sets 
charges for work carried out in relation to building regulations, with the aim of 
covering all costs incurred.  However, certain activities performed by the 
Building Control Unit cannot be charged for, such as providing general advice 
and liaising with other statutory authorities.  The statement below shows the 
total cost of operating the Building Control Unit, divided between the 
chargeable and non-chargeable activities. 


 


Building Regulations 
Charging Account 


Non Chargeable 
2013/14


£000


Chargeable 
2013/14 


£000 


Total Building 
Control 2013/14


£000
Expenditure    
Employees 85 188 273
Premises 0 0 0
Transport 5 10 15
Supplies and Services 7 16 23
Capital Financing 0 0 0
Central & Support Service charges 27 60 87
Total Expenditure 124 274 398
  
Income  
Building Regulation Charges 0 (337) (337)
Miscellaneous Income (9) 0 (9)
Total Income (9) (337) (346)
  
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year 115 (63) 52
  
Comparatives for 2012/13  
Expenditure 122 306 428
Income (9) (278) (287)
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year 113 28 141
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29. TRADING OPERATIONS 
 
 Included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are 


the following trading activities: 
 


2012/13 2013/14 
£000 £000 


Car Parks Turnover (2,817) (2,816) 
 Expenditure 1,568 3,853 
 (Surplus)/Deficit (1,249) 1,037 
South Molton Cattle 
Market 


Turnover (35) (32) 


 Expenditure 86 16 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 51 (16) 
Barnstaple Pannier 
Market 


Turnover (264) (251) 


 Expenditure 363 337 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 99 86 
Corporate 
Properties/Industrial Units 


Turnover (507) (565) 


 Expenditure 1,205 1,346 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 698 781 
Ilfracombe Harbour Turnover (533) (518) 
 Expenditure 840 659 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 307 141 
Seaside Undertakings Turnover (32) (35) 
 Expenditure 1 2 
 (Surplus)/Deficit (31) (33) 
Trade Waste & Skips Turnover (567) (572) 
 Expenditure 671 708 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 104 136 
Trade Recycling Turnover 0 (28) 
 Expenditure 0 24 
 (Surplus)/Deficit 0 (4) 
Net (surplus)/deficit on 
trading operations 


 (21) 2,128 


 
 
 
 
30. MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 
 
 The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Council during the 


year: 
 


2012/13
£


2013/14 
£ 


Allowances 283,742 278,895 
Expenses 20,195 23,703 
Total 303,937 302,598 
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31. OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION 
 
 The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees is as follows: 
 
2013/14 
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Chief Executive 
 


99,150 0 1,558 0 19,136 119,844


Assistant Chief Executive (1) 
 


15,237 0 48 73,288 2,941 91,514


Head of Property and Technical 
Services 


52,488 0 2,077 0 10,130 64,695


Head of Environmental Health and 
Housing Services 


52,488 0 1,560 0 10,130 64,178


Head of Human Resources (2) 
 


0 0 0 0 0 0


Head of Financial Services (3) 
 


60,034 0 1,355 0 11,587 72,976


Head of Legal Services (4) 
 


10,441 0 0 0 2,342 12,783


Head of Works and Recycling Services 
(5) 


0 0 0 0 0 0


Head of Strategic Development and 
Planning (6) 


0 0 0 0 0 0


 
(1) The Assistant Chief Executive left the Authority on 30th June 2013. 
 
(2) The Head of Human Resources left the Authority in 2012/13. This position was covered during 
2013/14 by the Head of Human Resources at Torridge District Council, under a shared arrangement.  
The amount paid to Torridge District Council was £21,551 (April to October). 
 
(3) The Head of Financial Services has been acting as a Senior Officer at Torridge District Council 
during 2013/14 under a shared arrangement.  The remuneration shown for 2013/14 reflects any 
increases payable under these arrangements.  The amount charged to Torridge District Council for 
these arrangements was £36,694 (April to March). 
 
(4) The Head of Legal Services position was covered during 2013/14 (April to January) by the Head of 
Legal Services at Torridge District Council, under a shared arrangement. The amount paid to Torridge 
District Council was £31,026. The position was filled by North Devon Council in January 2014. 
 
(5) The Head of Works and Recycling Services position was covered during 2013/14 by the Head of 
Works, Recycling and Operations at Torridge District Council, under a shared arrangement.  The 
amount paid to Torridge District Council was £38,829 (April to March). 
 
(6) The position of Joint Head of Strategic Development and Planning was appointed in July 2012 as a 
new joint post with Torridge District Council.  The amount paid to Torridge District Council was 
£39,932 under the arrangements for the joint post. 
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2012/13 Comparative Figures 
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Chief Executive 
 


98,800 0 1,819 0 18,871 119,490


Assistant Chief Executive 
 


60,949 0 63 0 11,641 72,653


Head of Property and Technical 
Services 


51,968 0 2,243 0 9,926 64,137


Head of Community and Leisure 
Services (1) 


40,652 0 1,207 59,200 7,765 108,824


Head of Environmental Health and 
Housing Services 


51,968 0 963 0 9,926 62,857


Head of Human Resources (2) 
 


22,918 0 0 70,000 1,820 94,738


Head of Financial Services (3) 
 


57,383 0 1,582 0 10,960 69,925


Head of Legal Services (4) 
 


36,730 0 0 55,788 7,015 99,533


Head of Works and Recycling Services 
(5) 


0 0 0 0 0 0


Head of Strategic Development and 
Planning (6) 


0 0 0 0 0 0


 
(1) The Head of Community and Leisure Services left the Authority on 12th January 2013. 
 
(2) The Head of Human Resources left the Authority on 6th June 2012.  This position was covered 
during 2012/13 by the Head of Human Resources at Torridge District Council, under a shared 
arrangement.  The amount paid to Torridge District Council was £18,008 (October to March). 
 
(3) The Head of Financial Services has been acting as a Senior Officer at Torridge District Council 
during 2012/13 under a shared arrangement.  The remuneration shown for 2012/13 reflects any 
increases payable under these arrangements.  The amount charged to Torridge District Council for 
these arrangements was £24,371 (August to March). 
 
(4) The Head of Legal Services left the Authority on 31st December 2012.  This position was covered 
during 2012/13 by the Head of Legal Services at Torridge District Council, under a shared 
arrangement.  The amount paid to Torridge District Council was £9,416 (January to March). 
 
(5) The position of Head of Works and Recycling Services was vacant.  This position was covered 
during 2012/13 by the Head of Works, Recycling and Operations at Torridge District Council, under a 
shared arrangement.  The amount paid to Torridge District Council was £27,033 (July to March). 
 
(6) The position of Joint Head of Strategic Development and Planning was appointed in July 2012 as a 
new joint post with Torridge District Council.  The amount paid to Torridge District Council was 
£28,834 under the arrangements for the joint post. 
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 The Authority’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration 
for the year (excluding employer’s pensions contributions) were paid the 
following amounts:     


 
 Number of Employees 
Remuneration Band 2012/13 2013/14
   
£50,000 - £54,999 1 0
£55,000 - £59,999 2 0
£60,000 - £64,999 0 1
£65,000 - £69,999 0 1
£70,000 - £74,999 1 0
£75,000 - £79,999 0 0
£80,000 - £84,999 0 0


  
 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the 
compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below: 


 
Exit package 
cost band 
(including 
special 
payments) 


Number of 
compulsory 


redundancies 


Number of other 
departures agreed 


Total number of 
exit packages by 


cost band 


Total cost of exit 
packages in each 


band (£) 


 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13
£


2013/14
£


£0 - £20,000 1 0 3 3 4 3 54,880 26,269
£20,001 - 
£40,000 


0 0 4 2 4 2 95,057 55,794


£40,001 - 
£60,000 


0 0 5 0 5 0 234,548 0


£60,001 - 
£80,000 


0 0 1 0 1 0 70,000 0


£80,001 - 
£100,000 


0 0 1 0 1 0 88,197 0


£100,001 - 
£150,000 


0 0 1 2 1 2 101,224 233,324


£150,001 - 
£200,000 


0 0 1 0 1 0 163,167 0


Total 1 0 16 7 17 7 807,073 315,387
 
  
 The cost of exit packages in 2012/13 was £807,073 and this cost is offset by 


ongoing annual revenue savings achieved by the exit packages of £474,239. 
 
 The cost of exit packages in 2013/14 was £315,387 and this cost is offset by 


ongoing annual revenue savings achieved by the exit packages of £224,783. 
 
32. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
 
 The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the 


Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections 
and to non audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors: 
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 2012/13 
£000 


2013/14
£000


Fees payable to (external auditors) with regard to external 
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year* 


57 54


Fees payable to (external auditors) for the certification of grant 
claims and returns for the year 


20 12


Fees payable in respect of other services provided by (external 
auditors) during the year  


2 1


Total  79 67
 


* The agreed audit fee for 2013/14 was £62,301 however the Audit Commission announced 
rebates to audited bodies of £8,526 reducing the overall audit fee to £53,775. 
 


33. GRANT INCOME 
 
 The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 


 2012/13 
£000 


2013/14
£000


Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income  
Council tax freeze grant (144) (58)
New homes bonus grant (495) (628)
Revenue support grant 
Other 


(111) 
(17) 


(3,927)
(71)


Total  (767) (4,684)
  
Credited to Services  
Disabled facilities grant (518) (405)
Dotto Land Train (Leader 4) 
Old Quay Head (Environment Agency) 
Bus Station (DCC) 


0 
0 
0 


(162)
(75)
(1)


Total  (518) (643)
 
 The Authority has received a number of grants, contributions and donations 


that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to 
them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver.  The 
balances at the year-end are as follows: 


 
 31st March 


2012
£000


31st March 
2013 
£000 


31st March 
2014
£000


Capital Grants Receipts in Advance  
S106/Commuted sum – Community facilities (20) (20) (20)
S106/Commuted sum – Affordable housing (347) (307) (260)
S106/Commuted sum – Sports  
Commuted sums – Public open space 


(25) 
(846)


(25) 
(834) 


(5)
(798)


S106/Commuted sum – Car parking 
S106/Commuted sum – Sustainable transport 
S106/Commuted sum – Public conveniences


(191) 
(8) 


(15)


(190) 
(8) 


(15) 


(190)
(8)


(15)
Total  (1,452) (1,399) (1,296)


 
 31st March 


2012
£000


31st March 
2013 
£000 


31st March 
2014
£000


Donated Assets Account  
Falcons Gymnastics (254) (761) (761)
Total  (254) (761) (761)
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34. RELATED PARTIES 
 
 The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties 


– bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the 
Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of these 
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might 
have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have 
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Authority. 


 
 Central Government 
 


Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 
Authority – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which 
the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants 
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has 
with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits).  Grants received 
from government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 27 
on reporting for resources allocation decisions. 
 
Members 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and 
operating policies.  The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2013/14 is 
shown in Note 30.   
 
During 2013/14 works and services to the value of £17,439 (£23,107 in 
2012/13) were commissioned from companies in which three members (two 
members in 2012/13) had an interest. (C & C Electrics, West of England Fire 
Protection Limited and Robins Garage).  Contracts were entered into in full 
compliance with the Council’s Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. In 
all instances, the grants were made with proper consideration of declarations 
of interest.  The relevant Members did not take part in any discussion or 
decision relating to the grants.   
 
The Council received £60,000 (£60,000 in 2012/13) in the year from the North 
Devon Joint Crematorium Committee being the proportion due of the 
Committee’s annual surplus. 
 
Details of all these transactions are recorded in the Register of Members’ 
Interest open to public inspection at the Civic Centre during office hours. 


 
35. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 
 
 The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the 


table below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it.  
Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 
revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an 
increase in the Capital Financing Requirements (CFR), a measure of the 
capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be 
financed.  The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 
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 2012/13 


£000 
 


2013/14
£000


Opening Capital Financing Requirement  265 1,921
Capital Investment:  
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,931 980
Investment Properties 0 0
Intangible Assets 51 1
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 2,144 849
 4,126 1,830
Sources of Finance:  
Capital receipts 770 536
Government grants and other contributions 838 536
Sums set aside from revenue:  
Direct revenue contributions 729 417
(MRP/Loans fund principal) 133 132
 2,470 1,621
   
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 1,921 2,130
  
Explanation of movements in year:  
Increase in underlying need to borrowing (supported by 
government financial assistance) 


0 0


Increase in underlying need to borrowing (unsupported by 
government financial assistance) 


1,788 341


Assets acquired under finance leases (132) (132)
Assets acquired under PFI/PP contracts 0 0
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 1,656 209


 
 
36. LEASES 
 
 Authority As Lessee 
 
 Finance Leases 
 
 The Council has acquired vehicles for its Kerbside Recycling service under 


finance leases. 
 
 The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and 


Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts: 
 


 31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014 
£000 


Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 132 0 
 


 
The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases 
comprising settlement of the long term liability for the interest in the vehicles 
acquired by the Authority and finance costs that will be payable by the 
Authority in future years while the liability remains outstanding.  The minimum 
lease payments are made up of the following amounts: 
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 31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014 
£000 


Finance lease liabilities:   
• Current 128 39 
• Non current 
 


39 0 


Finance costs payable in future years 
 


55 13 


Minimum lease payments 222 52 
 
 
 The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 
 


Minimum Lease Payments Finance Lease Liabilities  
 


31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014
£000


 
31st March 


2013
£000


 
31st March 


2014 
£000 


 
Not later than one year 171 52 128 39 
Later than one year 
and not later than five 
years 


51 0 39 0 


Later than five years 0 0 0 0 
 222 52 167 39 


 
 
 Operating Leases 
 


The Authority uses photocopiers & printers financed under terms of an 
operating lease.  The amount paid under these arrangements in 2013/14 was 
£42,315 (2012/13 £13,554).  The Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 requires charges to be made 
evenly throughout the period of the lease. 
 
The Authority was committed at 31st March 2014 to making payments of 
£31,519 under operating leases in 2014-15. 
 


31st March 
2013
£000


31st March 
2014 
£000 


Not later than one year 3 3 
Later than one year and not later than five 
years 


10 28 


Later than five years 0 0 
 13 31 
 
 
Authority As Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Authority has one finance lease arrangement relating to Plot 4, Seven 
Brethren Bank for a period of 150 years effective from 26 August 2011.  The 
lease amount is a peppercorn rent of £1 per annum. 
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Operating Leases 
 
The Authority leases out property and equipment under operating leases for 
the following purposes: 
 
• For the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism 


services and community centres 
 
• For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable 


accommodation for local businesses 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non cancellable leases 
in future years are: 
 
 31st March 


2013
£000


31st March 
2014 
£000 


Not later than one year 363 371 
Later than one year and not later than five 
years 


993 969 


Later than five years 3,260 3,264 
Minimum lease payments 4,616 4,604 
 
The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are 
contingent on events taking place after the lease was entered into, such as 
adjustments following rent reviews. 


 
 
37. CONTRIBUTION TO PREVIOUS YEAR’S COLLECTION FUND DEFICIT 
  


 2012/13
£000


2013/14 
£000 


 
Devon County Council 80 80 
North Devon Council 12 12 
Devon and Cornwall Police 11 11 
Devon and Somerset Fire & Rescue 5 5 
 108 108 


 
 
38. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 


 
During the 2013-14 valuation process no Impairment or Impairment reversals 
were identified. 


 
 
39. COUNCIL TAX 
 


Council Tax income is calculated by adding together the amounts required by 
North Devon Council, Devon County Council, Devon and Cornwall Police, 
Devon and Somerset Fire & Rescue and local Parish Councils.  This amount, 
the Precept, is then divided by the North Devon District tax base of 30,839.54 
to give an average Council Tax liability for a Band D property.  
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For Council Tax purposes the number of dwellings in each valuation band 
converted to a Band D equivalent was as follows: 


  
Band Band D  


Equivalent Numbers 
-A 6.41 
A 3,789.92 
B 6,245.72 
C 6,861.84 
D 6,464.34 
E 4,592.77 
F 2,349.20 
G 929.98 
H 69.00 
  
Allowance For Non Collection at 1.5% (469.64) 
  
Council Tax Base 30,839.54 


 
Individual taxpayer’s liability will depend upon the valuation band of the 
property they occupy.  


 
40. BUSINESS RATES 
 


For 2013/14 the introduction of the new Business Rates Retention Scheme 
has necessitated a new Collection Fund Statement in relation to Business 
Rates; under the new regime North Devon Council has joined a Devon wide 
pool in order to mitigate any losses and share any gains due to changes in the 
local economy. During 2013/14 the Devon Pool had net growth of £1.5m of 
which this authority received an additional £64k. 
 
The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area that are based on local 
rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate.  The total non-domestic rateable 
value as at 31st March 2014 was £84.518m. In 2013/14 the rate was 47.1p in 
the pound for small businesses and 48.2p in the pound for others as 
prescribed by the Government.   
 
The total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid from the 
Collection Fund to a combination of Central Government, Devon County 
Council and Devon & Somerset Fire Service via the Devon Wide Pool. This is 
managed by Plymouth City Council, which in turn pays back authorities their 
share of any gain or loss. 


 
41. COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT 
 


For 2013/14 the introduction of the new Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme, 
means that Council Tax Benefit (CTB) is now a discount rather than a benefit 
and therefore there is no transfer to the General Fund.  The reduced grant that 
replaces the old subsidy system is now paid direct to Precepting & Collection 
authorities within their Formula Grant allocation; this results in lower Council 
Tax Requirements & therefore lower precepts as is evident when comparing 
precept levels for 2012/13 to 2013/14. 
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42. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 
 
 Participation in Pension Schemes 
 
 As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority 


makes contributions towards the cost of post employment benefits.  Although 
these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority 
has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time 
that employees earn their future entitlement. 


 
 The Authority participates in two post employment schemes: 
 


• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Devon 
County Council – that is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, 
meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, 
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with 
investment assets. 
 


• Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon 
early retirement – this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under 
which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.  However, there 
are no investment assets built up to meet these pensions liabilities and 
cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they 
eventually fall due. 


 
 
 Transactions Relating To Post Employment Benefits 
 
 We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services 


when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are 
eventually paid as pensions.  However, the charge we are required to make 
against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost 
of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund 
via the Movements in Reserves Statement.   


 
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement 
in Reserves Statement during the year: 
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Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account 


Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Discretionary 
Benefits 


Arrangements 
 2012/13


£000
(re-stated)


2013/14
£000


2012/13 
£000 


2013/14
£000


Cost of services:     
• Current service cost 2,001 2,135 0 0
• Past service cost 323 305 0 0
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


 


• Net Interest cost 1,713 1,835 0 0
Administration expenses 26 31 0 0
Total post employment benefit charged 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


4,063 4,306 0 0


Movement in reserves statement:  
Reversal of net charges made to the 
Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 
Services for the past employment benefits 
in accordance with the Code 


4,063 4,306 0 0


Actual amount charged against the 
General Fund Balance for pensions in the 
year: 


 


Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme 


(1,490) (1,530) (245) (244)


 
 The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 31st March 2014 is 
a gain of £2.2m. 


 
 
 Assets and Liabilities In Relation To Post Employment Benefits 
 
 Reconciliation of present value of the Fund liabilities: 
 


 Funded Liabilities: 
Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: 
Discretionary Benefits 


 2012/13
£000


(re-stated)


2013/14
£000


2012/13 
£000 


2013/14
£000


Opening balance at 1st April 85,727 94,684 3,289 3,366
Current service cost 2,001 2,135 0 0
Past service cost 323 305 0 0
Interest cost 4,023 4,246 0 0
Contributions by scheme participants 496 474 0 0
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising on 
changes in financial assumptions 


5,660 1,462 322 379


Actuarial (gains)/losses arising on 
changes in demographic assumptions 


0 541 0 0


Experience (gains)/losses on defined 
benefit obligation 


104 (4,587) 0 0


Benefits paid (3,650) (3,868) 0 0
Unfunded pension payments 0 0 (245) (244)
Closing balance at 31st March  94,684 95,392 3,366 3,501
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Reconciliation of fair value of the Fund (plan) assets: 
 
 Local Government Pension Scheme 


2012/13
£000


(re-stated)


2013/14
£000


   
Opening balance at 1st April 51,048 55,707
Interest income 2,310 2,411
Return on assets (less interest) 4,038 142
Other actuarial gains/(losses) 0 (135)
Employer contributions 1,735 1,774
Contributions by scheme participants 496 474
Administration expenses (25) (31)
Benefits paid (3,895) (4,112)
Closing balance at 31st March 55,707 56,230


 
 The expected return on Fund assets is determined by considering the 


expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment 
policy.  Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross 
redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 


 
 Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return 


experienced in the respective markets. 
 
 The actual return on Fund assets in the 2013/14 year was £2,553,000 


(2012/13 £6,347,000). 
 
 Fund History 
  


 2009/10
£000


2010/11
£000


2011/12
£000


2012/13 
£000 


2013/14
£000


Present value of liabilities:      
Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


90,232 72,405 85,727 94,684 95,392


Discretionary benefits 4,028 3,221 3,289 3,366 3,501
Fair value of assets in the 
Local Government Pension 
Scheme Surplus/(deficit) in 
the scheme: 


 


Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


49,130 50,660 51,048 55,707 56,230


Surplus/(deficit) in scheme:  
Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


(41,102) (21,745) (34,679) (38,977) (39,162)


Discretionary benefits (4,028) (3,221) (3,289) (3,366) (3,501)
Total (45,130) (24,966) (37,968) (42,343) (42,663)


  
 


The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the 
long run to pay post employment (retirement) benefits.  The total liability of 
£42.7m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Authority as recorded 
in the Balance Sheet.  However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit 
mean that the financial position of the Authority remains healthy: 
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• The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by 
increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. 
before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary. 


• Finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when 
the pensions are actually paid. 


 
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme by the Council in the year to 31st March 2015 is £1,750,000.  
Expected contributions for the discretionary benefits scheme in the year to 31st 
March 2015 are £250,000. 
 
Basis for Estimating Assets And Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years 
dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.   
 
Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits 
liabilities have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of 
actuaries and are based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 
March 2014. 


  
2012/13 


 
Actuarial Assumptions 2013/14 


 
 Mortality assumptions:  
 Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:  


20.6 • Men 22.7 
24.6 • Women 26.0 


 Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:  
22.6 • Men 24.9 
26.5 • Women 28.3 


3.4% Rate of inflation – RPI 3.6% 
2.6% Rate of inflation – CPI 2.8% 
4.8% Rate of increase in salaries 4.6% 
2.6% Rate of increase in pensions 2.8% 
4.4% Discount rate 4.4% 


50%/75% Take up of option to convert annual pension into 
retirement lump sum 


50%/75% 


 
The discretionary benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities.  
The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following 
categories, by proportion of the total assets held: 


 
 31st March 2013 31st March 2014
 
Equities 61% 60%
Gilts 13% 7%
Property 8% 9%
Cash 3% 2%
Target Return Portfolio 15% 15%
Infrastructure n/a 2%
Other Bonds n/a 5%
Total 100% 100%
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 Sensitivity Analysis 
 
 The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial 


assumptions set out in the above table.  
 


The sensitivity analysis shown below have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the 
reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed 
changes while all other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in 
longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for 
men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of 
the assumptions may be interrelated.  
 
The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 
policies for the scheme, i.e. on the actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the 
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous 
period. 


 
 


Impact on the present value of total 
obligation 


+0.1%
£000


0.0%
£000


-0.1% 
£000 


Adjustment to discount rate 97,181 98,893 100,637 
Adjustment to long term salary increase 99,136 98,893 98,652 
Adjustment to pension increases 100,420 98,893 97,394 


 
Impact on the present value of total 
obligation 


+1 year
£000


0.0%
£000


-1 year 
£000 


Adjustment in longevity 95,409 98,893 102,408 
 
 
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 


The Council is obliged to keep information on Environmental Information 
regulations and, where possible, to make that information freely available.  
Case law has indicated that local authorities may have charged for information 
that should have been provided free of charge, but the situation is still 
evolving.  The Council may be subject to claims for refunds of fees incorrectly 
paid.  It is not possible to accurately estimate an amount but it is not 
considered to be material. 


 
 
44. CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 


The Council has lodged a Voluntary Disclosure (Protective Claim) with HM 
Customs and Excise amounting to £6.157 million for repayment of Value 
Added Tax on Car Parking income. The decision on whether payment will be 
made to the Council is dependent upon the outcome of a further Tribunal 
hearing of the Isle of Wight appeal. As receipt of the payment is uncertain it 
has not been included within these accounts. 
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45. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 


 
 The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
 


• Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due 
to the Authority 


• Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds 
available to meet its commitments to make payments 


• Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Authority might be requiring to 
renew a financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates 
or terms 


• Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority 
as a result of changes in such measures as interest rate movements. 


 
The Authority’s overall risk management procedures focus on the 
unpredictability of financial markets, and are structured to implement suitable 
controls to minimise these risks.  The procedures for risk management are set 
out through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and 
associated regulations.  These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA 
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the 
Public Services and investment guidance issued through the Act.  Overall, 
these procedures require the Authority to manage risk in the following ways: 


 
• by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury 


Management Code of Practice; 
• by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management 


clauses within its financial regulations/standing orders/constitution; 
• by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the 


following three years limiting: 
o The Council’s overall borrowing; 
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates; 
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its 


debt; 
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year. 


• by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out 
its criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties in 
compliance with Government guidance; 


 
These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s 
annual Council Tax setting budget or before the start of the year to which they 
relate.  These items are reported with the annual treasury management 
strategy, which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to 
the Council’s financial instrument exposure.  Actual performance is also 
reported after each year, as is a mid-year update. 
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The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential 
indicators was approved by Council on 27 February 2013 and is available on 
the Council website.  The key issues within the strategy were: 


 
• The Authorised Limit for 2013/14 was set at £9m.  This is the maximum 


limit of external borrowings or other long-term liabilities. 
• The Operational Boundary was expected to be £4m.  This is the expected 


level of debt and other long-term liabilities during the year. 
• The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were 


set at 100% and 80% based on the Council’s net debt. (Variable interest 
rate exposure indicator was amended to 150% by Council on 27 
November 2013). 


 
These policies are implemented by Financial Services.  The Council maintains 
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
(Treasury Management Practices – TMPs) covering specific areas, such as 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash.  These TMPs 
are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically. 


 
 Credit Risk 
 
 Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as 


credit exposures to the Authority’s customers. 
 


This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires 
that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet 
identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services.  The Annual Investment Strategy 
also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial 
institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless 
they meet the minimum requirements of the investment criteria outlined above.  
 
This Authority uses the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset 
Services.  This service uses a sophisticated modeling approach with credit 
ratings from all three rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and 
Poors, forming the core element.  However, it does not rely solely on the 
current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses the following as overlays:  
 
• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies 
• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings 
• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 


countries 
 
This Authority has set a limit of £3m for investment with any individual 
institution and £4m with institutions that are more than 30% government 
owned. 
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The full Investment Strategy for 2013/14 was approved by Full Council on 27 
February 2013 and is available on the Council’s website. 
 


 Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their 
financial position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit 
limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with 
parameters set by the Council. 


 
The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments 
in banks and building societies of £1.9m cannot be assessed generally as the 
risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal 
sum will be specific to each individual institution.  Recent experience has 
shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  
A risk of recoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there was 
no evidence at 31st March 2014 that this was likely to crystallise.   


 
 The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum 


exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on experience of 
default, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.   


 
 


 


Amount at 
31st March 


2014 
£000 


Historical 
experience 
of default 


% 


Adjusted 
for market 
conditions 


at 31st 
March 
2014 


% 


Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default 


at 31st 
March 
2014 
£000 


 A B C (A x C) 
Sums invested 1,873 0% 0% 0 
Customers – debtors 2,679 33.13% 33.13% 888 


 
 No breaches of the Authority’s counterparty criteria occurred during the 


reporting period and the Authority does not expect any losses from non-
performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits. 


 
 The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £2.7m is 


past its due date for payment.  The past due but not impaired amount can be 
analysed by age as follows: 


 
 


 31st March 2013
£000


31st March 2014
£000


 
0 to 6 months 1,815 1,656
6 months to 1 year 
1 to 2 years 


338 
272


244
232


More than 2 years 
Total 


648 
3,073


547
2,679


  
Collateral - During the reporting period the council held no collateral as 
security.  
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Liquidity Risk 
 


The Authority manages its liquidity position through the risk management 
procedures above (the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the 
approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as through a 
comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA 
Code of Practice.  This seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed. 


 
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover 
any day-to-day cash flow need, and the PWLB and money markets for access 
to longer-term funds.  The Council is also required to provide a balanced 
budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures 
sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  There is therefore 
no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its 
commitments under financial instruments.   


 
As at 31st March 2014 all sums owing, excluding sums due from customers, 
are due to be paid in less than one year. 


 
 


Refinancing and Maturity risk 
 
The Authority maintains a debt and investment portfolio.  Whilst the cash flow 
procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, 
longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing 
financial instruments as they mature.  This risk relates to both the maturing of 
longer-term financial liabilities and longer-term financial assets. 


 
The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the 
limits placed on investments placed for greater than one year in duration are 
the key parameters used to address this risk.  The Council approved treasury 
and investment strategies address the main risks and Financial Services 
address the operational risks within the approved parameters.  This includes: 


 
• monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the 


profile through either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing 
debt; and 


• monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is 
available for the Council’s day-to-day cash flow needs, and the spread of 
longer-term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in 
relation to the longer-term cash flow needs. 


 
The maturity analysis of financial liabilities includes the maximum and 
minimum limits for fixed interest rates maturing in each period. These limits 
were in the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council. 
 
As at 31st March 2014 the Authority did not have any outstanding fixed interest 
rate financial liabilities. 
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Market Risk 
 
 Interest rate risk - The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its 


borrowings and investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex 
impact on the Authority, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates 
move across differing financial instrument periods.  For instance, a rise in 
variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects: 


 
• Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise; 
• Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no 


impact on revenue balances) 
• Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise; and 
• Investment at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on 


revenue balances) 
 
 Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal 


gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and receivable on 
variable rate borrowings and investment will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance, subject to 
influences from Government grants.  Movements in the fair value of fixed rate 
investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in the Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


  
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The 
Annual Treasury Management Strategy draws together Council’s prudential 
and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an 
expectation of interest rate movements.  From this Strategy a treasury 
indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest 
rate exposure.  Financial Services will monitor market and forecast interest 
rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately.  For instance during 
periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it 
favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure 
better long term returns, similarly the drawing of longer term fixed rates 
borrowing would be postponed.   
 
Price Risk - The Authority does not generally invest in equity shares or 
marketable bonds. 
 
Foreign Exchange Risk 
 
The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies. It therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in 
exchange rates. 
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46. HERITAGE ASSETS:  FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF TRANSACTIONS 
 
 


 
2009/10


£000
2010/11


£000
2011/12


£000
2012/13


£000
2013/14 


£000 


Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 


2014
£000


  
Valuation Movement 
of Heritage Assets 


 


  
Pottery 149 0 0 7 0 156
  
Carpet 184 0 0 9 0 193
  
Decorative Arts 51 0 0 2 0 53
  
Other 415 0 0 22 32 469
  
Total Valuation 799 0 0 40 32 871
  


 
 
47. HERITAGE ASSETS:  FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE MUSEUM’S 


COLLECTIONS 
 


The Museum of Barnstaple & North Devon opened in 1989 in the former 
premises of the North Devon Athenaeum.  Its collections are derived partly 
from the Athenaeum, (est. 1889, previously the Barnstaple Literary and 
Scientific Institution), but also from the Borough of Barnstaple Museum in 
St.Anne’s Chapel (est. 1924) and from more recent collections.  The 
collections cover the full range of museum disciplines, including natural 
history, archaeology, social history and fine and decorative art. 


 
Some collections including the Royal Devon Yeomanry collections, art and 
social history belonging to the North Devon Athenaeum, and some church 
silver are held on loan and are not considered to be Heritage Assets of the 
council. 


 
The (council owned) collection currently comprises over 47,000 items: 


 
• More than 23,500 social history items, including militaria, and the Shapland 


and Petter design archive; 
• Over 200 paintings and drawings; 
• About 1,800 items of decorative art, including a number of individually 


important items and the North Devon Art Pottery Collection; 
• More than 9,500 natural history specimens and over 5,500 geology 


specimens; 
• Over 6000 archaeology specimens, plus an additional 2500 boxes of 


excavated finds not yet processed. 
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Social History 
 


The social history collection consists of over 23,500 items, the majority 
collected in the last 30 years. The collection comprises mainly domestic and 
household items with a North Devon provenance, along with material 
representing local trades and industries.   There are also specific collections 
such as history of science, militaria, photographs, documents and ephemera.  
Important collections include the Shapland and Petter design archive and the 
collection of James Ravilious photographs. These are included in Note 46 
within the “Other” category. 


 
Fine and Decorative Art 


 
Fine Art 
The museum’s fine art collection is small, around 213 drawings and paintings, 
mostly local topographic views.  Well-represented artists include Brian Chugg 
and Francis Carruthers Gould. These are included in Note 46 within the 
“Other” category. 


 
Decorative Arts 
The decorative arts collection consists of nearly 1800 items, the most 
important being the Huguenot table carpet, the 17th century John Abbott 
plaster overmantel, the C.H.Brannam collection of North Devon Art Pottery 
and a lidded bowl by George Fishley.  There are also a number of pieces of 
furniture by Shapland and Petter, including an inlaid mahogany display 
cabinet.  Important examples of North Devon silver include a collection of 
silver spoons and the Barnstaple Dissenters’ silver.  In note 46 the Huguenot 
table carpet is identified separately, the 17th Century Overmantle is within the 
“Decorative Arts” category, the Brannam collection and the lidded bowl by 
George Fishley is within the “Pottery” category, everything else is within the 
“Other” Category.  


 
Natural History 
The museum holds nearly 10,000 natural history specimens, including the 
historic collections of the North Devon Athenaeum and more recent scientific 
collections.  The Sharland herbarium is of particular importance. These are 
included in Note 46 within the “Other” category. 


 
Geology 
The geology collections, numbering over 5500 specimens include the 
Partridge and Townsend Hall collections.  This collection is highly important 
for Devonian geology, including a number of type and figured specimens. 
These are included in Note 46 within the “Other” category. 


 
Archaeology 
The archaeology collection comprises historic collections and stray finds from 
the local Mesolithic to the present day together with excavated material.  The 
museum is the collecting institution for all archaeological investigations in the 
Northern part of the county of Devon.  There are substantial excavation 
archives relating to the post-mediaeval Barnstaple pottery industry, which are 
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still being processed. There is also a very small ethnographic collection. 
These are all included in Note 46 within the “Other” category. 


 
Heritage Assets of Particular Importance 
 
The most valuable items in the collection are as follows: 


 
Huguenot Table Carpet   £192,973 
Dissenters silver    £10,121 
Shapland & Petter display cabinet £11,695 
Bowl with lid by George Fishley  £23,391 
Brannam Pottery exhibits   £132,857 
Silver Spoons    £23,391 
Overmantel 17th Century   £8,000 


 
The valuations are mostly based on the curator’s assessment of market 
changes since the items were acquired.  In the case of the Huguenot table 
carpet, which is a unique item, the valuation is based on a compensatory sum 
should it be destroyed. 


 
Preservation and Management 


  
The Museum of Barnstaple & North Devon has a rolling programme of 
conservation work and each year spends around £500 on remedial and 
preventive conservation work, directed by immediate need and prioritised by 
the exhibition programme.  In addition, items are sometimes conserved 
through grant programmes. 


  
The Museum is managed by professionally qualified staff, their previous 
secondment to the North Devon Theatres Trust ended on the 31st March 
2014, after that date the staff reverted back to North Devon Council.  Day to 
day collections care is carried out by the Museum Assistant, under the 
direction of the Museums Development Manager.  


  
The Museum of Barnstaple & North Devon is an Accredited Museum and has 
the necessary documentation and collections care procedures in place, 
including the Acquisitions and Disposals Policy approved by Council.  We are 
currently working on an integrated Collections Management Plan, which will 
satisfy the new (2011) Accreditation Standard when the Museum comes up 
for re-accreditation in 2014.  
 
In 2013-14 we acquired two collections of coins; these are included in Note 
46 within “Other” category. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH DEVON 
DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 












Open/ 


NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 


 


REPORT TO: EXECUTIVE 


Date: 1st July 2014 


TOPIC: TECHNOLOGY FORGE AND LAND REGISTRATION 
PROJECT 


REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 


 


1 INTRODUCTION 


1.1 The Council has a computerised system which records the Council’s landholding and 
contains information useful or necessary to the management of that land.  This is 
known as Technology Forge. 


1.2 The system has not yet been fully utilised as the Council’s land holding has not yet 
been fully registered at HM Land Registry. 


1.3 This report seeks authority and funding to enable this to be completed.  


2 RECOMMENDATIONS 


2.1 That the Technology Forge project is re-started and that the sum of £35,350 is 
allocated from the Improvement Programme reserve 


3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 


3.1  To ensue that the Technology Forge project is completed and that the benefits as 
set out below are delivered.  


4 REPORT 


4.1 In around 2006/07, the Council undertook an exercise to register all of it’s 
landholding at HM Land Registry.  This was to ensure that the then new Technology 
Forge system could be populated and used properly.   


4.2 Whilst a great deal of progress was made with the initiative, it remains incomplete 
with around 400 individual titles remaining to be registered.  It should be pointed out 
that this does not equate to 400 separate pieces of land or property as many of the 
individual titles are grouped together to form one land holding, principally in the 
urban “slum” clearance areas. 


4.3  There are numerous advantages to completing this project now.  In fact there are 
probably more benefits and a greater need to completing the work now than when it 
was originally started. 







4.4 The Government’s Transparency agenda has been introduced and as part of this, 
the recently updated Local Government Transparency Code 2014 states that Local 
Authorities must publish information relating to its landholding and make it available 
for the public.  


4.5 Information about the Council’s landholding is also likely to be deemed to be 
“environmental” information and the Council is under a statutory duty to increase 
the amount of such information that it makes available electronically. 


4.6 The Council is also under a duty to publish data sets.  Information about the 
Council’s landholding is likely to fall within this. 


4.7 Another major advantage of completing this project is that at present, the title deeds 
of the Council’s land must be stored in close proximity to the legal team in a suitable 
storage area.  When the office moves are completed, it is unlikely that a suitable 
storage facility to replace the existing arrangements will be readily available.  
Completing the project means that some of the title deeds may be able to be loaned 
to the Records Office and the remainder should be capable of off site secure 
storage. 


4.8 Storage of documents has been flagged up as one of the issues with the 21:21 
project and re-starting this aspect will help to reduce the costs of storage and 
increase the options for office accommodation.    


4.9 It should also be said that completing this project will produce operational efficiencies 
when dealing with land sales or leases etc.   


4.10 Clearly there will be a cost associated with completing this work.  The costs are set 
out in the Appendix and comprise of staffing costs, disbursements such as Land 
Registry fees and software licence fees.  Some of the costs are only tentative 
figures at this stage, principally the Land Registry fees.  When it becomes clear how 
many titles are required to still be registered, there may be a reduction in the fees 
charged.  


4.11 It is anticipated that the project will take 4 months to complete. 


4.12 One implication of proceeding with the project will be the storage capacity within the 
Council’s IT systems.  It is hoped that this will be accommodated within existing 
capacity but it will require the team working on the project to only scan in the 
minimum required documents. 


4.13 It should also be noted that the anticipated costs and timescales have been 
calculated without a detailed perusal of each title.  Some will be complicated and 
some will be straightforward.  Clearly, there is the possibility for the contract to 
overrun if more titles prove to be complicated, but a contingency of £5,000 has 
been built into the budget to cover a further month.   


5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 


5.1 The costs of the project are set out in the Appendix. 







6 EQUALITY and HUMAN RIGHTS 


6.1  No such issues 


7 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 


7.1 Article and 
paragraph 


7.2 Appendix 
and 
paragra
ph 


7.3 Referred or 
delegated 
power? 


7.4 A key 
decision
? 


7.5  7.6 Appendix 
4 – para 
8 


7.7 Delegated 7.8 No 


8 BACKGROUND PAPERS 


8.1 List of background papers (but not including published works or those that disclose 
exempt or confidential information (as defined in rule 10 of appendix 15 (Access to 
Information Procedural Rules) and the advice of a Political Advisor/Assistant): 


8.2  


8.3 Background papers will be available for inspection and will be kept by the author of 
the report. 


9 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 


9.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and officers. 


Executive Member: Councillor Greenslade and Councillor Spear  


Author: Ken Miles    Date: 9th June 2014 


Reference: Document1 


 


 


 


 


Appendix 1 – Likely costs 


 


Staffing   


Lead Officer 10,000  


Scanning Assistant 6,700  


Final Payments 3,400 20,100 


Land Registry fees   


Registration Fees 6,000  







Fees for purchase of 
polygons 


3,000 9,000 


Software Fees   


2 x Additional licences 1,250 1,250 


Contingency  5,000 


   


Total  35,350 
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REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 


Date:  


TOPIC: TECHNOLOGY FORGE AND LAND REGISTRATION 
PROJECT 


REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 


 


1 INTRODUCTION 


1.1 Audit Committee has asked for a report regarding the Council’s land holding and 
registration of the same. 


1.2 This report annexes a copy of a report which at the time of writing is a draft report, to 
Executive which deals with this issue.  


2 RECOMMENDATIONS 


2.1 That Members note the attached report 


3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 


3.1  So that Members are aware of the above project  


4 REPORT 


4.1 The attached report hopefully gives Members sufficient information about the project 
to enable them to be satisfied that steps are hopefully going to be taken to complete 
the land registration project.  


5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 


5.1 The costs of the project are set out in the report. 
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exempt or confidential information (as defined in rule 10 of appendix 15 (Access to 
Information Procedural Rules) and the advice of a Political Advisor/Assistant): 


8.2  


8.3 Background papers will be available for inspection and will be kept by the author of 
the report. 


9 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 


9.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and officers. 


Author: Ken Miles    Date: 9th June 2014 
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North Devon District Council 


Internal Audit Report 


Theatres and Museums 2013/14 


 
June 2014 
 


This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 14. 


 


Report issued to:  


Head of Property and 
Technical Services 


 


Diana Hill 


Head of Finance Steve Hearse 


  


This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract dated 14 September 2011 between North Devon District Council and 
Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited


[1]
.  This report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of North Devon District Council.  This report must not be 


disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to 
any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 


[1]
  As from 1 February 2014, Mazars LLP purchased the shares of Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited from Deloitte LLP.  The company will be known as 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 
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Executive Summary 


Background 


The Council owns the following buildings; 


 Queens Theatre, Barnstaple;  


 Landmark Theatre, Ilfracombe; and  


 The Museum of Barnstaple and North Devon.   


The Queens Theatre is situated in Barnstaple town centre and seats 680 people.  Apart from the stage area, the theatre has a gallery space and two bars.  
The Landmark Theatre is situated in Ilfracombe near to the seafront and seats 480 people, and has a pavilion room which can accommodate a further 200 
people.  It also has a café bar. 


The Theatres are managed through lease agreements by the North Devon Theatres Trust (the ‘Trust’). The Trust is a not for profit company limited by 
guarantee and is a registered charity (registered charity number 1027553).  The Trusts company directors are also the Trustees of the charity and as such do 
not receive remuneration.  The Trust currently has an annual turnover of £2.4 million, of which approximately 26% is derived from grants from North Devon 
District Council, Devon County Council and the Arts Council England.  The remaining 74% is earned income from the box office, catering, bar, commercial 
and business activities. 


The management for the museum has been managed through a management contract with the Trust, which expired in 2009.  The management has 
continued through the Trust, together with two members of staff seconded from the Council to work at the Museum.   In April 2014, the museum came back 
‘in-house’, ending the secondment arrangements with North Devon Theatres Trust.  In a report to the Council’s Executive Committee on 7 February 2014, the 
conclusion  was that, ‘Bringing the service back “in house” will allow NDC to review the current operation properly and allow it to prepare for any possible 
future transfer of the service in a clean and professional way’. 
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Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings 


Through the work undertaken, the following opinion has been provided: 


Audit Opinion 


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / or 
there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 


 
 
For a key to the assurance ratings, see Appendix B – Reporting Definitions. 


Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit, we have raised the following  recommendations. 


Priority 
Number of 


Recommendations 
Area of Scope / Recommendation 


 


0  


  


3 


 


 


Formal agreements should be in place 


Management Information should be provided for Performance information and Funding Expenditure 


Risk registers should include Theatres and Museums 


 


 


 


 


 


 
  


Substantial 
Assurance 
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Section 1 – Detailed Summary of Key Findings  


Area 1:  Policies and Procedures 


The Council’s Corporate Plan 2011 – 15 includes objectives for culture including theatres and museums, and to ‘Protect and enhance existing parks, sports, 
culture and recreational facilities.’   The Corporate Plan 2011 – 2015 is available to the public via the Council’s website and includes information on North 
Devon’s Theatres and Museums, and also provides links to related external public websites, such as North Devon Theatres Trust. 
 
The Council has a Leisure and Health Strategy, which includes its theatres and museums.  An action plan is in place for 2013 to 2018 with an objective to 
provide North Devon’s residents with access to quality art and culture from the subsidies provided to the Theatres Trust.  We confirmed that the action plan is 
currently monitored and progressed by the Contracts Delivery Manager (Parks, Leisure and Culture). 
 
There is also an asset management strategy in place, which includes Council owned properties, including the theatre and museum buildings. We confirmed 
the strategy was last reviewed and updated in May 2013.   


 
Area 2: Formal agreements in place 
 
Contracts formalise the arrangements in place between parties and set out the responsibilities of each.  There is  a contract in place for the management of 
the Queen’s Theatre, Barnstaple, but this has not been signed.  There is no contract in place for the Landmark Theatre, Ilfracombe 
 
A lease agreement is in place for the Queens Theatre, but this has been in place many years, although the rent has been reviewed..  The lease will expire in 
2015.  An extension is planned to 2018 in order that funding can be received from the Arts Council.  However, any extension to the lease agreement will firstly 
require a transparency notice to be published under EU regulations.  A notice has ben published for the Queens Theatre, and the notice for the Landmark 
Theatre has been completed and will be published in May 2014).   In addition we noted that a lease has been drafted for the Landmark Theatre, but this has 
yet to be signed.  Without formal contracts in place for the lease, management and funding, the risk is increased for parties to work independently of the other 
party's expectations.  Furthermore, actions may not be accountable, fair and transparent.  We have raised a recommendation to address this. 
 
The Museums service had been delivered through a management agreement until 2009 (and secondment agreement for one full time and one part time 
member of staff.)  The Council is the governing body for the Museums.  We confirmed the agreement has expired and the management of the museum has 
been taken back in house.  The Council’s Contracts Delivery Manager is currently managing the Council’s arrangements in respect of the Museums activities 
and staff. 
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Area 3: Current management structure 
 


The Trust has a board of ten Trustees. There are 36 employees, including a director and four heads of department.. Apart from the lease agreements, there is 
no formalised agreement for operational management arrangement of the two theatres.  The Trust has recently appointed a new director, and the Council’s 
Contract Delivery Manager is working with the director to implement a new management agreement.  This should be finalised by June 2014. 


 
Area 4: Formalisation of funding arrangements 
 
The Council provides the theatre with a subsidy of £520,000 a year.  External funding is received by the Council before it is transferred to the Trust.  Funding 
has also been granted by the Arts Council, £60,000 for a specific theatre project (Renaissance project).  This funding has been paid to the Council who will 
pay the Trust in instalments of £12,500.  We confirmed the final instalment has been paid to the Trust.   
 
To enable monitoring and review of Council funding, regular financial reports should be provided to the Council by the North Devon Theatres Trust.  An annual 
review has been provided by the Trust to the members of the Executive Committee.  The last review was provided to the Executive Committee in January 
2013 in respect of the 2011/12 year.  We noted that the report provided does not include any regular financial performance information in respect of Council 
funding received.  It is consequently difficult for Council staff to monitor how funding has been utilised, and that the Council's value for money expectations is 
being met.  .  We have raised a recommendation in address this. 
 


Area 5: Management of staff and volunteers 
 
Staff are management by the Trust under their contract for the Theatres, and as such the Council has no involvement in their human resource activities.  The 
Museum staff have previously been managed by the Trust, but due to a lack of clear management, the management of the Museum has been taken back, and  
is now governed by the Council and provides a human resource function including: 


 Contracts; 


 Wages and Salaries 


 Safeguarding;  and 


 Pensions 


We confirmed through our payroll audit 2013/14, the process for the payment of wages, salaries and pensions was in place for the Museum staff.. 
 


Area 6: Insurance 
 
The Council provides building insurance for the Theatres and Museums.  We confirmed the Policy is in place through Zurich Municipal Insurance and is 
effective to 31 March 2015.  The Council’s Employer Liability Policy also included Museum activities and this policy is in place to 31 March 2015. 
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Area 7: Security and ownership of assets 
 
The Museum at Barnstaple holds stocks of archived materials and artefacts, many of these are antiquities.  The archived stock is currently being catalogued. 
As previously noted in the executive summary the Museum is now back in house, with the objective of the Council having more control over the running of the 
museum.  A business case will be brought before the Executive, containing financial modelling for scenarios both for the theatres and museums.  The 
business case will also consider the amount of control a trust would have over the council’s building and collection if the trust solution was the one 
recommended to take forward.  This will be explored to ensure that any transfer if agreed is conducted appropriately and in a legally sound manner (including 
full consideration of any procurement and property implications.  
 


Area 8: Risk management 
 
The Council has a corporate risk register.  Departmental risks are held on individual service plans.  Through these registers risks should be identified, 
evaluated and managed for contractual arrangements in place.  We noted arrangements in respect of the Theatres and Museums had not been included 
within either the Council’s Corporate or departmental risk registers.  If risks are not managed effectively, then this increases the likelihood that the Theatres 
may not meet their objectives.  We have included a recommendation to address this. 
 


Area 9: Management Information 


 
An annual review by the North Devon Theatres Trust is presented to the Council’s Executive.  No other financial or performance information is given in the 
review.  Performance indicators measure the progress taken towards the achievement of objectives, however, we noted, there are currently no targets in 
place for the Theatres or the Museum.  The Leisure and Health action plan has documented targets for the existing cost of the subsidiary provided per user 
data set for the Theatres and Museums, and these could be utilised.  Without any performance indicators in place, it is difficult to monitor progress against 
targets and ultimately the achievement of objectives.  We have included a recommendation to address this. 
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Section 2 – Recommendations / Matters Arising 


1.  Formal agreements                                                                            Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


We recommend formal agreements are drafted and agreed 
between the Council and the North Devon Theatres Trust for 
the lease, funding, and management arrangements in place 
for the buildings and concessions currently managed by the 
Trust.  The agreements should be in place until 2018, when 
the current counterparty lease agreement expires. 


 


Contracts formalise the arrangements in place between 
parties and set out the responsibilities of each. 


There is a contract in place for the management of the 
Queen’s Theatre, Barnstaple.  There is no management 
contract in place for the  Landmark Theatre, Ilfracombe 


There is a lease in place for the Queens Theatre, but this 
has been in place many years.  The lease will expire in 2015.  
An extension is planned to 2018 in order that funding can be 
received from the Arts Council. 


A lease was drafted for the Landmark Theatre, but not 
signed. 


Without a formal contract in place for management and 
funding, the risk is increased for parties to work 
independently of the other party's expectations.  
Furthermore, actions may not be accountable, fair and 
transparent. 


Head of Property and 
Technical Services / 
Contracts Delivery 


Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


Transparency notices must be submitted prior to any lease extension in accordance with EU regulations.  A notice has 
already been place in respect of the Queens Theatre, and the notice for the Landmark Theatre will is currently being 
completed. 


June 2014 
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2. Management Information for Performance and Funding Expenditure                                                       
 Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


We recommend the Council agrees a set of key performance 
indicators with North Devon Theatres Trust, to be set within its 
formalised contractual arrangements.  Performance against 
the indicators should be reported each year to the Council's 
Executive Committee within the Trust's annual review.  The 
Council should also stipulate that it should receive financial 
performance information from the North Devon Theatres Trust 
in relation to any funding provided by them. 


 


Performance indicators measure the progress taken towards 
the achievement of objectives, and will enable the Council to 
monitor and review the funding it provides to the Trust. 


An annual review by the North Devon Theatres Trust is 
presented to the Council’s Executive. No financial or 
performance information is given in the review. 


We noted, there are currently no targets in place for the 
Theatres or the Museum.  However the Leisure and Health 
action plan has documented targets for existing cost of the 
subsidiary provided per user data set for the Theatres and 
Museums.   


Without any performance indicators in place, it is difficult to 
monitor progress against targets and ultimately the 
achievement of objectives. This increases the risk that 
funding may be used for expenditure not within the Council's 
expectations, and which may lead to financial loss. 


Head of Property and 
Technical Services / 
Contracts Delivery 
Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


A management agreement is to be implemented stipulating how performance will be reported.  The Contracts Delivery 
Manager is working with the Trust’s Managing Director in respect of expected performance and outcomes, using the Arts 
Council England’s strategic objectives for sustainability, equality and access.  Whilst these are not performance indicators, the 
contract will document what the Council expects as a service and also use the Arts Council England’s strategic goals. 


June 2014 
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3. Risk registers                                                                               Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


We recommend the Council identifies the risks in respect of 
the current arrangements between itself and the North Devon 
Theatres Trust.  Risks should be evaluation and placed on the 
Corporate and/or departmental risk registers to enable 
monitoring and review to be carried out. 


 


 


Risks should be identified, evaluated and managed for 
contractual arrangements in place. 


We noted arrangements in respect of the Theatres and 
Museums had not been included within either the Council’s 
Corporate or departmental risk registers. 


If risks are not managed effectively, then this increases the 
likelihood that Theatres may not meet their objectives. 


Head of Property and 
Technical Services / 
Contracts Delivery 
Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


The new agreements should provide mitigating controls in respect of the primary risks.  This will also be picked up in respect 
of the risk register 


June 2014 
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Appendix A – Audit Framework 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over Theatres and Museums at North Devon District 
Council. 


Audit Approach & Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Internal Audit Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 Identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 Testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and have 
drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system.  See Appendix B for details of the Audit team and staff interviewed. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: - 


 Policies and procedures in place for all sites, and accessible to staff; 


 Formal agreements in place which include the responsibilities for all parties therein; 


 Current management structure including trusts in place; 


 Formalisation of funding arrangements, including grants received; 


 Management of staff and volunteers include safeguarding arrangements; 


 Insurances in place to satisfy the Council’s indemnity requirements; 


 Security and ownership of assets, including stocks and archives; 


 Management of risks to the Council and its assets; 


 Management information, including financial and performance information.  
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Appendix B – Reporting Definitions 


In order to assist management in using our reports: 


a) We categorise our audit opinion according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of compliance with these controls:  


Full 
Assurance 


There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being consistently 
applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / 
or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives 
at risk. 


Limited 
Assurance 


Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-
compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil 
Assurance  


Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


b) We categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority. 


 


 


1 


High Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


 


2 


Medium Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee 
Important issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


 


3 


Low Priority Recommendation 
Detailed problems of a minor nature resolved on site through discussions with local management. 
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Appendix C – Staff Interviewed 


Audit Team Staff Consulted 


Andy Jefford – Director Contracts Delivery Manager  – Mark Kentell 


John Micklewright – Engagement Senior Manager Insurance and Technical Accounting Officer – Caroline McEvansoneya 


Rachel de Bradeny – Auditor Senior Capital Accountant – Tony Rumble 


An exit meeting was held with the Contracts Delivery  Manager, on Friday 9 May 2014. 
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Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for 
their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities 
for the application of sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and 
transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by 
management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


May 2014 


    


Andy Jefford Director Andrew.Jefford@mazars.co.uk 07810  656 522 


John Micklewright Engagement Manager John Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 07970 425 275 


Rachel de Bradeny Auditor Rachel de Bradeny@mazars.co.uk 07852 457 842 


 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name 
or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or communicate them to 
any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown 
or gains access to this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy 
group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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North Devon District Council 


Internal Audit Report 


Private Sector Renewal Renewals (Disabled Facilities Grants) 2013/14 


 
June 2014 
 


This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 11. 


 


Report issued to:  


Head of Environmental 
Health and Housing 


 


Jeremy Mann 


Head of Finance Steve Hearse 


  


This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract dated 14 September 2011 between North Devon District Council and 
Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited


[1]
.  This report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of North Devon District Council.  This report must not be 


disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to 
any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 


[1]
  As from 1 February 2014, Mazars LLP purchased the shares of Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited from Deloitte LLP.  The company will be known as 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 
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Executive Summary 


Background 


Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s) are mandatory grants provided to help people who have a disability to have the maximum amount of independence in their 
homes. The grants are available, subject to eligibility, to owner-occupiers and tenants up to a value of £30,000. 


Local Authorities have a legislative duty to those people who have a permanent and substantial disability to provide services to meet their essential needs. 
The main legislation which governs the provision of the DFG is contained within the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 (HGCRA) as 
amended by The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002 and the Disabled Facilities (Maximum Amounts and Additional 
Purposes) (England) Regulations 2008. 


The Council has identified key strategic objectives for private sector housing, including, ‘Improving health outcomes and reducing inequalities in health by 
supporting independent living for older people, reducing excess winter deaths and asthma associated with cold homes and the mitigation of fuel poverty’.  The 
key objectives will be delivered by a number of formalised policies, including one for promoting independent living for older people in the form of DFGs. 


Mandatory disabled facilities grants are funded by an annual allocation from Central Government.  Mandatory DFG may only be awarded for specific 
purposes, generally, involving the installation of equipment or appliances or enabling access to such facilities.  The Council has traditionally contributed 
significant additional sums to the capital allocation equivalent to 40% of the total budget.  The 40% contribution is no longer mandatory though the Council 
has elected to continue this level of support in recognition of the consistently high levels of need associated with an ageing and increasingly infirm population.  
Although DFG’s are the sole remaining form of mandatory assistance, the annual allocation is no longer ring-fenced for that purpose and Local Authorities are 
free to use their allocation in accordance with their own strategic objectives.  In North Devon, demand for assistance always exceeds the supply of available 
funds, and this has been demonstrated by the 2009 House condition survey where residents were asked questions relating to their health and disability:- 


 if any member of the household suffers from a long term illness or disability (It is estimated that 8,000 (19.5%) occupied dwellings have at least 
one resident with a long term illness or disability; and 


 to choose the condition that best described their disability. 


The results were as follows by percentage: 


A total wheelchair user   2.6 
Bed bound   1.5 
Fully mobile 5.7 
Hearing impaired 2.4 
Mainly wheelchair (can stand)   5.1 
Only wheelchair outdoors 5.1 
Other 23.3 
Visually impaired 7.0  
Walks using frame or aid 30.7 
Walks unaided, but unsteady 16.6 
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Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings 


Through the work undertaken, the following opinion has been provided: 


Audit Opinion 


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / or 
there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 


 
 
For a key to the assurance ratings, see Appendix B – Reporting Definitions. 


Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit, we have raised the following recommendations: 


Priority 
Number of 


Recommendations 
Area of Scope / Recommendation 


 


0  


  


0 


 


 


 


  


1 


 


 


 


Policies should be updated  


 


 


Substantial 
Assurance 
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Section 1 – Detailed Summary of Key Findings  


Area 1:  Strategies are in place and reflect legislation 


The Council has a Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy (PSHRS) in place, which is available to the public on its website.  The strategy sets out the key 
strategic objectives for private sector housing, including DFGs which includes the following; 
 


 Legislative context; 


 Strategic context, including funding challenges and meeting the needs of a changing population, with an increasing elderly population; 


 Alignment with the Council’s Corporate Plan, with one of the six priorities particularly relevant to DFGs, ‘Community Leadership and Wellbeing, including 
care and support in helping the elderly and infirm to live independently at home’; and 


 The aims of the PSHRS, including, ‘To minimise the adverse health and safety impacts of substandard housing on our most vulnerable populations and to 
reduce inequalities in health’. 


 
We noted that the strategy was dated 4 April 2013.  This was also the date the strategy had been approved by the Council’s Executive members at committee.  
The date of next review is set at 1 April 2015. 
 
The strategy is supported by the Disabled Facilities Grants Policy, which is available to the public on its website..  The policy sets out the Council’s legislative 
responsibilities and the statutory framework for the delivery of DFGs.  The policy also summarises eligibility requirements, the application process, conditions 
and completion of works, and penalties for any breach of grant conditions.  We noted the policy was dated 2008, with no date of review of update.  Policies 
and guidance documentation help to confirm policies are reviewed and updated on regular basis.  If policies and guidance is not reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis, these may become obsolete, increasing the risk that staff may following the incorrect processes, and result in inappropriate decisions being 
made.  There is also the risk that the public may access out of date information if such documentation is available in the public domain.  A recommendation 
has been raised accordingly. 


 
Area 2: The process for identifying sources of funding for grants is effective 
 
In excise of the powers conferred by S.31 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Department for Communities and Local Government provides an annual 
grant to the Council of £359,717 for 2013/14.   
 
In addition, the Council has provided £190,507 from its own funds.  North Devon Homes the area’s largest Housing Association has also provided £40,000.  
There is also an amount for grant monies repaid of £5,347.00.. 
 
We confirmed that this amount had been budgeted within the Council’s capital programme for 2013/14. 
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Area 3: Applications for grants for disabled facilities are correctly administered and recorded 


 
Information in respect of applications for DFGs is available to the public through the Council’s website and housing leaflets.  All applications should be 
completed on an official application for a disabled facility grant (part 1) for the year in which the application was made.  Information to be provided includes: 
 


 Disabled persons name and address, contact details, date of birth and National Insurance number; 


 Residential status; 


 Address of work to be carried out; 


 Any planning or building regulations applied for; 


 Any work already completed; 


 Ownership of property; and 


 Any estimates for work obtained. 
 


Once an application has been received it is reviewed by a housing administration officer.  If the application is eligible, the details are entered onto the 
Council’s M3 housing system which provides a tracking and monitoring facility for all individual records and meets Government requirements for annual 
reporting.  The application will then be passed to a housing inspection officer to check and confirm approval of eligibility. 
 
We obtained a sample of 20 completed DFG applications and were able to confirm that for all 20, the details had been entered onto the M3 system and these 
details were complete. 


 
Area 4: Grants for disabled facilities are means tested for all applicable applications 
 
All DFG applicants must complete part 2 of the application for a disabled facility grant.  This form requires all applicants to provide information and evidence in 
respect of any income and benefits.   A means test is applied to the disabled person.  This will determine whether a full grant is payable, or the level of 
contribution that the applicant has to make towards the cost of the works.  The disabled applicant must provide details of: 
 


 Any credit, income support or housing benefit; 


 Department of work and pensions support; 


 Council tax reduction; 


 Income as an employee or self employed 


 Pension; 


 Levels of capital 


 Any other income; 


 Details of dependents; and 


 People living in the property. 
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We confirmed that for our sample of applications, all had completed the Council’s means tested questionnaire, and this information had been entered onto the 
Council’s M3 system. 
 
Any application for grant assistance will only be processed on receipt of a referral from the Health and Social Care Department and supported by a Statement 
of Needs following assessment.  For all of our 20 applications tested, we confirmed a statement of needs had been received and signed by an Occupational 
Therapist employed by Devon County Council.  The statement of needs will support the housing inspection officer in their decision to agree the specific type of 
work to be carried out; for instance the installation of a stair lift. 
 


Area 5: Work to complete disabled facilities is monitored 
 
When all of the application paperwork has been received, estimates for work can be sought.  In the first instance, the applicant may obtain at least two 
quotations and these must be provided to the Council along with the application.  Alternatively, the Council can seek quotations if the applicant would have 
difficulty in undertaking this themselves.  Any quotation requested by the Council must comply with the Council’s Contract and Procurement Regulations.  
Once estimates have been received a disabled facilities grant calculation sheet is completed which sets out the estimate, any amount payable by the 
applicant (following means testing) and the balance payable through a DFG.  From our sample of 20 applications, we confirmed for all 20 that estimates had 
been received and recorded on the M3 system. 
 
Contractors obtained by the Council for DFG work are subject to assessments for finance and quality.  Following assessment the Council will utilise these 
contractors.  If a contractor is obtained by the applicant, then all work carried out will be assessed by housing officers during and after the work has been 
completed.  This is in line with the Council’s contract and procurement regulations. 
 
We confirmed for our sample of 20 applications work had been inspected by housing officers, as appropriate, during and following completion.   
 


Area 6: Accounting for grant payments is consistent 
 
Once all work has been completed to a satisfactory standard, the contractor can provide an invoice for payment.  The Council will pay the contractor the grant 
contribution.  The housing officer assigned to the application will check that the payment requested by the Contractor is as the estimate.  If the cost of work 
does escalate then a recalculation form must be resubmitted.  This will calculate any revised grant payment.  All costs are closely monitored as the DFG 
budget is finite.  For all 20 of the applications tested, we confirmed all costs had been recorded on the M3 system, a copy of the invoices had been retained on 
file, and the cost entered onto a spreadsheet maintained by the Council’s housing officers. 
 
The spread sheet consists of the DFG budgeted amount for the year.  A worksheet is maintained for each month and this sets out the number of applications: 
 


 Pre-approval; 


 In progress; and 


 Paid and completed. 
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Amounts are also entered for pre-approval commitments, and the amounts paid during the month and for the year to date.  A front sheet provides a summary 
of the amounts committed and paid out against the budget held on the general ledger.  At the time of our audit; the end of January 2014, the amount paid out 
totalled £528,403.74. 


 
Area 7: Funding for grant payments is including in the Council’s capital programme 
 
The Council’s capital programme is set at the beginning of the financial year, and approved by the members of the Council’s Executive Committee.  We 
confirmed the amount set for the DFG budget for 2013/14 was £595,571.  The budget had been approved by the Executive Committee at their meeting held 
on 5 February 2013.  The amount paid out as at 31 December 2013 was £509,421.  The capital programme balances as at 31 December 2013, had been 
reviewed and approved by the Council’s Executive Committee at their meeting held on 7 February 2014.  The balance of the DFG budget has been totally 
committed through pre-approval applications. 
 


Area 8: Management information is produced, analysed and reported 


 
Quarterly management information is produced by the Housing Services Manager for the departmental report for the Head of Service.  The information from 
the Council’s M3 system is used to support the information provided on the number of grant applications provided and the amounts paid.  The latest 
information provided was for quarter 3 2013/14, and at that time 84 DFG applications had been completed.   
 
This information is also reported to the Department of Communities and Local Government at the end of July each year.  The information will relate to the year 
completed to 31 March.  We confirmed the latest information had been provided through the Council’s Accountancy team at the end of July 2013.  Information 
provided includes: 
 


 Numbers if works completed for applicants under 20 and those over 60; 


 Works completed in property owned by housing associations; and  


 Amounts forecasted for the coming financial year. 
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Section 2 – Recommendations  


1.  Disabled Facilities Grants Policy should be updated                                                             Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


We recommend the Disabled Facilities Grants Policy is 
reviewed and updated if necessary.   


The document should be annotated with the date of latest 
review. 


Policies and guidance documentation help to confirm policies 
are reviewed and updated on regular basis. 


We confirmed the Council has a Disabled Facilities Grants 
Policy in place, and available to the public on the Council’s 
website.  From examination of the policy we noted that the 
date of the policy is 2008. There is no date of review or 
update on the document. 


If policies and guidance is not reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis, these may become obsolete, increasing the 
risk that staff may following the incorrect processes, and 
result in inappropriate decisions being made.  There is also 
the risk that the public may access out of date information if 
such documentation is available in the public domain. 


Housing Services 
Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


Accepted December 2014 
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Appendix A – Audit Framework 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over Private Sector Renewals (Disabled Facilities 
Grants) at North Devon District Council. 


Audit Approach & Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Internal Audit Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 Identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 Testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and have 
drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system.  See Appendix B for details of the Audit team and staff interviewed. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: - 


 Strategies are in place and reflect legislation; 


 The process for identifying sources of funding for grants is effective; 


 Applications for grants for disabled facilities are correctly administered and recorded; 


 Grants for disabled facilities are means tested for all applicable applications; 


 Work to complete disabled facilities is monitored; 


 Accounting for grant payments is consistent; 


 Funding for grant payments is including in the Council’s capital programme; and 


 Management information is produced, analysed and reported.  
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Appendix B – Reporting Definitions 


In order to assist management in using our reports: 


a) We categorise our audit opinion according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of compliance with these controls:  


Full 
Assurance 


There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being 
consistently applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and 
/ or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 


Limited 
Assurance 


Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-
compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil 
Assurance  


Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


b) We categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority. 


  
 


High Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


 


Medium Priority Recommendation 
Important issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


 


Low Priority Recommendation 
Detailed problems of a minor nature resolved on site through discussions with local management. 
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Appendix C – Staff Interviewed 


Audit Team Staff Consulted 


Andy Jefford – Engagement General Manager Housing Services Manager  – Trudy Robinson 


John Micklewright – Engagement Senior Manager  Housing Administration Officer – Lynn James 


Rachel de Bradeny – Auditor Senior Capital Accountant – Tony Rumble 


Contact Details: 


John.Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 
 


An exit meeting was held with the Housing Services Manager, on Wednesday 14th May 2014. 
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Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for 
their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities 
for the application of sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and 
transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by 
management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


May 2014 


    


Andy Jefford Director Andrew.Jefford@mazars.co.uk 07810  656 522 


John Micklewright Engagement Manager John Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 07970 425 275 


Rachel de Bradeny Auditor Rachel de Bradeny@mazars.co.uk 07852 457 842 


 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name 
or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or communicate them to 
any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown 
or gains access to this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy 
group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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Executive Summary 


Background 


This audit was undertaken in order to support the Council in completing the Crematorium Annual Return for 2013/14.  We have where possible relied on our 
internal audit of the main accounting system and budgetary control undertaken on behalf of North Devon District Council.  The Crematorium is jointly operated 
by North Devon District Council and Torridge District Council.  It employs eight staff and performs 1,300 cremations per year on average.  Expenditure and 
income is monitored by the North Devon Crematorium Joint Committee on a quarterly basis. 


The Crematorium has two nominated bank accounts; a 30 day high interest account; and a current account.  The current account has a float of £100 and a 
cheque book facility.  The bank accounts are monitored and administered by a North Devon District Council (NDDC) Accountant.  Income information is 
reviewed by the Crematorium Manager on a monthly basis. 
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Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings 
Through the work undertaken, the following opinion has been provided: 


Audit Opinion 


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and / or 
there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk. 


 
 
For a key to the assurance ratings, see Appendix B – Reporting Definitions. 


Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit, we have raised the following recommendations: 


Priority 
Number of 


Recommendations 
Area of Scope / Recommendation 


 


0  


  


1 


 


 


Risk assessment update 


 


  


1 


 


 


 


Receipts to support petty cash payment 


 


 


 


Substantial 
Assurance 
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Section 1 – Detailed Summary of Key Findings  


Area 1: Appropriate accounting records  


The Crematorium accounts are maintained within the overall Council accounting system, Civica.  Each month, accountancy staff reconcile the Crematorium’s 
income against the general ledger, review and clear suspense accounts.  


From testing performed as part of our Main Accounting System and Budgetary Control Audit 2013/14, we are satisfied that appropriate accounting records 
are maintained in accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations. 


Area 2: Purchases and payment 


The Crematorium complies with the NDDC Council’s Financial Regulations in relation to purchases and expenditure.  Invoices are reviewed and authorised 
by the Crematorium Manager prior to processing through the Council’s central accounts payable system.  VAT calculations for the Crematorium are 
calculated by the NDDC Accountant and a VAT return is submitted on a quarterly basis to HM Revenue and Customs.  From a review of the latest VAT 
calculation and return from the NDDC Accountant, audit testing confirmed that the return for the period 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014 had been submitted 
on 29 April 2014.  The return is supported by working papers comparable to the general ledger. 
 
From our review of a sample of 20 payments made during 2013/14, we are satisfied that purchases were made in accordance with Financial Regulations.   


Area 3: Risk assessment 


The Crematorium has its own Risk Assessment Register, which details the risks in respect of the service activities.  Each risk is assessed for impact and 
likelihood.  Any mitigating controls and activities are also documented.  


Audit testing confirmed that risk assessments have been completed for operational areas within the Crematorium.  However, we identified that risk 
assessments had not been reviewed / updated in 2013/14.  Regular reviews of risk assessments should be carried out.  If an operation changes, or where 
there is a new operation, with no review of the risk involved, the risk assessment becomes obsolete, or it is not in place operational activities could be 
adversely affected..  We have raised a recommendation to address this issue. 


Area 4: Funding 


The Crematorium is self-funded and surpluses or losses are re-distributed between the two District Councils. 
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The Crematorium budget is reported on a quarterly basis to the North Devon Crematorium Joint Committee.  The report details the original budget and 
revised budgets for the period under review.  Actual income and expenditure as generated by the Council’s Radius Financial System is also reported, which 
allows the Committee to review any variances to the budget.  
 
At the Joint Committee meeting the outturn position and estimates are also approved.  As part of this the Crematorium charge is set. 
 
From our review of the committee reports for 27 June 2013, 29 November 2013, and 21 February 2014, we are satisfied that budget performance is reported 
and reviewed by the Joint Committee in a timely manner. 


Area 5: Income arrangements 


All cremations are logged on the North Devon Crematorium Official booking system, ‘Epilog’.  Notices of cremations are completed by the funeral director.  
The notices must include the details of service arrangements and disposal of ashes.  The service costs and receipt number is also recorded in the notice. 
 
Income is received by the crematorium via cheque, card or cash and logged in a receipt book.  Cash and cheques are then paid into the Crematorium bank 
account on a daily basis, by the Bereavement Officer.  A breakdown of all income received is reviewed by the NDDC Accountant on a monthly basis. 
 
From our testing of a sample of 20 cremations in 2013/14, we are satisfied the Crematorium income is recorded adequately.  Audit testing confirmed that 
each notice within the sample was supported by a system record, and that the correct payment had been received.  Testing also verified that the service 
details and payment amounts were correctly recorded on the general ledger.   


Area 6: Petty cash 


A petty cash float for £100 is held at the Crematorium.  Petty cash expenditures along with receipts are passed to the Council’s Exchequer department for re-
imbursement on a monthly basis.  The cash is locked in a safe located in the main Crematorium office.  The safe can only be accessed by the Bereavement 
Officer and the Crematorium Assistant. 
 
We completed a petty cash reconciliation, and verified that the float was correct.   Further testing was completed on a sample of five petty cash vouchers and 
receipts held by the Crematorium.  Audit confirmed these had been checked and authorised for payment correctly and were supported by receipts.   
 
Periodically, the Crematorium Assistant will complete a petty cash reimbursement summary form to ensure the petty cash float does not get low.  The 
payment for the reimbursement is authorised by the Bereavement officer, which is then paid out by the NDDC Exchequer department.  On the reimbursement 
summary form, each individual petty cash request is documented and these are the supported by the individual receipts collected.  On a further check of the 
most recent petty cash reimbursement request we noted that one petty cash request was not supported by a receipt.  This was for an item of dry cleaning, at 
a cost of £12.25.  The lack of a receipt to support payment increases the risk of payments being made incorrectly or inappropriately.  A recommendation has 
been raised in respect of this.  As this was the only error identified in this area, we consider that this does not adversely affect the Crematorium Return 
2013/14. 
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Area 7: Salaries and allowances 


Crematorium employees are paid by NDDC and payments are subject to the same process as other Council employees.   The Council has a payroll system, 
Team Spirit, which records all Council employee payroll details, including their annual salary, tax and National Insurance payments.  Employees are paid a 
monthly salary through a BACS transfer directly into their bank account. 


A report from the Payroll system is reviewed by the Exchequer Assistant on a monthly basis, who then verifies the Tax, National Insurance, student loans and 
maternity/paternity contributions to the general ledger.  The Accounting Technician reconciles the salaries and wages account with the general ledger on a 
monthly basis.  From our Payroll internal audit review carried out in 2013/14, we are satisfied that the controls are operating effectively in this area. 


Area 8: Asset and investment register 


The Crematorium building was re-valued in March 2012 by the Estates Officer, at NDDC, who is independent from the Crematorium.  A re-valuation review is 
conducted every five years and applied at year end.   


In addition, the completion of capital works to provide a new reception and service areas, are currently underway, aimed at enhancing the quality of the 
service.  Part of the works has been completed; specifically the installation of new cremators, designed to comply with EU emission regulations.  We noted 
that the asset register has been updated to show the position as at 31 March 2014. 


Area 9: Periodic and year-end bank reconciliations 


The year-end reconciliation of the Crematorium bank account is conducted as part of the year end accounts preparation in April 2014 by the NDDC 
Accountant.  Audit testing confirmed the NDDC Accountant had reconciled the Crematorium bank account accurately with the Crematorium cash book and 
the Council’s general ledger for the year ending 31 March 2014.  The reconciliation had been reviewed and authorised by the Financial Manager on 22 May 
2014.   


Area 10: Preparation of accounting statements 


The NDDC Accountant prepares the accounting statements using the data taken from underlying records, such as general ledger, income and cash 
receipting systems.  Audit testing confirmed that the Accounting statements were prepared appropriately.  They were agreed with the cash book and 
supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records.  In addition, where appropriate the debtors and creditors were recorded.  
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Section 2 – Recommendations / Matters Arising 


1.  Risk assessments updated                                                                                                      Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The Crematorium risk register should be updated.  All 
individual risk assessments within the register should be 
updated where necessary, with any new operational areas 
assessed and documented. 


Risk assessments should be reviewed regularly and updated 
so that management will have the most appropriate guidance 
to manage risks.  


Audit testing confirmed that risk assessments have been 
completed for operational areas within the Crematorium.  
However, we identified that these had not been reviewed / 
updated in 2013/14.   


If an operation changes, or where there is a new operation, 
with no review of the risk involved, the risk assessment may 
become obsolete; increasing the likelihood that crematorium 
operation could be affected. 


Crematorium Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


While we have said we accept they need updating, we have explained that it was because we had just invested in new fire 


alarm and emergency lighting which is not quite complete. 


30 September 2014 
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2. Receipts to support petty cash requests                                                                                           Priority 3 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


All requests for petty cash should be supported by a receipt in 
respect of the individual purchase.  Payment for the request 
should not be given until an appropriate receipt is produced or 
endorsed by a manager. 


Petty cash payments should be supported by a purchase 
receipt to ensure that payment is made for a valid purchase, 
and that the correct amount is paid. 


On the reimbursement summary form, each individual petty 
cash request is documented and these are the supported by 
the individual receipts collected.  On a check of the most 
recent petty cash reimbursement request we noted that one 
petty cash request was not supported by a receipt.  This was 
for an item of dry cleaning, at a cost of £12.25.   


The lack of a receipt to support payment increases the risk 
of payments made incorrectly or inappropriately. 


Crematorium Manager 


Management Response Implementation 
Deadline 


Accepted Immediately 
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Appendix A – Audit Framework 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over the Crematorium Return at North Devon District 
Council. 


Audit Approach & Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Internal Audit Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 Identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 Testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and have 
drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system.  See Appendix B for details of the Audit team and staff interviewed. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: - 


 Appropriate Accounting Records; 


 Financial Regulations; 


 Risk Assessment; 


 Annual Precept; 


 Income Arrangements; 


 Petty Cash; 


 Salaries and Allowances; 


 Asset and Investment Registers; 


 Periodic and Year end Bank Reconciliations; and 


 Preparation of Accounting Statements. 
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Appendix B – Reporting Definitions 


In order to assist management in using our reports: 


a) We categorise our audit opinion according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of compliance with these controls:  


Full 
Assurance 


There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being 
consistently applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and 
/ or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 


Limited 
Assurance 


Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-
compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil 
Assurance  


Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


b) We categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority. 


  
 


High Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


 


Medium Priority Recommendation 
Important issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


 


Low Priority Recommendation 
Detailed problems of a minor nature resolved on site through discussions with local management. 
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Appendix C – Staff Interviewed 


Audit Team Staff Consulted 


Andy Jefford – Engagement General Manager Accountant – Mark Knight 


John Micklewright – Engagement Senior Manager Bereavement Officer - Nikki Williams 


Rachel de Bradeny – Auditor Bereavement Officer – Martina Hull 


Contact Details: 


John.Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 
 


An exit meeting was held with the Accountant, on Wednesday, 18 June 2014. 
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We would like to thank the Management and staff involved in the audit work for their assistance. 
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Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for 
their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities 
for the application of sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and 
transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by 
management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


June 2014 


    


Andy Jefford Director Andrew.Jefford@mazars.co.uk 07810  656 522 


John Micklewright Engagement Manager John Micklewright@mazars.co.uk 07970 425 275 


Rachel de Bradeny Auditor Rachel de Bradeny@mazars.co.uk 07852 457 842 


 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name 
or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or communicate them to 
any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown 
or gains access to this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy 
group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 



mailto:Andrew.Jefford@mazars.co.uk






 
 


North Devon District Council 


Internal Audit Report 


VAT 2013/14 


 
June 2014 
 


This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 11. 


 


Report issued to:  


Steve Hearse   Head of Finance 


Jon Triggs  Finance Manager 


 


  


  


This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract dated 14 September 2011 between North Devon District Council and 
Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited


[1]
.  This report is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of North Devon District Council.  This report must not be 


disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to 
any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 
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1. Executive Summary 


This report details the Internal Audit of the procedures and controls in place over VAT at North Devon District Council.  The Internal Audit has 
been undertaken in accordance with the 2013/14 Internal Audit Plan.  The Internal Audit approach and summary of the work undertaken is 
provided in the Audit Framework in Appendix A. 


1.1 Background 


The objective of the VAT review was to assist the Council in obtaining assurance that it’s VAT accounting policies and procedures are 
compliant.  This was completed through a high-level review of the Council’s processes and controls.  We also identified, and where possible, 
quantified, exposures to risk.  This was done by interrogating procedures, compliance and controls within the VAT function. 


Responsibility for VAT within the Council lies with the Interim Joint Head of Finance (Steve Hearse).  Compilation of the VAT returns and other 
VAT compliance matters are delegated to the Assistant Manager Exchequer & Technical Services (Adam Tape). 


1.2 Audit Opinion   


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and 
/ or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 


1.3 Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit two Priority 2 and one Priority 3 recommendations has been raised; our key findings are detailed in the 
paragraphs below. 


 


1.4 VAT Return Procedures and Calculations 


We examined the Council’s VAT accounting controls and procedures and the process of compiling the monthly VAT return.  A walk through of 
the preparation of the VAT return for September 2013 was carried out. 


We found a satisfactory level of compliance around the VAT return compilation process; however, we understand that the key control i.e. the 
final review of the return tends to take place after the VAT return is submitted.  This means that any errors pick up as a result of this review 
would have to be disclosed to HM Revenue & Customs.  The use of miscellaneous codes to record transactions is an area of risk and frequency 
of use should be monitored as it may suggest a training need for relevant staff. 
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Errors disclosed on a regular basis could impact on the Council’s risk rating within HM Revenue & Customs, leading to increased scrutiny from 
HM Revenue & Customs in the future.  It is recommended that the final review of the VAT return figures should take place prior to their 
submission to HM Revenue & Customs. 


 


1.5 VAT Procedures and Internal Controls in the Purchase Ledger 


We examined the procedure of determining the allocation of VAT on expenditure to a particular VAT code. 


We discussed the manner in which the Creditors team accounts for VAT, including the treatment of employee expenses.  As part of our 
Creditors Audit 2013/14, we confirmed that a sample of 20 purchase invoices had been treated correctly for VAT purposes.  As part of this VAT 
audit, we examined the Creditors procedure in more detail with the Assistant Manager Exchequer & Technical Services who is involved in 
reviewing decisions made by members of the Creditors Team. 


During our examination of the sampled purchase invoices, we found that all of the invoices were treated correctly from a VAT liability 
perspective.     


 


1.6 Submission of Expense Claims 


Each service and authorised manager is responsible for checking and approving expense claims prior to payment processing.  The line 
manager checks all expenses claim forms which staff members submit, usually every month.  The deadline for submission to payroll for 
processing is the first Tuesday of each month as advised on the claim form. 


The Council is entitled to recover VAT on fuel costs reimbursed to employees.  However, HM Revenue and Customs require a VAT invoice to 
be retained to support a claim for VAT recovery of fuel costs incurred by an employee during the course of business.  This should be for fuel 
purchased on or before the journey being claimed.  It is accepted that not all claims will have a VAT receipt where, through low usage, a tax 
receipt may cover more than one claim.  Testing of a sample of 20 expense claims identified that in four cases the claimants had not provided 
VAT receipts for the purchase of fuel.  A recommendation has been raised in our Payroll Audit report 2013/14 to address this. The Council also 
has set subsistence allowances for employees. It should be noted that where the employee receives a fixed allowance as opposed to a 
reimbursement of their exact costs the Council will not be entitled to recover the VAT on the allowance or the expenditure incurred by the 
employee. 


 


1.7 VAT Procedures and Internal Controls in the Debtors Section 


We discussed the manner in which the debtors system operates. We also examined the process for raising invoices and determining the VAT 
treatment with regards to new sources of income. We examined and randomly checked the master report of VAT codes for various activities or 
income sources from the NDDC live system. 


As part of our Debtors Audit 2013/14, we reviewed a sample of 20 sales invoices to check that each was treated correctly for VAT 
purposes.  We also reviewed the process for raising invoices with the Income Officer in the Debtors team. 
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We found that all of the invoices sampled were treated correctly from a VAT perspective. 


 


1.8 VAT Recovery Calculations 


An examination of the VAT recovery calculations was carried out for September 2013.    


We examined the VAT on capital expenditure as at 30 September 2013. Each month a summary sheet is reviewed that considers the impact of 
new VAT expenditure on the Council’s VAT Section 33 position before such expenditure is approved.  


There are no recommendations in this area. 


 


1.9 Internal Guidance and Procedure Notes 


We reviewed the Council’s VAT manual for staff and the VAT guidance on the Council intranet.  Comprehensive manuals and policy documents 
are available to staff involved with VAT at the Council.  We understand that the previous Exchequer & Technical Services Manager who drafted 
and was responsible for updating the manual has retired.  We advise that the manual be reviewed periodically to ensure that there are no 
amendments are required.  


The Council has access to a VAT helpline provided by LAVAT.  This is used in cases where there is doubt internally on the VAT treatment of an 
activity or a second opinion is required.  A log of calls was reviewed as part of the internal audit process.   


 


1.10 Acknowledgment 


We would like to thank the management and staff involved in the audit work for their assistance.  
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2. Observations and Recommendations  


2.1. VAT Return Procedures and Calculations           (Priority 2) 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The review of the VAT return by the 
Finance Manager is a key control. 


It is recommended that this control be 
strengthened and instead of taking place 
after the return is submitted, this control is 
brought forward to take place prior to 
submission of the return. 


The use of miscellaneous codes is an area 
of risk and frequency of use should be 
monitored as it may suggest a training need 
for relevant staff. 


VAT figures declared should be accurate ands submitted by the due 
date. 


Credibility checks are carried out by the Assistant Manager during the 
process of preparing the VAT return figures.  These checks include 
reconciliations and checks for items allocated to the miscellaneous 
charge code.  Manual adjustments are made where required.  


The Finance Manager carries out a review of the VAT figures but this 
tends to take place after the return has been submitted and errors 
detected have to be disclosed to HMRC exposing the Council to 
potential penalties. 


In general, we found a satisfactory level of compliance around the 
VAT return compilation process, but the review of the figures prior to 
submission should strengthen the controls and give greater 
assurance on the accuracy of the figures.      


The failure to correctly account for VAT on the VAT return submitted 
to HMRC could lead to interest being levied and financial penalties 
being imposed by HM Revenue & Customs.     


Finance Manager 


Management Response Deadline 


Agree Immediate  
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2.2. VAT Procedures and Internal Controls in the Purchase Ledger           (Priority 2) 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


We recommend that the Council remind 
staff of the need to provide VAT invoices 
when submitting expenses claims for fuel.   


 


Required evidence e.g. VAT invoices should be obtained and retain 
and used to support input tax claims. 


During our review of the sample purchase invoices, we found that all 
of the invoices were treated correctly from a VAT liability perspective. 


Failure to correctly manage VAT within the purchase ledger could 
lead to: 


 Failing to recover all VAT that the Council is entitled to in the 
correct period; 


 A possibility that the Council is over-recovering VAT through the 
VAT return; and 


 The Council may not be holding the correct documentation to 
support its VAT recovery.  


Assistant Manager (Technical) 


Management Response Deadline 


Agreed 31 August 2014 
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2.3. Internal Guidance and Procedure Notes           (Priority 3) 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The internal VAT manual which covers 
numerous areas relating to the Council’s 
VAT accounting should be reviewed 
periodically to ensure no amendments are 
required 


Failure to capture and amend any changes in treatment in the 
manual could result in errors in the Council’s VAT accounting 


Assistant Manager (Technical) 


Management Response Deadline 


Agree 31 December 2014 
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Appendix A – Reporting Definitions   


Assurance Gradings 


We have four categories by which we classify internal audit assurance over the processes we examine, and these are defined as follows: 


Assurance Level Evaluating and Testing Conclusion 


Full There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the client’s objectives. 


The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 


Substantial While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are weaknesses, which put some of the client’s objectives at risk. 


There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the control processes may put some of the client’s objectives at risk. 


Limited Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put the client’s objectives at risk. 


The level of non-compliance puts the client’s objectives at risk. 


None Control processes are generally weak leaving the processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 


Significant non-compliance with basic control processes leaves the processes/systems open to error or abuse. 


The assurance gradings provided above are not comparable with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the 
International Audit and Assurance Standards Board and as such the grading of ‘Full Assurance’ does not imply that there are no risks to the stated 
objectives. 


 


Recommendation Gradings 


In order to assist management in using our internal audit reports, we categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority as follows: 


Priority Level Definition 


1 Major issues for the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


2 Important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


3 Minor issues resolved on site with local management. 
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Appendix B - Audit Objective and Scope 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over VAT at North Devon District Council. 


Audit Approach and Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Quality Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and 
have drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: 


 VAT Return Procedures and Calculations; 


 VAT Procedures and Internal Controls within the Creditors Section; 


 VAT Procedures and Internal Controls within the Debtors Section; and 


 Review of Internally Produced VAT Guidance. 
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Appendix B – Staff Interviewed  


Adam Tape - Assistant Manager (Technical) 


  







North Devon District Council 2013/14 


10 
 


Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you 
for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 
responsibilities for the application of sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all 
strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound systems of internal 
control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus 
on areas as identified by management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their 
accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our work and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation 
of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 


Bristol 


June 2014 


This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our 
name or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or 
communicate them to any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to 
any other party who is shown or gains access to this document. 


In this document references to Mazars are references to Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 


Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of Mazars LLP.  Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and 
accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 


 





